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OUR MISSION & VISION

e To facilitate smooth and rapid development of transmission and distribution
capacity in the country and for accelerated growth of power sector &
enrichment of quality of life of all segments of population.

e To act as a competitive, client-friendly and development-oriented
organization for promoting projects covering power generation, power
conservation, power transmission and power distribution network in the
country.

OBJECTIVES

e To plan, promote, develop, design, engineer, construct, operate and maintain
"electricity system" as defined under Section 2(25) of the Electricity Act, 2003.

e To promote organize or carry on the business of consultancy services and/or
project implementation in any field of activity relating to generation &
transmission, distribution of electricity or other related activities thereto in India
and abroad.

e Procurement of transmission services, including all activities relating to survey, /
detailed project report formulation, arranging finance, project management,
obtaining right of way, necessary clearances, site identification, land compensation,
design, engineering, equipment, material, construction, erection, testing and
commissioning.

e To undertake transmission activities, to apply for requisite licences and to do all
things incidental to such activities which is, in the opinion of the Board of
Directors, necessary for fulfillment of the objects of the Company.

e To promote and undertake the formation of project specific company/ies, or the
formation of any institution, subsidiary company or companies for the purpose of
carrying out the aforesaid activities and for the furtherance of transmission services.

e To enter into Joint Ventures or merge any Company or any of the,
companies/subsidiaries formed by the Company in pursuance of its objects as
aforesaid.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Tin lakh except EPS & Dividend)
Particulars \ 2019-20 | 2018-19 \ 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-16 | 2014-15 \ 2013-14 \ 2012-13 \ 2011-12 \ 2010-11
Shareholders’ Fund (at the end of the year)
Equity Share 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Capital
Reserves & 11,255 11,839 17,612 15,781 12,335 10,496 6,387 4,512 4,231 3,072
Surplus
Net Worth 11,260 11,844 17,617 15,786 12,341 10,501 6,892 4,517 4,236 3,077
Financial Results
Total Revenue 7,916 4,045 5,313 5,238 4,415 7,244 3,518 458 1,810 1,649
Profit Before 7,055 3,221 4,684 4,985 42,42 6,992 3,430 409 1,809 1,636
Tax
Profit After Tax 5,444 2,460 3,491 3,445 2,880 4,754 2,386 292 1,171 1,092
Earnings Per 10,887 4,920 6,983 6,891 5,760 9,508 4,773 585 2,341 2,185
Share (in ¥)
Dividend Per 10,000 6,600 7,058 2,760 1,730 1,902 20 20 20 -
Share (in %)
Gross Revenue VS Profit After Tax NEt Worth
(in % Lakh) (in X Lakh)
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Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilege to present to you the 13" Annual

Report of your Company. Despite a challenging

business environment, your Company managed to 7‘*
deliver sustained operational performance during the :
financial year 2019-20. Transmission & Distribution REC ;
(T&D) sector works as a foundation stone strongly

holding the development of power Generation & -
Transmission, an important element in the power
delivery value chain. The Transmission System
facilitates evacuation of power from generating
stations and its delivery to the load centers. For | &
efficient dispersal of power to deficit regions,
strengthening the transmission system network, —
enhancing the Inter-State power transmission system \‘
and augmentation of the National Grid are required.
An extensive network of transmission lines has been |
developed over the years for evacuating power produced by different electricity generating stations
and distributing the same to the consumers. The nominal Extra High Voltage lines in vogue are *
800 kV HVDC & 765 kV, 400 kV, 230/220 kV, 110 kV and 66 kV AC lines. The country’s power
transmission sector has witnessed unprecedented growth in the past five years with consistent growth
in line length and transformation capacity. Further, both operational and financial performances of
the transmission utilities have also witnessed an improvement during the period. Going forward, an
estimated 2.6 trillion investment is required in the transmission sector to meet future peak load,
which is expected to reach 234 GW by 2021-22. The private sector is expected to play an important
role in achieving the country’s grid expansion targets, as competitive bidding gains momentum at
both inter-state and intra-state levels.

A number of grid expansion programmes such as the Green Energy Corridor and cross-border links
are underway to expand the grid infrastructure. Further, transmission utilities, at the central and state
level are expected to invest significantly in new technologies to make grids more reliable, resilient,
secure and smart. The sector is also expected to immensely benefit from major policy reforms,
including the Electricity Act amendments and the Tariff Policy amendments.

During the financial year 2019-20, a total of 11,664 cKm (circuit kilometers) of transmission lines
were added, as compared to about 22,437 cKm during the previous fiscal.

A slowdown in the economic growth in India, coupled with the continuing impact of COVID-19
pandemic, is likely to impact the business of the Company adversely. RECTPCL’s performance and
growth of its business are dependent on the performance of the overall Indian economy. The loss
caused to GDP due to nationwide lockdown, followed by local lockdowns in various States, would
result in a shortfall in public finances. The global economy has been hit hard by the unexpected and
widespread outbreak of COVID-19, which has now posed fresh challenges across all geographies
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and sectors. The power sector will have to face new problems like disruption of project execution
schedules, migrant labour movement, pressure on finances and liquidity crunch.
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Operational Performance

During the financial year 2019-20, Ministry of Power, Government of India allocated 7 independent
transmission projects to your Company to work as Bid Process Coordinator (BPC), for selection of
developer as Transmission Service Provider (TSP) through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding
Process. In order to initiate development of each transmission project, RECTPCL incorporates a
project specific Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company and after the
selection of developer through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process, the respective project
specific SPV along with all its assets and liabilities is transferred to the successful bidder. Further,
Madhya Pradesh Power Transmission Company Limited (MPPTCL) has also appointed your
company as the Bid Process Coordinator for development of two Intra-State transmission projects.

Your Company during the financial year 2019-20 successfully transferred eight (8) project specific
Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) to successful bidders selected through Tariff Based Competitive
Bidding Process.

Financial Performance

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020, your company has recorded an income of
37,916.45 lakh as compared to 4,045.17 lakh in previous financial year. The Profit before tax and
Profit after tax for the Financial Year 2019-20 was ¥7,054.72 lakh and ¥5,443.86 lakh respectively.
The Net worth of the company as on March 31, 2020 was %11,260.08 lakh against initial Capital of
%5 lakh injected by REC Limited (holding company) in the year 2007.

The Board of Directors has declared an Interim dividend of ¥10,000/- per equity share. The total
dividend pay-out for the financial year 2019-20 was I5,000 Lakh (excluding dividend distribution
tax), which was paid in the month of March, 2020. The Board of Directors has not recommended
any final dividend for the financial year 2019-20.

Corporate Governance

As a good corporate entity, your Company is being managed in an ethical and responsible manner.
Your company is in compliance with Companies Act, 2013 and DPE Guidelines on Corporate
Governance, 2010 to the extent possible. Your Company has been submitting "Report on Corporate
Governance" as required, on quarterly and annual basis. Further, as per Clause 8.2 of Guidelines on
Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010 issued by DPE, the Certificate
confirming the compliance of provisions of Corporate Governance for the financial year ended
March 31, 2020, has been obtained from M/s Pranav Kumar & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, is annexed to this Report.
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The Company is not required to appoint any Independent Directors/ Women Director and also not
required to constitute Audit Committee vide MCA Notification dated July 5, 2017 read with MCA
Notification July 13, 2017.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Your Company is also complying with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
thereunder and DPE Guidelines in respect of CSR.

As a responsible corporate citizen, RECTPCL has been pursuing various initiatives on the front of
CSR and Sustainable Development. During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has CSR
budget of I85.94 Lakh towards CSR activities/projects. Further, committed and undisbursed
amount of the previous year of ¥115.63 Lakh was added to the CSR budget of current year, therefore,
the total CSR Budget works out to I201.57 Lakh (including committed but undisbursed amount of
%115.63 Lakh of Financial Year 2018-19). In view of the outbreak of pandemic coronavirus, the
Company has spent I10 Lakh only towards distribution of food packets, during the Financial Year
2020-21.

Gratitude

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude for the immense support and
guidance received by your company from Hon’ble Minister of Power, Ministry of Power, State
Governments, State Power Utilities, Central Electricity Authority, Central Transmission Ultility,
Shareholders, the holding company (REC Limited), Statutory Auditors and the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India (C&AG).

I acknowledge the passion and commitment of our employees, without whose efforts none of the
achievements would have been possible. I also convey my thanks and appreciation to my esteemed
colleagues on the Board for their unstinted support.

Thank you for your continued support.

With warm wishes,

o/
Date: September 21, 2020 (Sanjeev Kumar Gupta)
Place: Delhi Chairman
(DIN: 03464342)
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REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED

Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003
CIN: U40101DL2007GO1157558
NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Thirteenth (13™) Annual General Meeting of REC Transmission
Projects Company Limited (RECTPCL) will be held on Tuesday, September 22, 2020 at
5:30 P.M. at shorter notice at Core 4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi —
110003 to transact the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

1) To receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited standalone & consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 along with the
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2) To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend for the financial year 2019-20.

3) To fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2020-21.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

4) To appoint Shri Ajoy Choudhury (DIN: 06629871), as Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:-

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160, 161 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and as per the Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Ajoy Choudhury (DIN: 06629871), who was appointed as
Additional Director of the Company with effect from June 12, 2020 and holds office upto the
date of this Annual General Meeting and who is eligible for appointment under the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice from him under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation."

5) To appoint Shri Govind Singh Bhati (DIN: 08038296), as Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:-

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160, 161 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and as per the Articles of
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Association of the Company, Shri Govind Singh Bhati (DIN: 08038296), who was appointed as
Additional Director of the Company with effect from June 12, 2020 and holds office upto the
date of this Annual General Meeting and who is eligible for appointment under the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has received a
notice in writing from him under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation."

6) To appoint Shri Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw (DIN: 01868883), as Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:-

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160, 161 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and as per the Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw (DIN: 01868883), who was
appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect from June 12, 2020 and holds office
upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and who is eligible for appointment under the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from him under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation."

By order of the Board of Directors
For REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

(Ritu Madan Arora)
Authorized Signatory
Place: Core-4, SCOPE Complex,
7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

Date: September 21, 2020

Notes:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll, if any, instead of
himself/herself and such proxy need not be a Member of the Company. The proxy form
duly completed and signed must be received at the Registered Office of the Company,
not less than forty eight (48) hours before the commencement of the AGM. Blank
proxy form is attached and also available on the Company’s website i.e.
www.rectpcl.in
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A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding
in the aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the
Company. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy
for any other person or shareholder.

. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of Special Business, as set out above is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors of
the Company in its meeting held on September 21, 2020 considered that the items of
Special Business at Sl. Nos. 4 to 6 of the Notice, being unavoidable in nature, shall be
transacted at the 13 AGM of the Company

. The Interim Dividend @ 10,000/- per equity share, was declared by the Board of
Directors in its Meeting held on February 14, 2020, subject to the provisions of Section
123 of the Companies Act, 2013 and paid in the month of March, 2020. The Board of
Directors has not recommended final dividend for the financial year 2019-20.

. Corporate Members are requested to send/attach a duly certified copy of the Board
Resolution/ Authority Letter authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their
behalf at the Annual General Meeting, along with the Proxy Form/Attendance Slip.

. In terms of the provisions of Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Auditors of a
Government Company are appointed/re-appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General (C&AGQG) of India and in terms of Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, their
remuneration shall be fixed by the Company in a General Meeting or in such manner as
the company in a General Meeting may determine. The Shareholders may authorize the
Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of auditors appointed/to be
appointed by the C&AG. Accordingly, in the 12" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Company held on August 27, 2019, the Shareholders had authorized the Board of
Directors of the Company in pursuance of Section 142 read with Section 139(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to fix and approve the remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2019-20. Accordingly, the Board of Directors in its
Meeting held on October 14, 2019 approved the payment of remuneration of ¥3,00,000/-
(Rupees Three Lakh Only) plus applicable GST inclusive of local travel expenses and
other incidental out of pocket expenses to the Statutory Auditors, M/s P. Jain &
Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No.000711C), for the financial year 2019-
20.

Pursuant to Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s P. Jain & Company,
Chartered Accountants have been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2020-21 by the C&AG of India. The Members are requested to authorize
the Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors
of the Company, as it deems fit, for the financial year 2020-21.

8
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6. Members desirous of getting any information on any item(s) of business of this meeting
are requested to address their queries to the Authorized Signatory at the Registered Office
of the Company prior to the date of the Annual General Meeting, so that the information
required can be made available at the time of the meeting.

7. The Register of Directors and their Shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Register of contracts and arrangements in which Directors are
interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other
documents referred to, in the Notice will be available for inspection by the Members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days during business hours and at the
time of AGM of the Company at the venue of the Meeting.

8. The entire Annual Report along with the financial Statements are also available on the
Company’s website i.e. www.rectpcl.in
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT SETS OUT ALL MATERIAL FACTS RELATING TO
THE SPECIAL BUSINESS SET OUT IN THE NOTICE

Item No. 4

Shri Ajoy Choudhury (DIN: 06629871) was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of
the Company w.e.f. June 12, 2020 and he holds office upto the date of Annual General Meeting
and be eligible for appointment/re-appointment by the Company in Annual General Meeting.
Accordingly, as per the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
received a Notice in writing from him, signifying his candidature for the office of Director of the
Company and the same is available on the website of the Company. Accordingly, appointment of
Shri Ajoy Choudhury as Director may be considered by the shareholders at this AGM. Further,
Shri Ajoy Choudhury is not disqualified to be a Director of the Company in terms of the
provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to the Company.

Relevant documents in respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days during 2.30 p.m. to 4.30 p.m. up to the
date of the Meeting.

He holds 1 equity Share of I10/- of the Company as nominee of REC Limited (holding
company). Further, the brief resume of Shri Ajoy Choudhury giving the nature of his expertise in
specific functional areas, remuneration paid, number of meetings attended during the year etc.
forms a part of this Notice.

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends his appointment as a Director for
approval by the shareholders of the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company or their relatives except Shri Ajoy Choudhury is in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing of the said resolution set out at
item No. 4 of the Notice.

In view of the above, you are requested to grant your consent to the Ordinary Resolution as set out
at item no. 4 of this Notice.

Item No. 5

Shri Govind Singh Bhati (DIN: 08038296) was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board
of the Company w.e.f June 12, 2020 and he holds office upto the date of Annual General
Meeting and be eligible for appointment/re-appointment by the Company in Annual General
Meeting. Accordingly, as per the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has received a Notice in writing from him, signifying his candidature for the office of
Director of the Company and the same is available on the website of the Company. Accordingly,
appointment of Shri Govind Singh Bhati as Director may be considered by the shareholders at
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this AGM. Further, Shri Govind Singh Bhati is not disqualified to be a Director of the Company
in terms of the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
the Company.

Relevant documents in respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days during 2.30 p.m. to 4.30 p.m. up to the
date of the Meeting.

He holds 1 equity Share of ¥10/- of the Company as nominee of REC Limited (holding
company). Further, the brief resume of Shri Govind Singh Bhati giving the nature of his expertise
in specific functional areas, remuneration paid, number of meetings attended during the year etc.
forms a part of this Notice.

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends his appointment as a Director for
approval by the shareholders of the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company or their relatives except Shri Govind Singh Bhati is in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing of the said resolution set out at
item No. 5 of the Notice.

In view of the above, you are requested to grant your consent to the Ordinary Resolution as set out
at item no. 5 of this Notice.

Item No. 6

Shri Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw (DIN: 01868883) was appointed as an Additional Director on
the Board of the Company w.e.f. June 12, 2020 and he holds office upto the date of Annual
General Meeting and be eligible for appointment/re-appointment by the Company in Annual
General Meeting. Accordingly, as per the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company has received a Notice in writing from him, signifying his candidature for the office
of Director of the Company and the same is available on the website of the Company.
Accordingly, appointment of Shri Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw as Director may be considered
by the shareholders at this AGM. Further, Shri Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw is not disqualified
to be a Director of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to the Company.

Relevant documents in respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days during 2.30 p.m. to 4.30 p.m. up to the
date of the Meeting.

He holds 1 equity Share of ¥10/- of the Company as nominee of REC Limited (holding
company). Further, the brief resume of Shri Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw giving the nature of his
expertise in specific functional areas, remuneration paid, number of meetings attended during the
year etc. forms a part of this Notice.
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The Board of Directors of your Company recommends his appointment as a Director for
approval by the shareholders of the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company or their relatives except Shri Rameshwer Prasad
Vaishnaw is in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing of the said
resolution set out at item No. 6 of the Notice.

In view of the above, you are requested to grant your consent to the Ordinary Resolution as set out
at item no. 6 of this Notice.
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BRIEF RESUME OF THE DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING APPOINTMENT AT THE
13™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING;

Name Shri Ajoy Choudhury (DIN: 06629871)

Date of Birth January 21, 1964 (Age: 56 years)

Date of Appointment June 12, 2020

Qualifications B. Com (H) & Member of Institute of Cost Accountants of India.
Expertise in specific Functional area Shri Ajoy Choudhury is holding the position of Director (Finance)

in REC Limited since June 1, 2020. He is an Associate Member of
the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of India. He has
over 31 years of experience in Indian Power Sector across diverse
functions such as International Finance, Contracts Management,
Loans & Recovery, Corporate Accounts, Resource Mobilization &
Treasury etc. He has been working in REC since April 16, 2007 at
Senior Management positions and has been instrumental in
implementation of various systemic improvements including
formulation of Loan Recovery guidelines, improving
communication and services to customers and managing overall
Resources and Treasury in REC in an efficient manner. He has also
been a member of Core Team for implementation of ‘Ujwal
DISCOM Assurance Yojana’ (UDAY), flagship programme of
Government of India, aimed at turnaround of Distribution
Companies in the Indian Power Sector. Prior to joining REC, he has
worked at various levels with Powergrid Corporation of India
Limited and NHPC Limited, over 19 years.

As Director (Finance), he provides directions with respect to
Financial Management and Operations of the organization
encompassing organizational and financial planning, formulation of
financial policy, financial accounting, management control systems,
cash and funds management, tax planning, mobilization and
management of resources, liaison with financial institutions and
capital market players. He also supervises treasury functions, lending
operations and advises on corporate risk management matters. He is
also a Director on the Board of REC Power Distribution Company
Limited since March 25, 2019. He also served as a Nominee
Director on the Board of TRN Energy Private Limited.

Directorship held in other Companies 1. REC Limited.

2. REC Power Distribution Company Limited.
Membership/Chairmanship of | REC Limited
Committees across all Public Companies | e  Stakeholders Relationship Committee - Member
other than RECTPCL e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee - Member

REC Power Distribution Company Limited
e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee — Chairman

Number of Meetings attended by him | NIL
during the year
Number of equity shares held in the | 1 (Asanominee of REC Limited)
Company
Remuneration paid All the Non-Executive Directors on the Board of the Company are
nominated by the holding company and are not entitled to any
remuneration from the Company.

Relationship with other Directors and | None of the Directors have inter-se relationship with any Director,
Other Key Managerial Personnel Manager and/or other Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.



http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

) é@\S.Sroﬁ B
A —

L oF
Ot 2

14

Name Shri Govind Singh Bhati (DIN: 08038296)

Date of Birth August 29, 1961 (Age: 59 years)

Date of Appointment June 12, 2020

Qualifications B. Tech in Electrical Engineering & MBA in Project

Management and also Energy Manager.

Expertise in specific Functional area

Shri Govind Singh Bhati has worked in power sector for
33 years. Prior to joining REC in 2006, he was working
with NTPC in erection, testing and commissioning of
Power Projects for 20 years. On joining REC in 2006, he
was posted as Chief Project Manager of Gujarat state for 4
years. Later, he was Zonal Manager for northern states of
J&K, Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Rajasthan and
Delhi for 3 years. For past 8 years he is in REC Corporate
Office and involved in Government Schemes.

Directorship held in other Companies

NIL

Membership/Chairmanship of
Committees across all Public Companies
other than RECTPCL

NIL

Number of Meetings attended by him
during the year

NIL

Number of equity shares held in the
Company

1 (As a nominee of REC Limited)

Remuneration paid

All the Non-Executive Directors on the Board of the
Company are nominated by the holding company and are
not entitled to any remuneration from the Company.

Relationship with other Directors and
Other Key Managerial Personnel

None of the Directors have inter-se relationship with any
Director, Manager and/or other Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company.
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Name Shri Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw (DIN: 01868883)
Date of Birth June 10, 1965 (Age: 55 years)

Date of Appointment June 12, 2020

Qualifications Chartered Accountant

Expertise in specific Functional area

Shri R.P. Vaishnaw, has over 36 years of rich experience
in the field of Finance, Accounts, Audit, Budgeting, Cost
Control, Fund Management, Resource Mobilisation, Risk
Management/Hedging, IPO Management, Financial
Concurrence, Business Development, Appraisal, Sanction
and Disbursement of Loan, Bid Process Consultancy etc.
He has multifaceted comprehensive experience of large
organizations and wide range of industries including a
rare blend of working experience with Government as
well as Private Sector. After completion of his Chartered
Accountancy with one of the leading firm of Chartered
Accountants Haribhakti & Co., he worked with a large
corporate house Raymond Limited, a part of the
nationwide J.K.Organisation for 9 years. Thereafter, he
worked with Food Corporation of India as General
Manager and Chief General Manager for more than 7
years. He has also worked as Director (Finance) of
National Projects Construction Corporation Limited.

He joined REC Limited during 2007 and has worked in
the position of General Manager, Senior General
Manager and Chief General Manager. Presently he is
Executive Director (Finance). He was head of Internal
Audit in REC and has also worked as CFO of RECTPCL
and RECPDCL. He was also Zonal Manager West Zone
of REC.

Directorship held in other Companies

NIL

Membership/Chairmanship of
Committees across all Public Companies
other than RECTPCL

NIL

Number of Meetings attended by him
during the year

NIL

Number of equity shares held in the
Company

1 (As a nominee of REC Limited)

Remuneration paid

All the Non-Executive Directors on the Board of the
Company are nominated by the holding company and are
not entitled to any remuneration from the Company.

Relationship with other Directors and
Other Key Managerial Personnel

None of the Directors have inter-se relationship with any
Director, Manager and/or other Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company.
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BOARD'S REPORT

To,
The Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirteenth (13™) Annual Report together with the
Financial Statements of your Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020.

1. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Ministry of Power, Government of India, allocates independent transmission projects from time
to time to RECTPCL to work as Bid Process Coordinator (BPC), for selection of developer as
Transmission Service Provider (TSP) through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process. In order
to initiate development of each independent inter-state transmission project allocated by Ministry
of Power, Government of India and State Governments, RECTPCL incorporates a project
specific Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company and after the
selection of developer through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process, the respective project
specific SPV along with all its assets and liabilities is transferred to the successful bidder. During
the financial year 2019-20, Ministry of Power, Government of India, allocated 7 independent
transmission projects to your Company.

Further, Madhya Pradesh Power Transmission Company Limited (MPPTCL) has appointed
RECTPCL as the Bid Process Coordinator for development of two Intra-State transmission
projects.

During the financial year 2019-20, 8(eight) project specific SPV companies (comprising of 6 inter-
state projects and 2 intra-state projects) have been transferred to the successful bidders, as
mentioned below:

SL. Name of Transmission | Name of Project | Name of Selected | Date of
No. | Project Specific SPV & | Bidder/Developer | Transfer
CIN

1. Transmission system | Khetri Transco M/s Power Grid | August 29,
associated with LTA | Limited Corporation of | 2019
application from Rajasthan | (U40100DL2019G | India Limited
SEZ (Part -C) 01347127)

2. “Intra-State Transmission | Bhind Guna | M/s Power Grid | September
Work associated with | Transmission Corporation of | 11, 2019
construction of 400 kV | Limited India Limited
Substation near Guna (Distt.- | (U40300DL2018G
Guna) & construction of 220 | OI338734)
kV S/s near Bhind (Distt.-

Bhind)
3. Transmission System for 400 | Udupi Kasargode | M/s Sterlite Grid | September
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kv Udupi (UPCL) - | Transmission 14 Limited 12, 2019
Kasargode D/C line Limited
(U40100DL2018G
01342365)
Construction of Ajmer (PG)- | Ajmer Phagi | M/s Power Grid | October 3,
Phagi 765 kV D/C line along | Transco Limited Corporation of | 2019
with associated bays for | (U40101DL2019G | India Limited
Rajasthan SEZ 01347423)
Western Region | WRSS XXI (A) M/s Adani | October 14,
Strengthening Scheme - 21 | Transco Limited Transmission 2019
(WRSS-21) Part-A - | (U40107DL2019G | Limited
Transmission System | O1347713)
Strengthening for relieving
over loadings observed in
Gujarat Intra-State System
due to RE Injections in Bhuyj
PS

6. Transmission System | Lakadia M/s Adani | November
associated with RE | Banaskantha Transmission 13, 2019
generations at Bhujy-II, | Transco Limited Limited
Dwarka & Lakadia (U40107DL2019G

01347428)

7. Jam Khambaliya Pooling | Jam Khambaliya | M/s Adani | November
Station and Interconnection of | Transco Limited Transmission 13, 2019
Jam Khambaliya Pooling | (U40105DL2019G | Limited
Station for providing | OI347089)
connectivity to RE Projects
(1500 MW) in Dwarka
(Gujarat) and Installation of
400/220 Kv ICT along with
associated bays at M/s CGPL
Switchyard

8. Construction of | Rampur Sambhal | M/s Power Grid | December,
765/400/220kV GIS | Transco Limited | Corporation of | 12, 2019
Substation, Rampur and | (U40101DL2019G | India Limited
400/220/132kV GIS | 01349484)

Substation, Sambhal with
associated Transmission Lines

The Company is also acting as Bid Process Coordinator for Intra-State transmission projects viz.
Transmission System Strengthening in Jharkhand State (Package-1 to 4), for which it had
incorporated 4  SPV  companies viz. Chandil  Transmission Limited [CIN:
U40108DL2018G0OI1330905], Koderma Transmission Limited [CIN:
U40300DL2018G0OI1331192], Dumka Transmission Limited [CIN: U40300DL2018G0I1331490]
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and Mandar Transmission Limited [CIN: U40101DL2018GOI331526]. The bidding process of
these projects is expected to conclude during the financial year 2020-21.

Further, after March 31, 2020, the Company has incorporated the following project specific SPVs
as its wholly owned subsidiaries, for the inter-state / intra-state transmission projects indicated
below, in which it is acting as Bid Process Coordinator:-

SL. Name of Transmission Project | Name of project Specific SPV & | Date of
No. CIN Incorporation

1. Transmission  system  for | Kallam Transmission Limited | May 28, 2020
evacuation of power from RE | (U40106DL2020G01364104)
projects in Osmanabad area (1
GW) in Maharashtra

2. Transmission Scheme for Solar | Gadag Transmission Limited | June 2, 2020
Energy Zone in Gadag (2500 | (U40100DL2020GOI1364213)
MW), Karnataka - Part A

3. Transmission Scheme for Solar | Bidar Transmission Limited June 8, 2020
Energy Zone in Bidar (2500 | (U40106DL2020G01364498)
MW), Karnataka

4, Transmission  system  for | Rajgarh Transmission Limited | June 6, 2020
evacuation of power from RE | (U40106DL2020G01364436)
projects in Rajgarh (2500 MW)
SEZ in Madhya Pradesh

5. Transmission system | Ramgarh New  Transmission | June 26, 2020
strengthening  scheme  for | Limited

evacuation of power from | (U40300DL2020GOI365214.)
Solar Energy Zones in
Rajasthan (8.1 GW) under
Phase II -Part A

6. Transmission system | Fatehgarh Bhadla Transco | June 2, 2020
strengthening for evacuation of | Limited

power from solar energy zones | (U40108DL2020G01364227)
in Rajasthan (8.1 GW) under
Phase II -Part B

7. Transmission system | Sikar New Transmission Limited | June 11, 2020
strengthening  scheme  for | (U40106DL2020G01364672)
evacuation of power from solar
energy zones in Rajasthan (8.1
GW) under phase-11- Part C

8. Development of intra-state | MP Power Transmission | August 4, 2020
transmission work in M.P. | Package-I Limited

through Tariff Based | (U40108DL2020GOI1367417)
Competitive Bidding:
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9. Development of intra-state | MP Power Transmission | August 20, 2020
transmission work in M.P. | Package-II Limited

through Tariff Based | (U40100DL2020GOI1368275)
Competitive Bidding:
PACKAGE-II
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Further, Ministry of Power vide Gazette Notification dated February 1, 2019 had de-notified the
project for “Transmission System for Phase-1 Generation Projects in Arunachal Pradesh”
allocated to your Company to act as Bid Process Coordinator. The application for striking off the
name of the Company i.e. Dinchang Transmission Limited, a project specific Special Purpose
Vehicle in respect of above transmission project, has been filed with the Registrar of Companies.
The status of the company is under process of Striking off.

Presently, RECTPCL is also working on many other projects as Project Management Agency
(PMA) /Project Management consultancy (PMC), Third Party Inspection (TPI) etc.

Your Company under the guidance of Ministry of Power Government of India has developed
online web platform and Mobile App for better Transparency & Accountability as detailed below:

Urja Mitra: - Urja Mitra is a distribution sector initiative and a first of its kind application being
implemented by your Company, under the guidance of the Ministry of Power. Urja Mitra
provides a Central Outage Management and Notification Platform for State Power Distribution
utilities, to disseminate Power Outage information to urban / rural power consumers across India
through SMS/email/push notifications. Power consumers across the nation get outage update
through integrated Mobile Application for Android and 10OS platforms. It also provides a
platform to view real time power outages in any part of the country, and lodge complaints on
power outages. As on June 2020, data of around 22.06 crore consumers of 52 DISCOMSs of 29
States is uploaded into the application and 279.37 crore SMSes have been sent to the consumers.

Tarang: - Tarang (Transmission App for Real-Time Monitoring and Growth) is a transmission
sector initiative, being run under the guidance of the Ministry of Power through your Company.
It provides an informative medium regarding the Pan-India progress of Transmission System,
which can be drilled down for analysis to month wise, agency wise, state wise information etc.
The reasons of delay in case of stalled/delayed projects is separately provided so that all
concerned stakeholders can take timely corrective decision for project completion. Tarang
monitors the progress of both Inter-State and Intra-State Transmission Projects being
implemented through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding (TBCB) as well as Regulated Tariff
Mechanism. Tarang provides advance information of upcoming transmission projects approved
by Empowered Committee on Transmission, aiding bidders to gear up for future transmission
projects. In other words, it 1s a real time repository of Transmission System across the country.

11 kV Rural Feeder Monitoring Scheme: - To get a complete picture of the entire distribution
network in country and to ensure achievement of “24x7 Power For All” vision of the
Government of India, it was felt essential to capture real time supply parameters of rural India
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and this could be achieved by monitoring the availability/quality of power supply in rural areas
of the country recording actual distribution parameters i.e., power supply, outages and by
conducting feeder wise energy audit and AT&C losses calculation. Towards this objective, the
Ministry of Power had introduced “11 kV Rural Feeder Monitoring Scheme” under the
Distribution Sector Reforms and has appointed your Company as implementing agency for the
same. Under the scheme, meter data of rural feeders is sent to central Meter Data Acquisition
System (MDAS) for analysis and the same is then integrated with National Power Portal (NPP)
to make it available for use of all stakeholders.

o

REC r&,
LE-TEE

This scheme targets to develop a self-sustained, independent, web based automated system for
almost 1.1 lakh rural and agricultural feeders across country by acquiring various essential
parameters of all the outgoing 11kV rural feeders and such 66/33 kV incoming feeders from
where 11kV rural feeders are emanating and making the information available online for all
stakeholders. As on June 2020, 79,000 modems have been installed and integrated with National
Power Portal.

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020, your company has recorded an income of
7,916.45 lakh as compared to ¥4,045.17 lakh in previous financial year. The Profit before tax
and Profit after tax for the Financial Year 2019-20 was ¥7,054.72 lakh and <5,443.86 lakh
respectively. The Net worth of the company as on March 31, 2020 was %11,260.08 lakh.

The highlights of Financial Performance of the Company for the FY 2019-20 vis-a-vis
FY 2018-19 are given below:-

(X in Lakh except EPS)
Particulars FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
Total Revenue 7,916.45 4,045.17
Total Expenses 861.73 823.94
Profit Before Tax 7,054.72 3,221.22
Tax Expenses 1,610.86 761.23
Profit After Tax 5,443.86 2,459.99
Earnings Per Share (7) 10,887.71 4,919.97
Other Equity 11,255.08 11,838.99
Net Worth 11,260.08 11,843.99
3. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors in its Meeting held on February 14, 2020 has declared an Interim
dividend of *10,000/- per equity share, subject to the provisions of Section 123 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The total dividend pay-out for the financial year 2019-20 was
35,000 Lakh (excluding dividend distribution tax), which was paid in the month of March, 2020.
The Board of Directors has not recommended final dividend for the financial year 2019-20.
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4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

There is no transfer made to General Reserve during the year.

5. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is I5 Lakh divided into
50,000 equity shares of ¥10/- each and the entire paid-up share capital is held by REC Limited
(holding company) and its nominees.

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As per Article 110 of Articles of Association of Company, the number of Directors of the
Company shall not be less than 3 and not more than 12. The Company does not have any
Executive Director on its Board.

As on March 31, 2020, the Board comprised of the following directors:

SI. No. | Name of the Director Director Designation Date of
Identification Appointment
Number
(DIN)
1. Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal, | 02231613 Chairman | December 27,
Non-Executive Director and 2008
Chairman*
2. Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta, | 03464342 Director October 26, 2015
Non-Executive Director*
3. Shri Vijay Kumar Singh, 02772733 Director March 18, 2019
Non-Executive Director**

* As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Chairman & Managing Director of REC is the Ex-officio part
time Chairman on the Board of the Company, who shall not be liable to retire by rotation. Accordingly, Shri Sanjeev
Kumar Gupta is the ex-officio Chairman of the Company.

The Ministry of Power vide Order No. 46/2/2019-RE (247264) dated June 12, 2020 read with order of even no. dated
July 21, 2020, has assigned the additional charge of Chairman & Managing Director of the Company to Shri Sanjeev
Kumar Gupta, Director (Technical), for a period of three months with effect from June 1, 2020 or till the
appointment of a regular incumbent or until further orders, whichever is the earliest. Accordingly, Shri Sanjeev Kumar
Gupta has been appointed as Ex-officio chairman of the Company, in terms of Articles of Association of the
Company, in place of Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal who ceased to be Chairman RECTPCL on attaining
superannuation. Further, Ministry of Power, Government of India, vide its Order dated September 10, 2020, has
decided the continuance of the additional charge of the post of Chairman & Managing Director, REC Limited to Shri
Sanjeev Kumar Gupta, Director(Technical) in REC Limited w.e.f. September 1, 2020 for a period of one and half
month i.e. upto 15.10.2020 or till the appointment of a regular incumbent or until further orders, whichever is earlier.
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** Further, Shri Vijay Kumar Singh has ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f June 13, 2020.

**Shri Ajoy Choudhury, Director (Finance), REC, Shri Govind Singh Bhati, Executive Director
(Technical) and Shri Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw, Executive Director (Finance) have been appointed as
Additional Directors on the Board of the Company w.e.f. June 12, 2020.

All the Non-Executive Directors on the Board of the Company are nominated by the Holding
Company and they are not entitled to any remuneration from the Company. As per Article 111
of Articles of Association of Company, the Chairman & Managing Director of REC is the Ex-
officio part time Chairman on the Board of the Company, who shall not be liable to retire by
rotation. Further, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Additional Directors
are not liable to retire by rotation and hold office till ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Presently, Board consists of Chairman and Additional Directors only. In view of the above,
none of the Directors is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company is not required to appoint Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) in term of the
provisions of Section 203(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

7. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD, DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD
MEETINGS AND LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM).

During the Financial Year 2019-20, Seven (7) meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Company were held viz. (i) May 17, 2019; (i) July 31, 2019; (ii1)) August 27, 2019;
(iv) October 14, 2019; (v) October 30, 2019 (vi) January 27, 2020 and (vii) February 14, 2020.
The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company is also complying with the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises and Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India in respect of Board Meetings (SS-1) and General
Meetings (SS-2) to the extent applicable.

Annual General Meeting:- The last Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on
August 27, 2019.

During the Financial Year 2019-20, the details of Directors’ attendance at the Board Meetings,
last Annual General Meetings (AGM) and number of other Directorship held by Directors are
tabled below:

Sl. | Name of Director Board Meetings Attendance No. of other
No. at Last Directorships
He.ld Attended | Percentage AGM (held | As on March 31,
during of
the Attendance | °1 August | 2020 (other than
tenure 27, 2019) RECTPCL)

1. |Shri Ajeet Kumar 7 7 100 Present 3
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Agarwal, Non-
Executive Director
(Chairman)

2. |Shri Sanjeev Kumar 7 7 100 Present 2
Gupta, Non-
Executive Director

3. |Shri Vijay Kumar 7 7 100 Present 3
Singh, Non-
Executive Director

8. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The details of last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are as under:

Meeting | Financial | Date Venue Whether any
No. Year Special
Resolution
passed
10™ 2016-17 September 19, 2017 Core-4, SCOPE
- Complex, 7,
11 2017-18 September 17, 2018 Lodhi Road
New Delhi- No
12 2018-19 August 27, 2019 110003

No Extraordinary General Meetings was held during the financial year 2019-20. Further, no
resolutions have been passed by Postal Ballot during the financial year 2019-20.

General Shareholder Information

The details of Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2019-20 is as under:

Day and Date Venue
September 22, 2020 Core 4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi — 110 003

9. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

In accordance to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as on March 31, 2020, the Company
has 5 subsidiaries Companies namely Chandil Transmission Limited, Dumka Transmission
Limited, Koderma Transmission Limited, Mandar Transmission Limited and Dinchang
Transmission Limited. However, an application for striking off the name of the Company i.e.
Dinchang Transmission Limited, has been filed with the Registrar of Companies. The status of the
company is under process of Striking off.
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During the financial year, the companies which have become or ceased to be subsidiaries and a
report on the performance and financial position of each of such subsidiaries, as per the Companies
Act, 2013 is provided in Form AOC 1 which forms part of this Annual Report.

Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) are subsidiary companies in terms of the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013. However, these companies are managed as per the mandate from Government of India
(Gol)/ State Governments and the Company does not have the ability to direct the relevant
activities of these SPVs unilaterally. The Company therefore, considers its investment in respective
SPVs as associates having significant influence.

10. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s P. Jain & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No.000711C) were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20 by the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India. The Statutory Auditors have audited the Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. The Audited Financial Statements, Cash Flow
Statement and the required annexure together with the Auditors’ Report thereto are annexed to this
Report. There are no adverse comments, observation or reservations in the Statutory Auditors'
Report on the Financial Statements of the Company.

Further, M/s P. Jain & Company, Chartered Accountants have also been appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 by the Comptroller and Auditor General
(C&AQG) of India. Approval of the Members of the Company is being obtained in ensuing Annual
General Meeting, to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company, to fix the remuneration of
Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2020-21.

11. COMMENTS OF THE C&AG OF INDIA

The Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AGQG) of India has mentioned that on the basis of audit,
nothing significant has come to their knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or
supplement to Auditors’ Report. The copy of the same forms part of this Annual Report.

12. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Your Company does not appoint any permanent employees. However, holding company i.e. REC
Limited has deployed some of its employees on part-time/full time basis for operational
convenience and managing day to day affairs of the company, who are having rich and varied
experience in the respective fields.

The Company has also engaged Chartered Accountants, Engineering Graduates and other
professionals on contract basis through manpower supply agencies.
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S1. Particulars Nos. of Employees
No. As on As on
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
1. | Regular Employees deployed by REC on 10 9
secondment basis
1. | Fixed Tenure Staff 12 8
1. | Outsourced staff on Contract basis through 117 96
Manpower Supply Agency
Total 139 113

As on March 31, 2020; the Company had 11 (women employees), which includes both regular and
contractual staff, as against 6 (women employees) as on March 31, 2019.

13. PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, EXPENDITURE INCURRED ON RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.

There are no significant particulars, relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption,
expenditure on Research and Development, as your company does not own any manufacturing
facility. However, the Company has made intensive use of technology in its operations during the
year under review. Further, no Export initiatives were carried out during the year and the
Company has no earning or outgo in foreign exchange as per Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

The arrangements/transactions during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary
course of business and on arm’s length basis.

Disclosures of related party transactions and particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in
Section 188(1) of Companies Act, 2013, in prescribed Form AOC-2, as per Rule 8(2) of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is appended as Annexure to this Board’s report.

15.A STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A
RISK  MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR THE COMPANY INCLUDING
IDENTIFICATION THEREIN OF ELEMENTS OF RISK, IF ANY, WHICH IN THE
OPINION OF THE BOARD MAY THREATEN THE EXISTENCE OF THE COMPANY,
SHALL FORM PART OF THE BOARD'’S REPORT.

The Company has been created to carry out the role of Bid Process Coordinator (BPC) under the
Tariff Based Competitive Bidding (TBCB) process for selection of bidders as identified by the
Ministry of Power, Government of India for development of transmission projects. Hence,
presently a separate risk management policy for the company has not been developed. However
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16. MERGER OF RECTPCL WITH RECPDCL

In order to have a strong & focused base, better synergies in operations, greater ability to access
different market segments and to reap the benefits of higher capital base & pooled resources, it is
proposed to merge REC Transmission Projects Company Limited with REC Power Distribution
Company Limited.

Accordingly, as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and after
obtaining requisite approvals of Ministry of Power, Board of Directors, shareholders & creditors of
respective companies and approval of Holding Company i.e. REC, an application has been filed
with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on August 14, 2020, for sanction of Scheme of
Arrangement for amalgamation of RECTPCL (Transferor Company) with RECPDCL (Transferee
Company) and the approval of the same is awaited.

17.STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

a. There are no instances regarding non-compliance, penalties, strictures imposed on the
company by any statutory authority during the last three years.

b. There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which has occurred between the end of the financial year i.e. March 31, 2020 and
the date of this report, except the filing of application of merger.

c. The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year 2019-20.

d. The Company is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of REC Limited and accordingly, Presidential
Directives issued by the Central Government, if any, applicable to holding company shall
apply to the Company as well. The Company has complied with the Presidential Directives
issued by the Central Government for the financial year 2019-20 and for the last three years.

e. There 1s no expenditure debited in Books of accounts, which is not for the purpose of the
business.

f.  There is no expense incurred which are personal in nature and incurred for the Board of
Directors and Top Management.

g. The administrative and office expenses for the financial year 2019-20 is ¥296.43 Lakh as
compared to ¥331.96 Lakh during the financial year 2018-19. Further, during the financial year
2019-20, Administrative and office expenses as a percentage of total expenses were 34.40 % as
compared to 40.29% during the previous year.

h. There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the Financial Year
2019-20.

1. There were no significant and material orders, penalties or strictures imposed on the Company
by any statutory authority during the last three years impacting the going concern status and
the Company’s operations in future.
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j.  The Particulars of investments under Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are given in the
notes to accounts to financial statements of the Company and as such form part of this Annual
Report.

k. Adequate internal financial control is exercised keeping in view the size of operations of the
company.

1. The provision relating to Audit Committee is not applicable to the Company. However the
Financial Statements of the Company are being reviewed by Audit Committee of Holding
Company.

m. The Board of your company in its 44™ Meeting held on February 12, 2014 has approved that
being a wholly owned subsidiary Company of REC, the rules, regulations, policies &
guidelines adopted by REC shall be applicable mutatis mutandis on RECTPCL also. The same
1s adhered to by the Company.

n. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for the
products/services of the Company under Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014 under Section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, Cost Accounts and Records are not required to be
maintained by the Company.

o. The Statutory Auditors have issued Report on the financial statements of the Company as on
March 31, 2020 without any adverse remark/observations/qualification.

p. The Company ensures proper compliances of all statutory laws applicable to the Company and
all returns/reports were filed within stipulated time with the concerned authorities.

q. The Company has not entered into any material, financial or commercial transactions with the
Directors or the Management or their relatives or the companies and firms etc. in which they
are either directly or through their relatives interested as Directors and/or Partners. However,
your Company is executing the assignment received from its holding company, where
Directors/officers of your Company are working as Directors/Senior Officials.

r. The provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder are not
applicable to Government Companies.

s. The Company has not issued any stock options to the Directors or any employee of the
Company.

t.  There are no pending vigilance cases pertaining to RECTPCL as on March 31, 2020.

u. The Company has complied with the requirements of OM dated January 24, 2018 of the
Ministry of Parliament Affairs, Government of India to the extent applicable.

v. In pursuance of the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises
(CPSEs), 2010, issued by DPE, quarterly Compliance Report is being submitted to the
Ministry of Power within 15 days from the end of quarter and annual Compliance Report is
being submitted by May 31, every year. The details of submission of the quarter/annual report
are as under:

>
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Report for Quarter ended Date of submission of report
June 30, 2019 July 10, 2019
September 30, 2019 October 15, 2019
December 31, 2019 January 07, 2020
March 31, 2020* April 27, 2020
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A comprehensive report containing Annual Score for the Financial Year 2019-20 (consolidated
score of four quarters) was submitted to Ministry of Power on May 15, 2020.

*In view of Covid-19 crisis the due date was extended and the submission has made within the
prescribed time.

18. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 for
the FY 2019-20 forms part of the Annual Report and the same available at http://www.rectpcl.in.

19. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same.

b) such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and
estimates were made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and of the profit of the company for the
year ended on that date.

¢) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) the financial statements have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis.

e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

20. OBLIGATION OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF

WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013.

During the financial year 2019-20 no complaint of sexual harassment was received by the
Company under the provisions of 'Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013'. The Company has formed a committee under chairmanship
of senior women official of holding Company as required under "Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013”.
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During the financial year 2019-20, no applications were received under “Right to Information
Act, 2005 (RTD).

22.REPORTING UNDER PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY FOR MICRO & SMALL
ENTERPRISES (MSEs) ORDER, 2012

The Company is registered on the Trade Receivables Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set
up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of India.

RECTPCL being a subsidiary of REC, the set of rules, regulations, policies and guidelines
adopted in REC Limited (holding company) apply mutatis-mutandis to RECTPCL to the extent
applicable. Further, to encourage participation by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(MSMEs), all the directives mentioned in the Public Procurement Policy Order, 2012 have been
included in REC procurement guidelines including Micro and Small enterprises owned by
SC/ST and 1t has also been wuploaded on website of REC at the
link http://www.recindia.nic.in/uploads/files/Public Procurement Policy.pdf.

RECTPCL, being a Management Consultancy Organization, is not executing any project.
Hence, only petty purchase i.e. stationery and office equipment from small vendors are being
made.

23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility’ of the Company is in line with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. As per the provisions of Section 135 of
Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted “Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee”. CSR policy is available at
http://www.rectpcl.in/pdf/CSR_Sust_Policy.pdf

Composition and attendance of CSR Committee
During the Financial Year 2019-20, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprised of
the following Members:

Sl. | Name of the Committee | Position in | No. of Meeting | No. of
No. | Members Committee held during the | Meetings
tenure attended
1. | Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal Chairman 1 1
2. | Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta Member 1 1
3. | Shri Vijay Kumar Singh Member 1 1

The quorum of CSR Committee was two members including the Chairman of the Committee.
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During the Financial Year 2019-20, one Meeting of the CSR Committee was held on
July 31, 2019.

The CSR Committee has been reconstituted by the Board of Directors in its 98" Board Meeting held
on June 12, 2020 as follow:-

a) Shri Ajoy Choudhury, Director, Chairman of the Committee

b) Shri G.S. Bhati Director, Member of the Committee

o)) Shri R.P. Vaishnaw, Director, Member of the Committee.

The CSR Budget for the financial year 2019-20 was ¥85.94 Lakh towards CSR activities/projects.
Further, committed and undisbursed amount of the previous year of T115.63 Lakh was added to the
CSR budget of current year, therefore the total CSR Budget works out to ¥201.57 Lakh. In view of
the outbreak of pandemic coronavirus, the Company has spent ¥10 Lakh towards distribution of
food packets, during the Financial Year 2020-21.

A detailed Annual Report, in terms of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, on CSR and Sustainability activities is annexed to this Report.

24. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

As per Clause 8.2 of Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises,
2010 issued by DPE, the Certificate confirming the compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, obtained from M/s Pranav Kumar &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, is annexed to this Report.

25.STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

Information required to be furnished as per the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable statutory
rovisions is annexed to this report as under:

Particulars Annexure

Management Discussion & Analysis Report 1

Annual Report on CSR Activities 1T

Extract of Annual Return I

v

A\

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangement with Related Parties
Certificate on Corporate Governance
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ANNEXURE-I TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

Management Discussion & Analysis Report

The Management of the Company is pleased to present its report on the Industry Scenario
including on the Company’s performance during the financial year 2019-20.

OVERVIEW

India is the second most populous country in the world and one of the world’s fastest-growing
major economies, India will be vital for the future of the global energy markets. India has made
remarkable progress in last decade in increasing citizens’ access to electricity and implementation
of various energy efficiency measures in Power Sector. The Indian economy grew at 4.2% in
fiscal 2019-20, with the year ending on the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and a nationwide
lockdown. The power related services in the country witnessed limited disruption due to COVID-
19, as these services come under essential services category. The sector, however, witnessed a
significant impact. The demand for power fell steeply on account of the drop in commercial and
industrial activity. Power distribution was impacted with fall in revenue collections, affecting the
financial and liquidity position of players in the sector. As the lockdown is being lifted, power
demand has started to recover.

Power is one of the most critical components of infrastructure, crucial for the economic growth
and welfare of nations. The existence and development of adequate infrastructure is essential for
sustained growth of the Indian economy. India’s power sector is one of the most diversified in the
world. Sources of power generation range from conventional sources such as coal, lignite, natural
gas, oil, hydro and nuclear power to viable non-conventional sources such as wind, solar and
agricultural & domestic waste. The generation mix in the country has also witnessed increased
penetration of renewable energy sources. India is pursuing a very ambitious target of having 175
GW of installed renewable energy capacity by year 2022, which includes 100 GW of solar power
alone. Energy efficiency is being pursued through innovative programmes such as UJALA, for
replacing incandescent light bulbs with LEDs. Indian power sector is undergoing a significant
change that has redefined the industry outlook. Sustained economic growth continues to drive
electricity demand in India.

The Government of India’s focus on attaining ‘24X7 Power for all’ has accelerated capacity
addition in the country. As on March 31, 2020, the installed power generating capacity in the
country stood over 370 GW which included 93,477 MW (25%) in the Central Sector, 1,03,322
MW (28%) in the State Sector and 173,308 MW (47%) in the Private Sector. The demand has
been slightly muted over the last two years. Keeping in view of the Country’s per capita electricity
consumption being way below the existing world’s average per capita consumption, a calibrated
capacity addition needs to be continued with on consistent basis to improve and sustain the
economic activity in the hinterlands. With surplus coal and power, the Government is taking
several initiatives to provide 24X7 quality power for all.
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INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

Industry Overview

India is the third largest producer and third largest consumer of electricity in the world, with total
installed power capacity of over 370 GW as on March 31, 2020. Indian power sector is highly
diversified with conventional sources such as coal, lignite, natural gas, oil, hydro and nuclear
power on one hand; and renewable energy sources such as solar power, wind power and
agriculture & domestic waste, on the other hand. The natural resources for electricity generation
in India are unevenly dispersed and concentrated in just few pockets. Transmission, an important
element in the power delivery value chain, facilitates evacuation of power from generating
stations and its delivery to the load centres. For efficient dispatch of power to deficit regions,
strengthening the transmission system network, enhancing the Inter-State power transmission
system and augmentation of the National Grid are required. An extensive network of
transmission lines has been developed over the years for evacuating power produced by different
electricity generating stations and distributing the same to the consumers. The nominal Extra
High Voltage lines in vogue are + 800 kV HVDC & 765 kV, 400 kV, 230/220 kV, 110 kV and 66
kV AC lines.

The country’s power transmission sector has witnessed unprecedented growth in the past five
years, with line length and transformation capacity growing. Further, both operational and
financial performances of the transmission utilities have witnessed an improvement. Going
forward, an estimated 2.6 trillion investments are required in the transmission sector to meet
future peak load, which is expected to reach 234 GW by 2021-22. The private sector is expected
to play an important role in achieving the country’s grid expansion targets, as competitive
bidding gains momentum at both inter-state and intra-state levels.

The Government has taken several policy measures for improvement of the power transmission
sector of the country. Several grid expansion programmes such as the Green Energy Corridor and
cross-border links are underway to expand the physical grid infrastructure. Further, transmission
utilities, at the central and state level are expected to invest significantly in new technologies to
make grids more reliable, resilient, secure and smart. The sector is also expected to immensely
benefit from major policy reforms, including the Electricity Act amendments and the Tariff
Policy amendments.

During the financial year 2019-20, a total of 11,664 cKm (circuit kilometers) of transmission lines
were added, as compared to about 22,437 cKm during the previous fiscal. Transmission sector
works as a foundation stone, strongly holding the development of power generation &
distribution segments. The growth of power sector is contingent to development of a robust and a
reliable transmission network.

PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

RECTPCL is conducting the bidding process for Inter-state and Intra-state transmission projects
in the optimum time span and with transparency, starting from selection of qualified bidders to
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handing over of the Special Purpose Vehicle to the lowest bidder. This has led to greater
participation of the private sector in the transmission business domain and hence greater
competition. Presently, the works undertaken by RECTPCL include the following:

Urja Mitra

Urja Mitra is a distribution sector initiative of Ministry of Power, Government of India, being
implemented through your Company. Urja Mitra is first of its kind application which provides a
central platform (web-portal www.urjamitra.com as well as mobile app) for State Power
Distribution utilities to disseminate Power Outage information to urban/ rural power consumers
across India through SMS/email/push notifications.

11 kV Rural Feeder Monitoring Scheme

11kV Rural Feeder Monitoring is a distribution sector initiative of Ministry of Power,
Government of India, being implemented through your Company. The scheme aims to enable
monitoring of energy input/power supply at feeder level and also to give an accurate picture of
power supply in rural area of country to ensure achievement of "24x7 Power for All".

Tarang

TARANG is a transmission sector initiative for its better monitoring, being run under guidance
from Ministry of Power through your company, which has developed “TARANG’- Transmission
App for Real-Time Monitoring & Growth. TARANG is an informative medium to provide
information regarding Pan-India progress of Transmission System which can be drilled down to
month wise, agency wise, state wise, etc.

OPPORTUNITIES

India’s power sector is experiencing a considerable reformation that has redefined the industry
outlook. Further, the Ministry of Power, Government of India has launched various programmes
to transform its vision of ‘24x7 Power for All’ into reality. Incredible work has been done towards
achieving 100% electrification of all villages and households in the country. In fact, successful
implementation of Saubhagya, with access of electricity in every household, will create huge
latent demand for power in the near future.

The increase in power demand will also require robust Transmission & Distribution
infrastructure, thereby attracting more investment in underground cabling, smart meters &
equipment, AMI / AMR infrastructure and Smart Grid etc., to cater to 24x7 power demand of
all consumers. Further, the investment needs for creation of dedicated Green Corridors and new
network under the Tariff Based Competitive Bidding route are enormous.

With its strategic positioning and expertise in the Transmission sector, RECTPCL is poised for
the existing and emerging opportunities presented by the economic development, emanating from
leading government reforms and increasing per capita demand for electricity in the country.
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THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS

A slowdown in the economic growth in India, coupled with the continuing impact of COVID-19
pandemic, is likely to impact the business of the Company adversely. RECTPCL’s performance
and growth of its business are dependent on the performance of the overall Indian economy. The
loss caused to GDP due to nationwide lockdown, followed by local lockdowns in various States,
would result in a shortfall in public finances. The global economy has been hit hard by the
unexpected and widespread outbreak of COVID-19, which has now posed fresh challenges across
all geographies and sectors. The power sector is expected to face new problems like disruption of
project execution schedules, migrant labour movement, pressure on finances and liquidity
crunch.

The Power Sector in itself has several high risks, with a plethora of common issues of
infrastructure projects, longer time horizon, dynamic policy environment and intense
competition. The Company is concerned about prevailing exposure norms, poor financial health
of State DISCOMs, high AT&C losses, entry of new players in the market, rising competition,
uncertain business environment etc. Further, the average national PLFs have been low and the
State DISCOMs have a muted demand. While there have been no recent long term PPAs floated
by DISCOMs, the tariffs at power exchanges have also not seen any uptick, resulting in pressure
on the operating assets. Adding to that, disruptions caused due to COVID-19 would continue to
affect RECTPCL directly or indirectly, till normalcy resumes.

OUTLOOK

India is expected to remain one of the fastest growing emerging market economies in the world,
despite challenging business environment. With key reforms on the block, India is seen as an
engine of global growth. In the power sector, enhanced spending, faster implementation and
continuation of reforms are expected to provide further impetus to growth. Considering low
levels of per capita energy consumption in India vis-a-vis the world average; and the
Government’s strong efforts towards economic development, it is felt that the outlook for power
sector remains strong in the long term. With a proactive role of the Government in addressing the
issues affecting the power sector adversely, there is a promising business outlook for the
Company.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING-RATING

RECTPCL’s performance has been rated as “Excellent” against the Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) signed with REC Limited (holding company) for financial year 2018-19.
The Company has not signed MoU for financial year 2019-20.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company maintains an adequate system of Internal Controls including suitable monitoring
procedures to ensure accurate and timely financial reporting of various transactions, efficiency of
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operations and compliance with statutory laws, regulations and Company policies. Suitable
delegation of powers and guidelines for accounting has been issued for uniform compliance.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020, your company has recorded an income of
7916.45 Lakh as compared ¥4045.17 Lakh in previous financial year. The Profit before tax and
Profit after tax for the FY 2019-20 was ¥7054.72 Lakh and ¥5443.86 Lakh respectively. The Net
worth of the company as on March 31, 2020 was ¥11260.08 Lakh.

HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company does not appoint any permanent employees. However, the holding company i.e.
REC Limited (formerly Rural Electrification Corporation Limited) has deployed some of its
employees on part-time/full time basis for operational convenience and managing day to day
affairs of the company, who are having rich and varied experience in the respective fields. The
Company has also engaged Fixed Tenure Staff and manpower on contract/ flexi manpower.
Further, the Industrial Relations in the Company continued to be cordial.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Company is complying with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made
thereunder and DPE Guidelines in respect of CSR.

As a responsible corporate citizen, RECTPCL has been actively pursuing various initiatives on
the front of CSR and Sustainable Development. During the financial year 2019-20, the Company
has CSR budget of ¥85.94 Lakh towards CSR activities/projects. Further, committed and
undisbursed amount of the previous year of I115.63 Lakh was added to the CSR budget of
current year, therefore the total CSR budget works out to ¥201.57 Lakh.

Cautionary Note

Certain statements in “Management Discussion and Analysis” section may be forward looking and are
stated as required by applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, which could
be different from what the Management envisages in terms of future performance and outlook.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of Project or programs
proposed to be undertaken and reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programs.

The CSR Policy of RECTPCL is mutatis mutandis to the CSR policy of REC Limited (formerly
Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (holding company). The Company adopted an
integrated approach to address the community, societal & environmental concerns by taking up
activities strategically in project mode and in a focused manner to the extent possible. The
Company is carrying out CSR projects/ programs in line with activities prescribed under Schedule
VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The web link of CSR policy of RECTPCL is available at
http://rectpcl.in/pdf/CSR_Sust Policy.pdf

et

The Composition of the CSR Committee.
The Composition of CSR Committee of RECTPCL as on March 31, 2020 is as follows;

a) Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal, Chairman-RECTPCL, Chairman of the Committee
b) Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta, Director-RECTPCL, Member of the Committee
c¢) Shri V. K. Singh, Director-RECTPCL, Member of the Committee.

However, the CSR Committee has been reconstituted on June 12, 2020 as follow:-
a) Shri Ajoy Choudhury, Director-RECTPCL, Chairman of the Committee

b) Shri G.S. Bhati, Director-RECTPCL, Member of the Committee

¢) Shri R.P. Vaishnaw, Director RECTPCL, Member of the Committee.

(98]

The Composition of the Sub-Committee on CSR of RECTPCL
The Composition of Sub-Committee on CSR of RECTPCL is as follows;
a) Shri Bhupender Gupta, Addl. CEO- RECTPCL

b) Shri S Muralidharan, CFO, RECTPCL
¢) Dr. Pankaj Verma, GM, RECTPCL

o

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years.

Average net profit of the RECTPCL, for last three FY is ¥4,297.10 Lakh.

&

Prescribed CSR Budget

Approved CSR budget for CSR for FY- 2019-20 is I85.94 Lakh (2% of amount of average Net
Profit for the last three years).

The details of CSR budget:

S1. No. Particulars Amount in Lakhs

1 2% of Average Net Profit for last three FY 85.94
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Profit for last three years: - (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
PBT, as per the provisions of the Companies 4,985.79 4,684.30 3.221.22
Act, 2013

Average profit of last 3 financial years - - 4,297.10
CSR @ 2% for FY 2019-20 - - 85.94
Add: Balance unspent amount for FY i ) 115.63
2018-19 :

Total Budget for CSR for FY 2019-20 - - 201.57

6. Details of CSR Activities undertaken during the financial year;

a) During the financial year 2019-20 following projects were examined and sanctioned:

CSR Details
SI. . Budget Sanctioned
No Year Name of the Projects Amount Amount
CSR Activities 85,94,000
1 2019-20 |Distribution of Food Packets during Lockdown* 10,00,000
ASHI Home for Aged Welfare Association
2 | 2019-20 (AHAWA) 58,09,905
3 | 2019-20 |[Eureka Forbes Institute of Environment (EFIE) 11,74,696
Total 85,94,000 79,84,601

*Post facto approval has been taken and disbursement in respect of the same has been made in the
Financial Year 2020-21

b) Previous year sanctioned projects were monitored and inauguration of seven water supply
system in government school in Maharashtra project was achieved.

In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Board report.

The Company has sanctioned two projects during the Financial Year 2019-20 and the agreements have
been executed. However due to Covid-19 pandemic, the milestones for releasing the payments could
not be achieved. As the CSR unspent amount is being carried forward to the next Financial Year 2020-
21, the payments will be disbursed in FY 2020-21 as per the progress on achieving the milestone.

o0

. The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and
policy of the company.

L ;*,-'?EI*;TF_:'“__*._“" e #J%LW%

]()sthri R.P.lzlé(i:sl;‘rl;zlcvg (Shri Ajoy Choudhury)
trector- Chairman- CSR Committee
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FORM NO. MGT -9 ANNEXURE-III TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on March 31, 2020

(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.)

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. | CIN U40101DL2007GOI1157558

2. | Registration Date January 8, 2007

3. | Name of the Company REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

4. | Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by shares / Union Government Company
5. | Address of the Registered office & contact details Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7 Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003.

Phone. No.- 011-410 20101 Fax No.- 011-2436 0644
E-mail: contactus@rectpcl.com

Whether listed company No
7. | Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & Transfer Agent, ifany. | Not applicable

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

S1. | Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the | % to total
No. Product/service | turnover of the
company
1. | To promote organize or carry on the business of consultancy services and/or project implementation 7020 100%
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AS ON MARCH 31, 2020:

Sl. | Name of the Address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of shares | Applicable
No. | Company Subsidiary/Associate | held Section
1. | Power Finance ‘URJANIDHTI’, 1, Barakhamba | L65910DL1986G01024862 Holding Company NIL 2(46)
Corporation Limited | Lane, Connaught Place, New (52.63% Shares of
(PFC) Delhi-110001 REC Limited held by
PFC Limited)
2. | REC Limited Core 4, SCOPE Complex, 7, L40101DL1969G0OI1005095 Holding Company 100% 2(46)

Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003.

3. | Dinchang U40300D1L2015G01288066
Transmission
Limited*
4. | Chandil Transmission U40108D1L2018G0OI1330905
Limited
5. | Koderma U40300D1.2018G01331192
Transmission Limited 100° (87
6. | Dumka Transmission U40300D1.2018G0I1331490 | Subsidiary Company 7 (87)
Limited
7. | Mandar Transmission U40101DL2018G0OI1331526
Limited
Notes:

- REC Transmission Projects Company Limited (RECTPCL) acts as “Bid Process Coordinator” for selection of Transmission Service Provider(s), through Tariff
Based Competitive Bidding (TBCB) process for independent inter-state and intra-state transmission projects allocated by the Ministry of Power (MoP), Government
of India and State Governments from time to time. In order to initiate development of each of such independent transmission project allocated to it, RECTPCL
incorporates project specific Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as its wholly-owned subsidiary, which is also a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of REC as per the provisions
of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, such SPVs are subsequently transferred along with all assets and liabilities to the successful bidder(s) selected
through TBCB process.

- During the financial year 2019-20, one project specific special purpose vehicle i.e. Rampur Sambhal Transco Limited was incorporated on May 02, 2019. Further,
during the financial year 2019-20, 8 (Eight) SPVs were transferred to successful bidders selected through TBCB process. Details about the same are given in the
Board’s Report forming part of this Annual Report.
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- Further, Nine SPVs were incorporated namely Kallam Transmission Limited on May 28, 2020, Gadag Transmission Limited on June 02, 2020, Fatehgarh Bhadla
Transco Limited on June 02, 2020, Rajgarh Transmission Limited on June 06, 2020, Bidar Transmission Limited on June 08, 2020, Sikar New Transmission
Limited on June 11, 2020, Ramgarh New Transmission Limited on June 26, 2020, MP Power Transmission Package-I Limited on August 04, 2020 and MP Power
Transmission Package-II Limited on August 20, 2020.

*Ministry of Power vide Gazette Notification dated February 1, 2019 had de-notified the project for “Transmission System for Phase-1 Generation Projects in

Arunachal

Pradesh” allocated to your Company to act as Bid Process Coordinator. The application for striking off the name of the Company i.e. Dinchang

Transmission Limited, a project specific Special Purpose Vehicle in respect of above transmission project, has been filed with the Registrar of Companies. The status
of the company is under process of Striking off.

. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
[As on April 1, 2019] [As on March 31, 2020] during
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total the year
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. 0 50,000 50,000 100 0 50,000 50,000 100 0
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A)(1) 0 50,000 50,000 100 0 50,000 50,000 100 0
(2) Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(@)  NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(b)  Other-individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(© Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0




(d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(e) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A) (2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total shareholding of 0 50,000 50,000 100 0 50,000 50,000 100 0
Promoter (A) = (A)(1) +
(A)2)
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital Funds
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Insurance Companies
g) Flls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(1):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i1) Overseas




b) Individuals

1) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakh

i1) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of
Rs.1lakh

c) Others
(specify)(Trustee)

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding (B)=(B)(1)+
B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

0

50,000

50,000

100

0

50,000

50,000

100

Note: The entire Paid-up Share Capital of REC Transmission Profects Company Limited is held by REC Limited (holding company) and its six Nominees.




ii) Shareholding of Promoter-

SI. , Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
No. Shareholder’s Name (As on April 1, 2019) (As on March 31, 2020) shareholding
No. of | % of total % of Shares No. of % of total % of Shares | during the year
Shares Shares of Pledged / Shares Shares of the Pledged /
the encumbered to company encumbered
company total shares to total
shares
1 REC Limited 49,994 99.988 0.00 49,994 99.988 0 0
2 | Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
3 | Shri Sanjeev Kumar Gupta* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
4 | Shri Sanjiv Garg* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
5 | Shri Ashok Awasthi* 1 0.002 0.00 0 0.00 0 -0.002
6 | Shri Ajoy Choudhury* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
7. | Shri V.K. Singh* 1 0.002 0.00 1 0.002 0 0
8. | Shri G.S. Bhati* 0 0.00 0.00 1 0.002 0 +0.002
Total 50,000 100 0.00 50,000 100 0 0

* As nominee of REC Limited i.e. holding Company.




iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):

SL. Name of the Shareholder Shareholding at the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding at the end of the year
No. year (As on March 31, 2020)
(As on April 1, 2019)
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
REC Limited

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year

No Change

Note: REC Limited along with its nominees holds the entire Paid-up Share Capital of 35,00,000 divided into 50,000 equity share of ¥10/- each in the Company
and there is no change in the Promoter's Shareholding during the financial year 2019-20 except 1 equity share of I10/- held by Shri Ashok Awasthi was
transferred to Shri G.S. Bhati on January 27, 2020. Further, on July 2, 2020, 1 equity share of I10/- held by Shri Sanjiv Garg was transferred to Shri
R.P. Vaishnaw and 1 equity share of ¥10/- held by Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal was transferred to Shri Sanjay Kumar.




ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl1. Name of the Shareholder Shareholding at the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding at the end of the year
No. year (As on March 31, 2020)
(As on April 1, 2019)
No. of % of total No. of shares % of total
shares shares of the shares of the
company company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the | Nil. REC Limited along with its Six Nominees holds the entire Paid-up Share Capital

reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / | ¥5,00,000 divided into 50000 equity share of T10/- each in the Company.
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

S1. Name of the Director/KMP Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding at the
No. the year end of the year
(As on April 1, 2019) (As on March 31, 2020)
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of shares of
the the
company company

1 Shri Ajeet Kumar Agarwal (Non-Executive Director)
(DIN: 02231613)*

1 Equity Share of 0.002 1 Equity Share of 0.002
At the beginning of the year Z10/- as nominee Z10/- as nominee
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the 0 0 0 0

year specifying the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 1 Equity Share of 0.002 1 Equity Share of 0.002
Z10/- as nominee Z10/- as nominee
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2 Shri Sanjeevn Kumar Gupta (Non-Executive Director)
(DIN: 03464342)

At the beginning of the year 1 Equity Share of 0.002 1 Equity Share of 0.002
Z10/- as nominee Z10/- as nominee
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the 0 0 0 0
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year 1 Equity Share of 0.002 1 Equity Share of 0.002
%10/- as nominee %10/- as nominee

3. Shri Vijay Kumar Singh (Non-Executive Director)
(DIN: 02772733)

At the beginning of the year 1 Equity Share of ¥10/- 0.002 1 Equity Share of ¥10/- 0.002
as nominee as nominee
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the 0 0 0 0

year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year 1 Equity Share of %10/- 0.002 1 Equity Share of 10/- 0.002
as nominee as nominee

* Superannuated on May 31, 2020

V. INDEBTEDNESS -
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amount in %)
Secured Loans. excluding Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
(i) Principal Amount 0 0 0 0
(i) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
(iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0

Total (i+ii+iii) 0 0 0 0




Change in Indebtedness during the

financial year

* Addition 0 5,00,00,000 0 5,00,00,000

* Reduction 0 0 0 0

Net Change 0 0 0 0

Indebtedness at the end of the financial

year

(i) Principal Amount 0 5,00,00,000 0 5,00,00,000

(i1) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0

(ii1) Interest accrued but not due 0 2,15,068 0 2,15,068
Total (i+ii+iii) 0 5,02,15,068 0 5,02,15,068

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SI. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

No.

Shri Ajeet Kumar Shri Sanjeev Kumar Shri Vijay Kumar
Agarwal Gupta (Non-Executive Singh (Non-

(Non-Executive Director) Executive Director)

Director)

1 Gross salary 0 0 0
(a) Salary as per provisions 0 0 0
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 0 0 0
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 0 0 0
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option 0 0 0




3 Sweat Equity

0

0

4 Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5 Others, please specify

Total (A)

o

(e}

o

o

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other director

S1. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount

1

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify SALARY

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

OO O|IO|O| OO0 O OO

OO |O|I0O|O| C|Io|Ioo O oo

OO0 |I0O|O| O|I0|I0|0 O oo

OO O|IO|O| OIC|IO|IO| O OO

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

o

o

o

[e)
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:

Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Company Secretary CFO Total
1 Gross salary 0 0 0 0
(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 0 0 0 0
1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 0 0 0 0
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 0 0 0 0
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option 0 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0 0
- as % of profit 0 0 0 0
- Others specify... 0 0 0 0
5 Others, please specify 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0

Note: The Directors of RECTPCL are the non-executive directors on its Board and they are not drawing any remuneration either on monthly or annual basis from
the Company.
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Penalty / Authority Appeal made,
the Description | Punishment/ Compounding | [RD / NCLT/ COURT] if any (give Details)
Companies fees imposed

Act

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty NIL
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL
Punishment
Compounding
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
o)
(Sanjeev Kumar Gupta)
Date: September 21, 2020 Chairman

Place: New Delhi (DIN: 03464342)
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ANNEXURE-IV TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section
(1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: No material contracts or arrangements or transactions
were entered by the Company with any Related Party,
during financial year 2019-20.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis, during financial year 2019-20:

Name(s) of the | Nature of | Duration of the | Salient terms of the | Date(s) of | Amount paid as
related party and | contracts/arrangem | contracts / | contracts or arrangements | approval by the | advances/booked as
nature of | ents/transactions arrangements/ | or transactions including | Board, if any advances against
relationship transactions the value, if any expenses in respect of

SPVs , if any

REC Limited Apportionment  of On-going Payment of employee cost
(Holding Employee Cost and transaction and administration expenses
Company) administration 0f¥580.91 Lakhs/- on actual
expenses incurred by basis during the financial NIL
the holding year 2019-20.
company on behalf
of RECTPCL.
Dinchang Reimbursement of On-going Nil/- during the financial
Transmission Expenses and transaction year 2019-20.
Limited Interest. NIL
(Subsidiary

company)
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Dinchang Transmission Limited has been de-notified by Ministry of Power vide Gazette
Notification dated February 1, 2019. Further, No Objection has been received from Ministry of
Power for striking off the name of Dinchang Transmission Limited (a Wholly Owned Subsidiary
of RECTPCL) under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 from the Register of Companies vide
letter dated 31.03.2020. The Application for striking off the Name of the Company from the
ROC has been filed. The status of the Company is under process of Striking off.

Dumka Reimbursement of On-going ¥52.26 Lakhs during the NIL

Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2019-20.

Limited Interest

(Subsidiary

company)

Chandil Reimbursement  of On-going ¥53.36 Lakhs during the NIL

Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2019-20.

Limited Interest

(Subsidiary

company)

Mandar Reimbursement of On-going 348.84 Lakhs during the NIL

Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2019-20.

Limited Interest

(Subsidiary

company)

Koderma Reimbursement of On-going ¥50.03 Lakhs during the NIL

Transmission Expenses and transaction financial year 2019-20.

Limited Interest

(Subsidiary

company)

Bhind Guna | Consultancy Fees, On-going 3440.24 Lakhs during the %41.30 Lakhs received as

Transmission Reimbursement of | transaction till | financial year 2019-20. advance against the

Limited Expenses and | date of transfer expenses incurred/ to be

(Subsidiary Interest (11.09.2019) to incurred, which is

company) selected bidder adjusted  during the
M/s Power Grid transfer.

Corporation of




India Ltd.

Udupi Kasargode
Transmission
Limited
(Subsidiary
company)

Consultancy Fees,
Reimbursement of
Expenses and
Interest

On-going
transaction till
date of transfer
(12.09.2019) to
selected bidder

M/s Sterlite
Grid 14 Limited

%809.48 Lakhs during the
financial year 2019-20.

Ajmer Phagi
Tranco  Limited
(Subsidiary
company)

Consultancy Fees,
Reimbursement  of
Expenses and
Interest

On-going
transaction till
date of transfer
(03.10.2019) to
selected bidder

M/s Power Grid
Corporation of
India Ltd.

%1019.46 Lakhs during the
financial year 2019-20.

%23.60 Lakhs received as
advance against the
expenses incurred/ to be
incurred, which is
adjusted  during the
transfer.

Jam Khambaliya
Transco Limited

Consultancy Fees,
Reimbursement of

On-going
transaction till

¥546.06 Lakhs during the
financial year 2019-20.

%17.70 Lakhs received as
advance against the

(Subsidiary Expenses and | date of transfer expenses incurred/ to be
company) Interest (13.11.2019) to incurred, which is
selected bidder adjusted  during the
M/s Adani transfer.
Transmission
Ltd.
WRSS XXI (A) | Consultancy Fees, On-going 1296.89 Lakhs during the %46.10 Lakhs received as

Transco Limited
(Subsidiary
company)

Reimbursement of
Expenses and
Interest

transaction till
date of transfer
(14.10.2019) to
selected bidder
M/s Adani

financial year 2019-20.

advance against the
expenses incurred/ to be
incurred, which is
adjusted  during the
transfer.




Transmission
Ltd.

Khetri  Transco | Consultancy Fees, On-going %1660.24 Lakhs during the ¥5.90 Lakhs received as
Limited Reimbursement of | transaction till | financial year 2019-20 advance against the
(Subsidiary Expenses and | date of transfer expenses incurred/ to be
company) Interest (29.08.2019) to incurred, which is

selected bidder adjusted  during the

M/s Power Grid transfer
Corporation of
India Ltd.
Lakadia Consultancy Fees, On-going 1250.20 Lakhs during the Nil
Banaskantha Reimbursement of | transaction till | financial year 2019-20.
Transco Limited | Expenses and | date of transfer
(Subsidiary Interest (13.11.2019) to
company) selected bidder
M/s Adani
Transmission
Ltd.

Rampur Sambhal | Consultancy Fees, On-going 3685.82 Lakhs during the 328.40 Lakhs received as
Transco Limited | Reimbursement of | transaction till | financial year 2019-20. advance against the

Expenses and
Interest

date of transfer
(12.12.2019) to
selected bidder
M/s Power Grid
Corporation of
India Ltd.

expenses incurred/ to be

incurred, which is
adjusted  during the
transfer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N

(Sanjeev Kumar Gupta)
Chairman
(DIN: 03464342)
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S\ %,  Pranav Kumar & Associates
P = (2 2 .
Company Secretaries

Ph - 0120 4126564; Website -www.pkacs.in; E-mail services@pkacs.in

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited,
Core-4, Scope Complex 7,

Lodhi Road, New Delhi

This is to certify that during the financial year 2019-20, REC Transmission Projects
Company Limited (CIN- U40101DL2007GOI157558) hereinafter referred to as “the
Company” has complied with the provisions of Guidelines on Corporate Governance for
Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs), 2010, issued by Department of Public Enterprises
(DPE) vide O.M. No. 18(8)/ 2005- GM dated 14" May, 2010 (including any amendments or
modification from time to time), to the extent applicable.

This certificate is issued on the representation of officials of the Company and verification of
the compliance documents on test check basis. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion of financial statements of the Company.

For Pranav Kumar & Associates,
Company Secretaries

Date: 03/07/2020
Place: Ghaziabad (Partner)
Membership No.: ACS-23822
COP No. : 11962

Head Office: 3F-CS-70, Third Floor, Ansal Plaza, Sector - 1, Vaishali, Ghaziabad - 201010 (U.P.)
Branch office- Kunti Sadan, Mahatma Buddh Path, Road No. 14, Keshri Nagar, Near Chitragupta Mandir, Patna (Bihar) — 800024
Ph. No. 8877939883, 8051548350
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
(CIN: U40101DL2007GO1157558)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020

(Al amount i T Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

57

Particulars Notes Bane e
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment & 21.52 27,36
Oxther Intangnble assets 5 0,37 1,36
Fwancial assets

[nvestments 3 7.526.57 #,857.30

I'rade recervables 9 1.361.52 .00

Larans T 0:20 57.01

Other financial assets " .84 8638
Dlefereed tix assets (net) i} B1.497 :
Total non-current assets 9,028.99 9,008,851
Current asscts
Financial asscts

Trade recennbles 0 30220 2.200,29

tash and cash equrvalents 10 14,803.87 104711

Other bank balances 11 91.51 33,04

Loans 12 40.91

Oither imancial assels 13 126.16 #52.13
Current mx assers (net) 14 20210 14543
Orther current assers 13 34970 106 83
Assets classified as held for sale 16 033.47 95544
Total current assets 16,959.92 19,620.93
TOTAL ASSETS 25,988.91 28,629.74
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
ity
Py share capral 17 S 3.nl
Onher ey 18 11,235.08 11,838.99
Tortal equiry 11,260.08 11,543.99
Non-current linbilities
Provisions 9 1120 6,30
Deferred s habilities {ner) 20 - 017
Total non-current liabilities 11.20 6.47
Current liabilities
Financial lakahines

Pairrowings 21 SO0

Chher financial habalines 23 14,021.57 1541438
(ither current habiines 23 127 50 135682
Prowvisions 2 10,34 (IS L]
Laabuhties dhreetly assocmted with assets classifed as held . 2

16 65.22 T84

for sale

Total current liabilitics

Total abilines

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accomps

14,717.63

16,779.28

14,728.83

16,785.75

25 0801

28,629.74

ng notes 1 to 42 are integral part of the financial statements,

I'his 1s the balanee sheer referred to i our audst report of eyen date

For I, Jain & Company

duirtered Accountants

e ’R"D"Jojp

r

-~

(Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)
Dirccroe
DIN Nos 02772733

Fewe ancd on behal§ of Board of Dircetnes of

RECTr

Projeces Comy

v Limited

(OO0 200700 13T358)

\

(Sh. Rameshwar Prasad Vaishnaw)

Dicecror
IDIN Nos 01868883
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(LIN: U4UIVID L2V /GULLS f008)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Al amount in T Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

58

For the year ended

For the year ended

b Rows 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue
Revenue from operations 25 6,643.29 2.869.53
Odther income 26 1,273.16 1,175.64
Total income 7,916.45 4,045.17
Expenses
Cost of services rendered 27 10054 133:93
Employee benefits expense 25 107.75 16967
Finance costs 29 15.14 31.61
Deprecianon and amortisation expense 30 13,51 14,40
Impairment of asset 31 322.61 112:43
Corporate socal responsibilty expenses 42 (X1IL) i 27,65
Onher expenses 32 302.18 33426
Total expenses 861.73 823.94
Profit before tax 7,054.72 3,221.22
Tax expense 33
Current tax 1,693 (41 TO2.43
Deferred rax expense/ (Income) (82.14) (1.200)
1,610.86 761.23
Net profit for the year 5,443.86 2,459.99
Other comprehensive Income/(loss)
ltems that will nor be reclassified to profit o loss
Re-measurement gams/ (losses) an defined benefir plans - L
Income tax relating o these items -
Other comprehensive Income/ (loss) for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,443.86 2,459.99

Earnings per equity share

Basie/dilured earnings per share (in Rupees)

Summary of significant accounting policies
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10,887.71

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 are integral part of the financial statements,

This 1s the statement of total comprehensive income referred 1o i our audit report of even date.

For P.Jain & Company

MRN:097279
Place: New Delhi

(Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh})
Director
DIN Nao.: 02772733

Place: New Delht

4,919.97

For and on behall of Board of Directors of

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

(CIN:U40101 DL20GTGOT1A7558)

(Sh. Rameshwar Prasad Vaishnaw)
Direcror

DN Noo U1R688E3
Place: New Delhi
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A as AU LS LU

(CIN: L40101D12007GO1157558)
Statement of Cash Flow for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(Al amount in T Lakhs unless otherwise stared)

For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 7,054.72 3,221.22
Adjustments for:
Deprecanom and smornsition CXPENSE 13.51 1440
Interest Income recewved [953.71) (LITLGY)
Profit on sale of myestnent (315.95)
Impairenent 3260
Interest Expense on horrowmgs 25 071
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 0,125.43 2,064.64
Changes in working capital;
Addysdmreals for frerease) | decreae o aprentag asele
Laans (Non Currenr) 10,91 (0.2
Lesans (Current) (401.01)
Cther Non Current assens s 3.69
Prade recevables 180810 (373413
Prade receivables (Son Current) (168113
Orher fir al assers (Cureent) 125507
Clther current asscts +7.13
Assets held for sale (27.98)
Acnstaents for (mereare) { deceeiv in areviditng daliilites
Frovigions( N en-cirrent) LU Ll
Provisions(Current) .15 114
Frade payables

tal ibihines (Coreent) (L3281} (333.05)

Other fu

Crilser Cursene ablies [1,229.32) 9753

Fnabalmnes bheld for sale fi 2 TR9
Movement in Operating assets and liabiltics (1,397.67) (1:425.57)
Cash generated from operatons 4,527.76 639,008
| ess: Tncome Tag Paid [1.749.65) M5Y.62)
Net cash flow used in operating activitics (A) 2,778.11 (320.54)

B. CASIH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of propery, plane and eguipiment (TA48)
Mroceeds from sale of Invesunents bG15.94
Purcbases of mvestments NODs and stiggered bonels (Runn.on
Sale/ {Juwvesmmenn) of fm el assticmte compames (Net) 3000 L]
Mamrsty/ (Tnvestment] of Carporare Deposits 0AR35G
Maturity of Teem Deposits (3.3 1517
Interest Recewed 970,57 1,165.19
Net eash flow from investing activities (1) 2,012.67 7,608 00

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Borrowings 000

Inperest pras (6.23) nn
Iaachends pad (3,000 (B2
lax on dwudend paid 02737 (AT

Net cash used in fing B activities () (5,534,02) (8,233.43)

2 935
Net Inerease/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+II+C) (43.24) £90.97)
Cash and Cash Foguoealentsan the begmmmg of the Year 1424711 15 883,08
Cash and Fepuvalents at the end of the Year 14 80387 14.947.11
Reconcilisnon of cash and cash equivalents as per the e
cash flow statement® azn Al
Note Cash Jow 15 prepaved on ldiecet method
For components of cash and cash equivalent reler note na. 10
Profin before mx milndes SR expenses R Nal(lRs 27 65
Summary ot sgnificant aceounting policies
The accompanying notes 1 1o 42 are miegral part of the financial satements;
Thasas the statement of cash Dow referred 1o our andin report of even dae
For I Jain & Company For and v behalf of Board of Dieectors of
hartered Accountants REC Transmission Projects Company Lamired
\ 2 )
= \ /
jay Kumar Singh) (Sh. Rameshwar Prasad Vaishnaw)
[Drector Dheector

DIN N 027

DN Noo O1R6HRRG
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[ i e e AR AL E P AL L IJ.J“}
Statement of changes in Equirty for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amount in T Lakhs unless otherwise :ii‘.ltL'd}

A Equity share capital

Particulars Amount

Balance as at 01 April 2018 5.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2019 5.00
(Changes m equity share capital during the vear
Balance as at 31 March 2020 5.00
Other equity

Particulars General reserve Retained carnings Total
Balance as at 01 April 2018 1,325.00 16,286.72 17,611.72
Profir for the year - 2,459.99 2.459.99
Iinal Dividend - (3,529.00) (3,529.00)
Tax on final dividend = (725.40) (725.401)
Interim dividend - (3,300.00) (3, 30000
'ax on mterim dividend {67832} (GTR.37)
Balunce as at 31 March 2019 1,325.00 10,513.99 11,838.99
Profit for the vear 5443.86 5,443.86
Inrerim dividend . (5,000,000 (5,000,000
Fax omanternm dividend - (1,027.77) {1,027.97
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,325.00 9,930.08 11,255.08

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes 1 to 42 are integral part of the financial statements.

This 1s the statement of changes in equity referred o m our audit report of even date.

For I Jain & Company
Chartered Accoummtants
PRNOOOTITE

nlaj Jain)
artner
MRN:09T279

Place: New Delhi

Iar and an behalf of Board of Direcrors of

(Sh.
| Mrcetor
1IN Nea: 02772733

ijay Kumar Singh)

Mace: New el

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

(Sh. Rameshwar Prasad Vaishn:w)
Director
DIN Nao: 01868883

Phice: New Delln

[Date: ;M "_.990 "
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

b
—

3.

Corporate Information

REC Transmission Projects Company Ltd. (RECTPCL’ or ‘the Company’) was incorporated in the year 2007.
The Company is domiciled in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office at Core-4, SCOPE
Comples, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, India and principal place of business at Core-4, SCOPE Complex,
7. Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003 The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of REC Limited (formerly Rural
Electrification Corporation Limited).

Ministry of Power has appointed RECTPCL as Bid Process Coordinator (BPC) for Inter State Transmission
Systems actoss the country on Tariff Based Competitive Mode. RECTPCL commenced working as BPC in the
year 2007 and successfully awarded its first project in the Y - 2009-10. 'I1ll date, RECTPCL has been appointed
as Bid Process Coordinator for many a large Inter-state Projects. RECTPCL is also engaged inter -alia in the
business to promote, otganize or carry on the consultancy services and/or project implementation in any field
relating to Transmission, Distribution, Generation and Smart Grid etc. in India or abroad.

Statement of Compliance

The Company prepared its Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the: requirements of
Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). These Standalone Financial Statements comply with
Ind AS noufied under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended),
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 were authorized and approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 12 June 2020.

Accounung policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard 1s
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in accounting policy.
These changes have also been adopted in line with the transition options available under the standards.

Standards and interptetations issued but not yet effective
Thete are no relevant amendments issued by MCA which are not yet effective as at 31 March 2020.

Significant accounting policies and management estimates

(I) The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the financial statements are as given below:

31
(i)

3.2

Basis of preparation and measurement
Going concern and basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilitics are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period.,

All assets and liabilitics have been classified as current or non-current as per the criteria set out m the Companies
Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current

classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and presentation currency:

These financials are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency, all

amounts have been rounded off to nearest lacs (upto two digits), unless otherwise indicated.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured,
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

(1)

(11)

33

The Company, to determine that how much and when revenue is recognized, what is the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenues etc. uses the principles laid down by the Ind AS 115, Revenue is recognised through

a 5-step approach:

(i) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract;

(itf) Determine the transaction price;

(1v) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and
(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.
Liweonie from Operation

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts and other

mdirect taxes.

In Cost Plus Contracts - revenue is recognised by including eligible contractual items of expenditures plus

l!!.‘()])f?fi[t)l]ﬂ?(‘ ITli!I'giﬂ as per contract:

In Fixed Price Contracts — revenue 1s tecognised on the basis of stage of completion of the contract. The Compamy
has assessed that the stage of completion determined as the proportion of the total time expected to complete the
performance obligation that has lapsed at the end of the reporting period is an appropriate measure of progress
towards complete satisfaction of these performance oblipations under Ind A5 115,

stimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management,

Professional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/developers for transmission projects put on tariff
based bidding 1s accounted for in the year in which it 1s reasonably certain that the ultimate collection of the

professional charges will be made.

Sale proceeds of Request for Proposal (REP) documents is credited to the respective SPV and sale proceeds of
Request for Qualificaton (RFQ) documents is retained by the Company and accounted as income of the

Company.
Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset 18 recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprectation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes all expenses, direct and indirect, specifically attributable to its acquisition and bringing it to its working
condition for its intended use. Incidental expenditure pending allocation and atiributable 1o the acquisition of
fixed assets is allocated/ capitalised with the related assets. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s
-arrying amount only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will How
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are

expensed when incurred.
Suosequent measurement (depreciation method, wiefiel bver and residual valne)

Depreciation on assets is provided on straight-line method in accordance with the useful lives presciibed under
Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on assets purchased/ sold during the year is charged for
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

3.4

3.5

the full month if the asset is in use for more than 15 days, instead of charging the same on pro-rata basis from the
date of purchase/ sale.
Assets individually costing less than 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year,

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import dutics and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset
ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of intangible assets is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement (amortization method, useful lives and residual value)

For amortization of intangibles the amortization amount of intangible assets 1s allocared on a systematic basis over
the best estimate of its useful life. Management estimates useful life of intangible assets to be 5 years.

Leases

Ind AS 116 “Leases™ has been introduced which replaces the earlier Ind AS 17 and 1s applicable w.e.f. 01 April
2019

Accounting policy applicable from 1 April 2019
‘a

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract 15, or contains, a lease, A lease is delined as %
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying assct) for a pertod ol time in

exchange for consideration’.

Toapply this definition, the Company assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

e The contract contains an identified assct, which s either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset s made available to the Company.

¢ The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the cconomic benetits from use of the idenufied asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract.

¢ The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The Company
assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.
At lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end
of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives
received).
The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
carlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses

the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

3.6

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
Company’s meremental borrowing rate,

[Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment s reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit

and loss if the right-ofuse asset is already reduced to zero.
The Company has shown the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on the face of statement of financial position.

Accounting policy applicable before 1 April 2019

Company as a lessee
Operating leases

All other leases are treated as operating leases. Rentals payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, arc
expensed as incurred.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument 1s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entiry.

Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised nitially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisttion of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, te., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsegrent meassrenrent

Financial assets carried at amortized cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the
following conditions are met:

e Theassets held within a business model whose abjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPL) on the principal amount outstanding,

After imtial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 15 included 1 mterest

income mn the Statement of Profir and Loss.
De-recognition of jinancial assels

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) are
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

are transferred. Further, if the Company has not retained control, it shall also derecognise the financial asset and
recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial gnarantee contracts which are not measured at Fair value through profit & loss account. (FVTPL).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recogmuon of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, 1t
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its inital
recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since inttial recognition. 1T credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, 1t eredit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime FCL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there 1s no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts ro
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting trom all possible default events over the expected hfe of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events tha
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at inital recognition, as financial habilites at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial labilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including financial
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective mnterest
method.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the hability ts discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or maodification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Finaneial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

39 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value which 1s the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction o sell the asset or ransfer the

liability takes place cither:
* in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilides for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities;
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable; and
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient dara
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and mmimising the use of
unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basts, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and labilites on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and rtisks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explamned above.

3.8  Non-Current assets/disposal Company held for sale
Non-current assets/disposal Companys are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will have recovered
principally through sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale 18 considered highly probable.
They are measured at lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, except for assets such as
deferred rax, assets arising from employee benefit, financials assets and contractual rights under insurance
contracts, which are specifically exempted from this requirement.
Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortsed while they are classified as held for sale. Non-current assets
held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the balance sheet.

Where the Company is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of an associate, it classifies investment
in the associate (i.e. all the assets and labilities of that associate) as held for sale.

3.9 Employee benefits:

Limployee benefits include Provident Iund, Leave Encashment & Loyalty Bonus.

a) Fixed Tenure Employees

The Company has recruited Fixed Tenure Employees for a period of 3 years, which is further extendable
maximum up to 4 vears and 6 months, depending upon the requirement and performance. All employee benefits
statutory liabilities e.g. Penston and  Gratuity ete. are not applicable to the Company. However, the Company
provided for leave encashment and loyalty bonus for which liabilities are assessed as per the actuarial valuation

and disclosed in other notes to accounts.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

3.10

3.11

by Employees on secondment from holding company

The Company is managed by the employees deployed by REC Lid (holding company) on secondment basts and
pays their charges as service fee for deemed management service provided by its holding Company. The Service
charges, being charged as a fixed liability on the basis of actual employee cost, added with fixed charges on
account of future liability of Provident Fund, Gratuity, Superannuation and Postretirement benefit etc. With
paying above charges, Company owes nothing to its holding company for any future liabilities whatsoever against
such seconded employees.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current rax. It is recognized in
Statement of Profitand Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in Other comprehensive income
(OCI) or directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or

substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax 1s recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities i the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to apply to
their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilines are offsetif there s a legally enforceable right to offser current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset 1s recognized for all
deductible temporary ditferences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefir will be
realized.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in profit or
loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.
Dividend Distribution Tax is recognized at the same time when the hability to pay a dividend 1s recognized.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Asscts

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or consiructive obligation as a result of a past
event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Company and amounts can
be esumated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions are measured ar the
estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at
the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the tme value of money 1s material.

A contingent liability 1s disclosed for:

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company

or

Present obligations atising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the ohligniinn cannot be made.

In those cases, where the outflow of cconomic resources as a result of present obligatons is considered
improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made.
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(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party concerning the
obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. IHowever, this asset may not exceed the
amount of the related provision.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the related
asset s disclosed.
3.12 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.
To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares.
3.13 Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets or cash generating units to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order 1o
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When 11 1s not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-
gencrating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

3.14  Allocation of expenses
The Company has been appointed by Government of India to act as Bid Process Co-ordinator for selection of
the Transmission Service Provider (developer) for ‘Transmission Projects. Since the Company Is mcurring
expenses mainly for its project specific associates (called SPVs), the expenses have been allocated at the year end
to these associates. Direct expenses have been booked to the respective associates for which the expenditure has
been incurred. All Indirect/Common Expenses have been allocated only to the associates in the proportion of
salary of HO staff deployed on the associates from the month of issuc of RFQ or RFP or incorporation of SPV,
whichever is earlier, till the month in which tenth day from the date of i1ssue of Letter of Intent (LOI) for the
transfer of the SPV falls. Part of the month, if any, is considered as full month for cost allocation. The Company

has also charged interest on the funds deployed by 1t.

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments thatare readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.16 Funds/grants received from government
Unutilized amount of grant/fund received are classified as current liabilities. Interest wherever carned on such
funds is credited to respective gmnt/ fund account.

3.17 Dividend
Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in equity in the
period in which they are approved by the sharcholders” meeting and the Board of Directors respectively.

3.18 Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectvely by restating the comparative amounts for the prior
periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period presented, the
opening balances of assets, liabilities and cquity for the carliest period presented, are restated.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

3.19

3.20

3.21

Prepaid Expenses
A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00.000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition.
Rates and taxes

Overseas taxes on foreign assignments, indirect taxes, including Goods & Service Tax, professional tax, property
tax, entry tax, labour cess, octroi and any other applicable taxes ete. paid/accrued in India or abroad for which
credit are not available to the company are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Rounding off amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest lacs as per the
requirements of Schedule 1T of the Act unless otherwise stated.

(I1) Significant management judgments in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty

(i)

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related
disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Significant management judgments

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liability — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is
based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income agams! which the deferred tax assets can
be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result mn
detertoration of recoverable amount of the assets.

(it) Significant cstimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at cach reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of asscts.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumplons
conststent with how market participants would price the instrument. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it 15 available. In case of non-availability of
market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy is used for fair valuation.

Income Taxes — Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be patd/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of expected future
profitability to assess deferred tax asset.

Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) — The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial assets
measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future
economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelthood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The
Company makes significant judgments about the following while assessing expected credit loss to estimate ECL:

e Determining critetia for a significant increase in credit risk;

* Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the assoctated KCL; and

e [srablishing Company’s of similar financial assets to measure ECL.

Leases — The management while determining the lease period of an asset makes estmMAates On various exiension
and termination options, the same affects the period of the lease and hence the determination of lease liability

and right of use of assets.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from customers — The management while recognizing revenues, makes several estimates including
estimation of recoverability, allocation of wansaction prices to respective performance obligations, estimations
of degree of work completed (/Performance obligations satisfied) and estimated works.

Current/Non Current classification- The management expects the realization of all operating assets is within
ts, even though operational in nature, but expected to be realized

12 months from the reporting date. ['or the as:
after 12 months from the reporting date, are classified as non-current.

Impact of Covid-19 OQutbreak - The extent to which the Covid-19 pandemic will impact the company will
depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new information
concerning the severity of the Covid-19 pandemic and any further action by the Government. or the Company to

contain its spread or mitigate its impact.

CHARTERED

ﬂcm[mTMfs
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amount in 7| Takhs unless otherwise stated)

4 Property, plant and equipment

71

- Furniture & Office Computer  Minor Value
Description : : ; Computers Total
Fixtures Equipments  Equipment Assets
Gross catrying value
As at 01 April 2018: 6.03 8.44 2.84 3.44 40.18 60.93
Additions 0.44 0.31 = 0.42 474 592
Disposals - - = . - =
As at 31 March 2019 6.47 8.76 2.84 3.86 44.92 66.85
Addinons 0.27 2.30 = 0.28 4.63 748
Disposals = S = = = -
As at 31 March 2020 6.74 11.06 2.84 4.14 49.55 74.33
Accumulated depreciation
\s at 01 April 2018; 1.46 2.01 1.45 3.44 16.92 25.28
Charge for the year 0.57 1.59 0.45 (0.42 11.18 14.21
Adjustment for disposals - . . ; - .
As at 31 March 2019 2.03 3.60 1.90 3.86 28.10 39.49
Charge for the year 0.61 1.81 0.44 (.28 10.18 13.32
Adjustment for disposals - B = - - -
As at 31 March 2020 2.64 5.41 2.34 4.14 38.28 52.81
Net block as at 31 March 2019 4.44 5.16 0.94 - 16.82 27.36
Net block as at 31 March 2020 4.10 5.65 0.50 - 11.27 21.52
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(All amount in [0 Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

5 Other Intangible assets

Description GRmputen Total
Software

Gross carrying value
At 01 April 2018: 0.95 0.95
Additions -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 0.95 0.95
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 0.95 0.95
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April 2018: 0.20 0.20
Amortisation charge for the year 0.19 (0.19
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 0.39 0.39
Amorusaton charge for the year 0.19 .19
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 0.58 (.58
Net book value as at 31 March 2019 0.56 0.56
Net book value as at 31 March 2020 0.37 0.37
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(Al amount in | | Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

6 Investments (Non Current)
Investments in Government/Trust Securities
(a) Investment in tax free bonds-Quoted (at amortised cost)
Rutal Electrification Corporation Ltd. (Holding Company)
7.38% T'ax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of
Rs. 1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020 / 2019 : 100,000 / 350,000)

8.40% Tax Free 15 vears Secured Redeemable Non Converrible Bonds of face value of Rs,
1000/ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019 : 250,000/ 250,000)

7.55% Staggered Papers of face value Rs. 1,000,000/~ each, fully paid (31 March
2020/2019: 20 ,f_\"ﬂ}

7.09% NCD of face value Rs. 1,000,000 /- each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 100 /
Nil)

(b) Investment in tax free bonds-Quoted (at amortise cost) (in others)
(i) Housing and Urban Development Corporation Lid. (HUDCO)

7.39% Tax Free 15 years Secuted Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs.

1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019; 47,647 /47647)

7.39% Tax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs.

1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 39,151 /39,151)

(ii) National Highway Authority of India Ltd. (NHAT)

7.35% Tax Free 15 vears Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs.

1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 42,855/42,855)

7.39% Tax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs.
1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 35463 /35,463)

(iii) Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency (IREDA)

TA9% Tax I'ree 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs.

1000/ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 61,308 /61,308)

(iv) Indian Railway Finance Corporation (IRFC)
7.35%0 Tax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convernble Bonds of face value of Rs.

1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 22,338 / 22,338)

(v) National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD)
7.35% Tax Free 13 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs.
1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 14,028/14,028)

Total

Aggregate market value of quoted investment

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

1,024.60

2,570.50 2.570.11
207.76

1,021.12
481.57 481.39
400.05 399,91
459.87 459,70
367.66 367.55
621,99 621.76
231,92 230185
140.53 140,51

7,526.57 8,857.50

8,542.13 9,633.27
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(All amount in | Lakhs unless otherwise srated)

7

10

Loans (Non Current)
Unsecured, considered good

74

Security deposits® 0.20 37.01
0.20 37.01

* Refer note 39 for fair value disclosures.

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Other financial assets (Non Current)
Term Deposits with maturity more than 12 months” 36.84 86.38
36.84 86.38

* Term deposit receipt has been placed on lien with Canara Bank as collateral security for 1ssue of bank guarantee for Mizoram.

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade receivables
Non current
Unsecured, considered good 1,684.13 -
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (322.61)
1,361.52
Trade receivables with significant increase in credit risk - -
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - -
Credit impaired = -
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - -
1,361.52 0.00
Current
Unsecured, considered good 392.20 2,200).29
Iess: Allowance for expected credit loss (0.00) .
392.20 2,290.29
Trade receivables with significant increase in credir risk
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Credit impaired -
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss :
392.20 2,290.29
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
with scheduled banks in current accounts 1,198.28 110,84
-with Government Fund accounts® 13,116.57 14800108
Cheque in hand 489.02 36.23
14,803.87 14,947.11

#Larmarked Balances with Banks for Government unds received and can be utilised only for the specific purpose. Refer Nore

No. 22 (Government Fund for Schemestt)
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

{All amountin = Lakhs unless atherwise stared)

11

12

13

14

15

16

Other bank balances

Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months*

75

#'TDR has been placed on lien with Canara Bank as collateral security for issue of Bank guarantee for Goa.

Loans (Current)

Secunty deposits *

* Refer note 39 for fair value disclosures.

Other financial assets (Current)
Recoverable from Goverment of India
Amount spent on Urja Mitra Scheme*
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyott Yojana Fund
Retention money receivable
Orther Trade/Commercial Advances

"Refer note 42(XVII)

Current tax assets (net)
Vdvancee Income Tax and TDS

Less: Provision for [ncome tax

Tax Deposited on income tax demands under contest®
Proviston for income tax for demand under contest

Total
"Refer note 42(NIL(A) for detads

Other current assets

Advance to Suppliers

Balances with staturory and government authoriries
Cost of fullfillment carned forward

Prepaid Expenses

Disposal group
Assets classified as held for sale
(A) Investment (refer note 16.1)
(B) Loans to associates (refer note 16.2)
Total (A+B)

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

{(C)Payable ro associates (refer note 16.3)

Total(C)

Disposal group -Net assets (A+B-C)

Thiv space har been intentionally lefl blank

91.51 33.64

91.51 33.64
40,91

40.91 -

28.88 795.45
64.87

32.41 30.12

- 26.57

126.16 852.13

5,383.95

3,640.18

(511?‘37.32) (3,—1”4.“‘5"}
196.13 145.43
5.97
5.97 -
202.10 145.43
63.32 19593
95:15 19721
191.25
. 3469
349.70 396.83
As at As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

20000 501010
933.47 905,49
953.47 955.49

68.22 7.89

68.22 7.89

947.60

ACCOUNTANTS


CON0505
Typewritten Text
75


e i )

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(All amount in | Lakhs unless otherwise srated)

16.1

16.2

16.3

Investments in associates

Investments in Equity Instruments of associates (fully paid up)

Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited*

50000 equity shares of | 10/~ each (31 March 2019

Bhindguna Transmission Limited®

50000 equity shares of 10/- each (31 March 2019:

Chandi] Transmission Ltd

50000 equity shares of . 10/- each (31 March 2019:

Dumka Transmisston Ltd.

50000 equity shares of  10/- each (31 March 2019

Jam Khambaliva Transco Limited”

50000 equity shares of - 10/- each (31 March 2019:

Khern Transco Limired®

50000 equity shares of | 10/- each (31 March 2019:

Koderma Transmission Lid

30000 equity shares of [ 10/~ each (31 March 2019:

| akadia Banaskantha Transco Limited™

30000 equity shares of | 10/- each (31 March 2019:

Mandar Transmission Lid.

50000 equity shares’of | 10/- each (31 March 2019:

Udupi Kasargode Trans. Led.*

S000(0) cL]uitj.' shares of  10/- each (31 March 2019:

Dinchang Transmission Ltd.**
50000 equuty shares of 10/~ each

Nil )

Nil)

Nil )
Nil )

Nil )

76

0.00 5.00
0.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
0.00 5,000
0.00 5.0
5,00 5.00
(.00 5.000
5.00 5.000
0.00 .00
0.00 (.00
20.00 50.00

¢ Dinchang Transmission Lid was denotified vide MoP letter dated 25 March 2019 and subsquently investment was wrirteoft
MOP pernussion for stiiking off company with MCA s obtained during the vear and the required papers are bemg filled with

MCA.

Loans to Associares

Chandil Transmussion Linmited

Dumka Transmission Timited

Mandar Transmisston Limited
Koderma Transmission Limited

\jmer Phagt Transco Ltd*

Bhindguna Transmission Limted*
UDUPI Kasargode Transmission Ld*
WRES NI (A) Transco Lid

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale
Jam Khambaliya Transco Ld*

Khetin Teansco Limtred”

lLakadia Banaskantha Transco Ltd*
Bidar Karnataka Line™”

Gadag Karnaraka Part A Linet®
Solar Energy Rajasthan Part A Line™*
Solar Energy Rajasthan Part B Line®*
Solar Energy Rajasthan Part € Line™*
Rajgarh Madhya Pradesh Line*™
Osmanabad Maharashtea Line**
Total

© SPV Sold During the FY 2019-2020

©* 8PVs 1n process of mcorporation as on 31.03.2020

249.26 19864

217.7 193.57

243.17 171.25

22333 1753.74

18.14

= 2805

25.14

e 34.96

933.47 905.49

1).34

357

! 3.98
10.31
1041
10.46
2.6Y9

1548 <
1549
(.38 =
68.22 7.89
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(Allamount in 0 Lakhs unless otherwise srared)

17 Equity share capital As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Authorised cquity share capital

30,000 (31 March 2019: 30.000) quity shares of Rs 10 cach 5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00

[ssued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital

50,000 (31 March 2019: 50,000) Equity shares of Rs 10 cach 5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00

1) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Lach holder of equity shares s entitled to one vote

per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company. the holders of cquity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. T'he distnbution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

it) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
No. of shares lakhs No. of shares lakhs
Equity share capital of Rs, 10 cach fully paid up
Balance ar the beginning of the vear 50,000 5.00 50,000 300
Add: Issued during the year -
Balance at the end of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

iti) Sharcholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company as at balance sheet date:

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
No. of shares % holding No. of shares Vi holding
19,994 Iiquity Shares held by REC Limited (formerly known as Rural
Lleerrficanon Corporation Led,) (Holding Company) And Balance 6 0,000 1 00L00%0 S0,000 100.00%,

Lty Shares through other nominee of REC Lid.

iv) Shares held by holding Company:
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

No. of shares % holding  No. of shares Y holding

19,994 Fquity Shares held by REC Limited (formerly known as Rural
lectrification Corporation L) (Holding Company) And Balance 6 50,000 100.00% 50,000 100.00%%

lgquity Shares through other nomnee of REC Lid.

vy The Company has neither issued equury shares pursuant to contracr without payment beng recetved in cash or any bonus shares nor has

there been any buy-back of shares in the current year and five years immediarely preceding the balance sheet date.

18 Other equity As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Creneral reserve 1.325.00 1,325.00
Retained carmings 9930008 10,513.99
11,255.08 11,838.99

Note:
CGieneral reserve is created from time to tme by way of transfer profies from retained carnings for appropriation purposes. General reserve 1s created by
a transter from one component of equity to another,

Also refer statement of Changes i Hquity
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(All amount in | Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
19  Provisions (Non Current)

Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note 38)

Provision for Loyalty Bonus 6.04 3.27

Provision for compensated absences 5.16 3.03

11.20 6.30
20 Deferred tax Assets/Liabilities (net)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between depreciation as pet 5 (0.29)
income tax act and depreciation charged in the books iy
Total deferred tax liability B (0.29)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between depreciation as per 0.77
imcome tax act and depreciation charged in the baoks i
Timing difference on impairement provision 81.20
Financial assets and labilities measured at amortised cost = 0.12
Total deferred tax assets 81.97 0.12
Deferred tax assets /liabilities (net) 81.97 (0.17)
Net Deffered Tax Charge for the Year
For the year ended 31 March 2020 (82.14)
I'or the year ended 31 March 2019 (1.20)

Note: The Movement between years represents additions/deletion (reversals) in current or previous year. Additions/reversals

during the vear has been charged to profit and loss account during the year.

21 Borrowings (Current)
Cash credit loan from HDFC Banlk( Unsecured) 500.00 -

500.00 -

Notes: HDFC Bank has sanctioned Credit Facility Name Working Capital Demand Loan (WCDL) with limit of Rs. 1000 Lakhs.
Rate of interest is (1 market credit lending rate + 15 bps). The eredit facility is unsecured.

22 Other financial liabilities (Current)

larnest Money Deposits/Contract performance gurantee 17.19 12:50
'xpenses Payables 433.38 421.91
Retention money payables 82.34 36.78
Payable to related parties 126.35 35.53
Employee related payables - 1.5

Government Fund for Schemes
Prime Minister's Development Package Fund - J&K 11,941.27 14,541.28
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyod Yojana Fund - 79.28
Power System Development Fund for Rural Feeder Monttoring Scheme 1,421.04 285.560
14,021.57 15,414.38
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear ending 31 March 2020

(All amount in| | Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

23  Other current liabilities
Advance from REC (Holding Company)*
Advance from customer
Mobilisation Advance- JKPDD-UDAY
Defered income
Statutory Dues payable

*Reler note 42(XVI1I)
24 Provisions (Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note 38)
Provision tor Loyalty Bonus®

Provision for compensated absences

e amaunty bas been ronnded off to zeero.

This space bas been intentionally left blank
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- 1,059.67
0.56 -
23.74 42.73
89.09 71.46
14.11 182.95
127.50 1,356.82
(.01 0,00
.33 0.19
0.34 0.19
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(All amount in [ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

25

20

27

28

29
()

(b)

30

Revenue from operations

Sale of services *
Consultancy & Execunon of Transmission Projects
Professional Charges
Agency Fees

Other Operating Revenue

Documentation fees

Refer note 30 for details revenue.

Other income

Interest Income on Term/ Corporate Deposits

Interest Income on Tax Free Bonds

Interest Income from SPVs

Interest Income on Staggered Papers

Interest Income on NCDs

Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
Profit on sale of mvestments

Miscellaneous Income

Cost of services rendered
Survey Charges
Consultancy Charges
Advertisement Expenses

Meeting & Conference Expenses

Emplovee benefits expense
Salaries and Wages
Contribution to Provident and other funds

Refer note 38 Eimplovee benefit obligations details.

Finance costs

Interest Fxpenses
Working capital loan from bank
[ncome tax
Others*

Bank Charges

¥ Includes mterest paid to REC amounting to Rs 4.02.(Nil)

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation (also refer note 4)

Amortisation (also refer note 3)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

533.98 946,43
6,092,36 1,827.01
16.95 16.95
- 79.14
6,643.29 2,869.53
7214 430.43
656.54 663,91
125.81 77.35
70.20
26.93
4.10 3.94
31595
1.49 0.01
1,273.16 1,175.64
36.58 70.75
G030 49.36
- 13.16
3.66 0.67
100.54 133.93
105.60 169.67
2.15
107.75 169.67
6.25 0.71
2.99 23.97
AT 2506
15.01 30.04
0.13 1.57
15.14 31.61
1332 14.21
0.19 0.19
13.51 14.40
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Notes torming part ot Financial Statements tor the year ending 31 March 2020
{All amount in °] Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
31 Impairment of assets

Diminution in value of investment - 5.00

Impairment on trade receivables 322.61 -
Impairment on other assets = 107.43
322.61 112.43

32 Other expenses
Manpower Expenses 132.25 149.71
Travelling and Conveyance 26.88 32.46
Rental Charges 63.34 73.38
Rates and Taxes 0.95 0.63
Power & Fuel 3.49 5.78
Postage, Telegram and Telephone 2.69 3.63
Auditors’ Remuneration™® 575 2.30
Legal & Professional Charges 13.09 30.89
Office Expenses 16.43 17.62
Technieal / 'l Services Expenses 7.74 1.36
Miscellaneous Expenses 29.57 16.50
302.18 334.26
“Auditors' Remuneration

Audit Fee 3.00 1.70
Tax Audit ee 1.25 0.60

Other Services/ Certification fee 1.50 =

5.75 2.30
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
{(Allamount tn | Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
33 Tax expense
(1) Current tax (including taxes carlicr years)
“Tax on cutrent year profis 1,693.00 762,43
(1) Deferred tax expense/{eredir) (82.14) (1.20)
1,610.86 761.23

The reconeiliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate and the reported tax expense in profit or loss is as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 7,054.72 3,221.22

Applicable tax rate 2517% 29.12%,

Income tax at the rate mentoned above L775:53 938.02

Tax effect of Non-deductible expenses for fx purposes 0.59 16.54

Tax effect of ncome of tax free bonds (165.24) (193.33)
Tax eftect of rate change (0.02) -

1,610.86 761.23

3 BHarnings per share (in INR)

Net profit for the year 5,443 80 245999
Weghred average number of equity shares for EPS 50,000 50,0010
Par value per share 10 I
[Tarnings per share - Basic and diluted (in INR) 10,887.71 4.919.97

35 Leascs

Company has made transigon 1o Ind AS 116 as at 01 April 2019 The assessment made by the Company as at transition date resuleed ino o

conclusion thar all the leases of the [,'ompil.n)' talls under shorr term leases,

Toral cash cutflow n respeet of shore rerm leases n the vear amounts o Rs. 63.34 Lakhs.

The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

For the vear ended
31 March 2020
63.34

Short-term leases

| ANIEUE

The Company also incurred rental expense amounting to Rs 140,35 Lakhs, which has been allocated to respecnve assoctates, the same has

not been included above.

Extension and termination options
The Company has lease contracts for "Office block and contractual sites” which are used for regular operations of its busmess. Thoere are

several lease contraces that include extension and termmation options which are further discussed below.
The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and wrmmanon optons. These options are negotated by management o

provide flexibiliny w managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs. Management excreises sigmibicant

illt!_{_{t‘llll_“ll i]l l!t‘lL‘l1llillil1g \\‘hL'[l'IL.‘r lhl‘!ﬂ.‘ Ux rl'l'l!i"l(l]'l :lllll rl'.’l'miﬂﬂ['{ﬂ“ U'[‘TII!I'IR Are rens II'I:lI)I)' cerrm o E)(' c.-xvrclsml.

! futcgements in determituing the lease term

In determining the lease term, management constders all facts and crrcumstances thar create an cconomic MEENTve [0 CXercise an exrension
OHON, OF NOE CXCreIse @ wermimation opoon. Fxension opdons (or periods after rermination opons) are only mcluded o the lease wem if

the lease 15 reasonably certain to be extended (or nor terminated).

The a

ssment 18 reviewed 1f a sigmificanr evenr or a significant change i circumstances occurs which atfecrs this assessmonr and thar s

within the control of the lessec.
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(Allamountin || Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

36

Other ransition options

‘I'Eli.‘ tr-ll}ﬁin‘l)l'l ]'Iilh' 'I'l'.'ﬁ'l]]]'(_‘d o t'l‘]l L‘Frl.'f.'.l o rll‘.' (.:(}I'I'I[]ilﬂ\'l‘\' ﬁ]lﬂn(iﬂl statements; il][l'll)ilgh f]'lL‘ (:(_]l'l'lpil]'l\' has '.'EdU'P[('IJ YI'II.,' ew :if'rl]l(!'.lrt.l :I]'Il,j any
new contract entered i the future wall be dealr according ro the new accounnng policy of the Company.

For conrraces m place as ar 1 April 2019, Company Group has elecred o apply the defininon of alease from Ind AS 17 and has notapplicd
Ind AS 116 to arrangements that were previously notidennfied as lease under Ind AS 17,

On transition, for leases previously accounted for as aperating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months and for leases of
low-value assers the Company has applied the oprional exemptions to not recognise nghr-of-use asscts but to account for the lease expense

on g straightline basis over the remaining lease term,

Revenue from contracts with customers under Ind AS 115
The Company is engaged in providing following services-

Mintstry of Power has appointed RECTPCL as Bid Process Coordinator (BPC) for Inter State I'ransmisston Systems across the country on
Tanff Based Competitive Mode, RECTPCL commenced \\'l:rking as BPC n the year 2007 and :ilH_'CL‘:irifll”‘\’ awarded 1ts first project in the
1Y = 2000-100 1 date, RECTPCL has been appointed as Bid Process Coordinaror for many a large Inter-state Progeers, RECTPCL 15 also
engaged mrer -alia e the busingss o promote, organize or carry on the consultancy services and/or project implementation i any field
relatng to Transmussion, Distribunon, Generation and Smart Grid ereomn India or abroad.

RECTPCL 15 conducang the bidding process for IST8S projects, starong from selection of qualified bidders to handing over of the Special
Purpose Vehicle o the lowese bidder. RECTPCL provides consultaney serviees in Power Transmission scctor to states/ Union Tetritories
under vartous central/state Government schemes such as |’rU'|L't'[ .\l.m'.l;,!.l‘lncm .-\gcuc:.' -'\-|‘.\|.f\)/|‘rui|t'ct .\-!‘.HI'.I_'__[(.'II nt f:tlll!illl!.llll_"\' t'l‘.\":_].
(L) projects as Projeet Implementing

The company is also working i vardous Smart Metering/ Smart Grid and Informanon T'echnolog

Ageney (PIA) Progecr Management Agency (PSYAY Tor smplementanon of varions distnbuton mirasructure progecis under vanons Gove

schemes  The company is also working as Projeer implementaton agency in the state of Jammuo and UL Srinagar and Leh.

Sigmificant management judgments on revenue recognition:
Recogmized amounts of contract revenues and relared recervables when the conmact has been approved by the partes, mwrnitng, o the
comtract, the partics o contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contrace 15 Jegmlly

(.'Ill‘{il'c(.'dbEL'. R(_'\‘L'lll.' l‘l'(}lﬂ tll(.' contracts l'f_'{.'ﬂp‘lll?.(‘.d IT-IS(‘{I on |'|'IIII'I'.!;'\\'[1'[(:1'ITI:‘ l]lf:‘l cErmates llf l.‘E!C]l L'l)l'lfl".'lt’.["ﬁ outcome .'I]'ll]

unn|i|rﬁnn which is determined by 'I_'Ll On progress L'f‘!‘lil'l?‘ o RSt il]l'lll't'[.'l] (£4] (l'.H‘r l)s_".i!' o the Int;l! L‘.\{iﬂ'lilﬂ'd cOst of Tll(.' tr:\ni:u'liun‘ (SERRTSS

spend, service pertormed (generally mentioned 0 rhe contracts with the customer) or any other method thar management considerced

appropriate. When there s uncerminty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved

ot .‘i}ll‘l"lﬁ{' 'E“'TF!]"II:I!II'(‘ (}h“ml[il)llﬁ I[l("l[“‘lt'l.l ill IEII‘ comfract '[.Ill‘ fransachnm [‘I'ii'l‘ 'Ii\'

Also while '.l|||n".1lil1§{ that transaction price to th
allocared to the pertormance obliganons basced on ats relanve standalone sclling price, which gencrally s nor readily avlable, hene

management CH’.III'I'.H'L'E" ‘IIC .‘\";llld ‘:ll()l'll’_' Si.‘”.[l'l" ITICCS ]T:I:ii:i upaon i[.‘- X 1('I'iCl1('L' ancl l:[)]lrn'lchlil] EhE JI’IIII;][IIIIII.\'.
H

Disaggregated revenue information
RECTPCLs revenue mostly eames from excention of transmission projects, professional charges, ageney fees. Professional charges to be
charged from the seleered bidders/developers for rransmission projeets put on rartff based bidding 1s aceounted for in the vear in which iris

reasontably certmn that the ultimare collecnon of the professional charges wall be made.

i, Inaccordance with Ind AS 115, set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Type of goods/services For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Sale of poods - -
sale of services 6,643.29 2,869.53
Total revenue from contracts with customers 6,043.29 2,869.53
Revenue by time
Revenue recogmsed at pont in time G.084.57 216990
Revenue recognised over nme 558.72 699,63

Total revenue from contracts with customers 6,643.29 2,869.53
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D

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price
Particiilars For the yvear ended For the year ended
) 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Contracr price® 6,643.29 2,869.53
Adustments for:
ltebares and discounts . - ) -
Revenue from contracts with customers 6,643.29 2,669.53
TRECTPCLs revenue mostly comes from execution of transmission projeets, professional charges, agency fees and documentation fees
Reconcilations of cost of fullfillment carried forward
Opening = s
Additions dlu‘mg the year 191.23 =
Closing 191.23 -
Reconcilations of Deferred income
Opening of deferred income TLAG -
.RL'\'('I'III{' ]'(‘ff};:"ﬂi.‘\-i‘d llllﬁﬂ,_'_ th' }"L:ill' - -
Addimon recerved during the year 17.62 T1.46
Closing 89.09 71.46
Reconcilations of advance from customer
Opening - =
Amount billed for the vear - -
Addinons during the year (.56 -
Closing 0.56 -
Remaining performance obligations
Amaount of remaining performance obligations (unsatisied or pardally unsatisfied) 9,5064.00 9,357.00
The remaimmg performance obligation disclosure provides the agerepate amount of the transaction price yer to be recogmized as ac the end
of the reporting pt_'m:d Remaining purf-.n'm:mcu obligation esnmates are subject to chinge and are affected by several factors, including
rerminations, changes 1 the scope of contracts, perodie revalidanons, adjustment for revenue thae bas not marenalieed. The ety expects
e sansfy the above |‘t‘1'fr|rn'|ilm.'<' rl]1|i}_{:-|lim|5 within the contracted terms (which is k'\']n‘.l:lt'd to be closed mone _\L‘.if:.'.
Balances with customers or contract balances
; As at As at
Particulars =
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Asscts
Trade receivables 1,753.72 2,290.29
Contract asscts
Cost of fullillment carmed torward® 191.23
Contract liability
89.09 1146

Deffered mecome™
Advance from customer®** 0,50 -

‘Cost of fulfilment relates to contract assers recognised equivalent 1o the recoverable costs incurred 1o fulfilling 2 conrract (coneract relared)
with a customer . which generates or enhances the resourees of the entity that will be used i satisfying the furure performance obligations

“Deflered income are contract labilines | where performance obligations are not yee saristied.
P ! )

#k Advance from customers are contract liahilities | where money has been received and performance oblipations are nor yet satisficd.

1.,'m'np;my has not incurred any cost for ::blnining contracts except administrative cost :'l't]!liﬁn[ for |\:1:}1-.H'.lliu!1 of offers and the samg s

charged 1o statement of profirand loss,

84
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37 Related Party transactions

85

In accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounring Standard — 24 the names of the related parties where conreal /ability ro esercse significant influence exists, along with the apprepare

amoumt of transactions and year end balances with them as identified and certified by the management are given below:

a) Details of related parties:

Deseription of relationship Mames of related parties

Ultimare holding Company Power Finance Corporation Lid, (w.e.l 28th March 2019)
Holding Company RISC Lamited

Subsidiary of holding/ultimate holding Company REC Power Distribution Company Limited

PIFC Consulting Liouted

Associate Companies Dinchang Transmission Limited {denonfied by Mol on 25 March 2019+

Ghatampur Transmisston Limied (woe D 02 December 2006 and sold on 19 June 2018+
Jawaharpur Firoabad Cransmission Limited (w.e £ 20 Auguse 2018 and sold on 21 December 20015)++
Dumba Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 25 March 2018

Chanthl Transmussion Limited (woe £ 14 March 2018)

. 26 March 2018)

A2 19 March 20H8)

Mandar Transmission Limited {w.e.f
Koderma Transomssion Limited (3

Bhind Guna Transmission Limited (w.e.l 18 Seprember 2008 and sold on 11 Sepremlaer 2009}
Udupi Kasargode Transmission Limited (29 November 2018 - 12 September 2019574

Jam Khambaliya Transeo Limited (11 March 20009 - 13 November 20019y 4+

Lakadia Banaskantha Transeo Limited (19 March 2009 - 13 November 2019)4 =+

Kheta Transeo Limired (12 March 2019 - 29 August 201947

Aymer Phagn "Uranseo Limited (19 March 20019 - 03 Octaber 201994+

WSS XX (A) Transco Limited (26 March 2019 - 14 Ociaber 2019)%0+

02 May 20019 and sold on 12 December 2009 )0+

Ramapur Sambhal Transeo Limaed {w.e.

Osmanabad Maharashtea Line (In process of Incorporation) t+**
Bidar Kamataka Line (In process of Incorporationy** =

[&h
Sular Hnergy Rajasthan Part Al

lag Kamataka Part A Line (In process of Incorporation)****

b

ine (In process of Incorporation) !
Solar Hnergy Ragasthan Pare B Line (In process of Incorporanon) =+

Solar Fnergy Rapasthan Pare C Line (In process of ncorporatian)t* 44

Rajgach Madhya Pradesh Line (In process of Incorporatinn)
I ! LLLE! q J

Post employment benefit plan trust REC Retired Employees Medical Trust
RIC Provident Fund Trust
‘Noobyecuon from Ministey of Power for striking off the name of Dinchang Transmission Limited as been reecived on 31 March 2020, the Company is planning for the same.
“mdieares assocnes sold [/ oransfened in Y 201819
" indheates associates sold [/ transfereed in FY 2019-20
T ndieates assocares which are m process of meorporation

Key management personnel (KMP)

Me. PV Ramesh Chirman and Director 01 April 20008 10 (05 March 2009

Mr Ajeet Kumar Agarwal A hmirman amd Diccetor Chairman w.ie £ 06 March 2019

Mr. Sanjeey Kumar Gupia s Director sl 26 Cletober 24015

Me VK. Singh s Director w.e o 18 March 2019

by Transactions with Holding Company and KMP are as under:
REC Limuted Key Management Personnel
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2019
(i) Transactions during the year
Dividond paid o Holding Company 3.000.000 6829000 -
Mdvanec received for pgovernment schemes = 1,135,004}
Appornonment of Emplovee Benefis & Other Bxpenses 580,91 A34.56
Iy RIEC (including Service Tax/GST as applicable)
Interest Ineome from lnvestment in Bonds 35817 469,80
Income from Other Serviee Contract 3G9 T5.00
REC Limited

{11) Outstanding Balances at Year End

31 March 2020 31 Murch 2019

Tavestment in Bonds 4 TR LA
Apportonment of limplovee Benefis 8 Other Expenses 126.35 35.53
Trvterest Acerued but not due from Investment in Bomds 12397 155.74
Yelvance received for povernment schemes 1135000
Cost of employees on secondment basis are reimbursed o REC Limited , Company owes nothing to employees on secondment basis.
o) Transaetions with REC Provident Fund Trust:

Transacuons during the year

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

312,56

Sade ol Bonds
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(Al amcumt in D Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

d) Transactions with Associates are as under;

Transactons duning the year

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(1) Dinchang Transmission Limited (denotified by MoP on 25.03.2019)

Interest lixpenses

Reimbursement/ Expenses Retmburserment - 1.85
Armount Wattenof T - 1761

(1) Ghatampur Transmission Limited (sold on 19 June 2018:)
Intercst xpenses - 10.55
Reimbuesement/ Lxpenses Reimburscment 50051
000

Rale oof Investments
(1i) Dumka Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 25 March 2018:)

Itescst Eapenses

Beimbursement/ Lxpenses Rambursement
Advance Reowid From Parnes

Investment maide
(iv) Chandil Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 14 March 2018:)

Imerest xpenses 1612
Retmbursement/ Bapenses Reimbursement 127484
Mdvianee Reaved rom Partics 2080
[nvestment made S.H)
{v) Mandar Transmission Limited (w.e.f 26 March 2018:)

Interest Fapenses 23.75 1365
Rewmbursement/ Fxpenses Remburscment 25.00 (RUNE
Addvance Recived Prom Par - b 1)

500

Investment ade
{v1) Koderma Transmission Limited (w.e.f 19 March 2018:)

Interest xpenses 2437

Bemmbursement ! Hxpenses Hombursement 25.66

Nilvance Reaved From Parues

II'I\".""‘\\!"‘T In.'\dt‘ _1.”|
(vir) Bhind Guna Transmission Limited

herest |xpenses .86 342

Comsultmey e 17249 >

Rembumsement, lspenses Beimbursement 35,449

Vlvance Recewved From Parties 4130

Srile ol Tvesiments X

lovestment made S0
{vii} Udupi Kasargode Transmission Limited

Tnerest Bispensis 37 {178

Comsulianey bee T43.34

Remmbursement/ Txpenses Rennbursisment 62,77 76

Aadvinee Received From Paries - 5195

Sale of Investments 5.0

Tovestment made S.ANF

(%} Jum Khambaliva Transeo Limited

Interest lispenses 212 [0

Cromsulimer Fee 457.29 =

Retmbursement” lixpenses Reimbursement BA.65 N0

Addvanae Recewed Foom Parnes 17.70 3430

sale of Tnvestiments 5,00

Iovestment made - atin
{xi) Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited

Intcecst Hspenses 2713 (=

Comsultaney Fee 116607

Remmbumement/ Expenses Renmbursemen RIS 3544

AMdvanee Recerved From Partics 460,200

Sale of Tnvestments 3401

Tnvestment made - 5.001
(x11) Kherrr T'ransco Limited

Interest Fapenses (L8O LI

Consuleaney Nee 1,601,400

Hewmbarsement/ Expenses Rembursemen) 57.98 35,02

Advanee Recerved lirom Parties 590 HL20)

Sale of Investments 5.000

Investment naade 5000

er Phagi Transco Limited

Imterest ispenses 1.19 129

Uemsultaney lee Y6350 =

Remnbursement/ Lispenses Reimbursement 5488 LI

Nelvanee Reeeived From Partics 2300 16600

Sale af Investments 5001

5000

Invesiment made
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(xiv) WRSS XXI (A) Transco Limited

(xv)

[£3%0]

{xvii)

(=viii)

(xin)

(xx)

(xx1)

(xx1i

)

)

[nterest lixpenses

Consultaney Pee

Retmbursement/ lxpenses Reimbuorserment
Advance Recetved From Parnes

Sale of Investments

Invesnment made

Rampur Sambhal Transco Limited
Irrerest Dspenses

Comsuliney Dee

s Reimbursement

Keimbursemer lixpen

Advance Received [From Parties

Sale of Investiments

Investment made

(4] bad Maharashtra Line (In process of

Incorporation)

Inrerest lixpenses

Retmburserienty Fapenses Reimbursement
Advianee Ree
Badir Karn

ved From Parucs
tha Lane (In process of Incorporation)

Interest lxpenses
Remmhursement)/ Fxpenses Retmbursement

Vidvance Recerved From Parties
Gadag Karnataka Part A Line (In process of Incorporation)

Inrerest Pxpenses

Remnbursement Fxpenses Roemburscment

Mlvance Recetved From Parties

Solar Encrgy Rajasthan Part A Line (In process of
Incorporation)

Interes) Ly penses

Remmbursement/ Fxpenses Renmbursement

Advanice Receivesd From Parties

Solar Energy Rajasthan Part B Line (In process of
Incorporation)

Ierest Lispenses

Remmbursement/ Bapenses Rambuorsement

Sbvamee Recerved From Parnes

Solar Encrgy Rajasthan Mant € Line (In process of
Incorporation)

Tterest Expenses

Remmbursementy Hxpenses Rembursement

Avanee Recewed From Parties

Rajgarh Madhya Pradesh Line (In process of
Inearporation)

lterar Faporses

Remmbsement,” Pspenses Reimbursement

vdvaner Recaved Froom Parbies
Outstanding balances w.rt, associates are as under

Receivable from associates/ (Payable to associates)
Clhandid Tensmission Limited

1 2umka Transmussion Limared

Manch Transmssion Limited

Faslerma Transmission Lamited

Mymer Phagn Transec Lid

Blhundguna Uransmission Limeed

I Khambahya Transeo 1d

Iher Teangco Limrted (advance)

Lakacdia Ba
LT Isasacgode Transmission Ld

skantha Transco Lid

Rampur sambhal Teansco Lad

Paddar b arnaraka Line®

Ciadag Karmaraka Pare X Ling®

solar nergy Ragasthan Part A Line®
Solar Energy Ragasthan Paet B Line?
solar Bnergy Raasthan Paret C Line®
Raggarh Madhya Pradesh Line®
Cramanabad Maharashtea Line™

7 new 8% are in process of Incorporanon. However BFP was issued in March 2020 therefore as per allocanen pohey; expense have been allocated.

173
1.229.81
(3,33
46,10
3.0
3410

.70
548.71)
130350
28.40
500
5.00

Y62
11,80

.64
25.60

9.59
2360

.54
23,60

%31

17,30

4,52
29.50

951
29.50

87

HH

34.51

27

2633

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

249.26
24316

2177

22%:35

(131
(10413
{146}

(5.69)
(15.45)
(15.449)

{11.358)

JUk.64
193.57
17125
173,74

TR 14
BRAS
{034}
(357
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31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Tnvestments in SPVs

Chandil Transmssion Lad, B 5400
Lrwmka Transmission Ltd, 5.00 .00
Manda Teansmission Lid. 5.00 S.00
Kodermalrangmission Lid. 5.00 5,000
Dinchang Transaussion Lamated (denotified by Mol® on 25 March 2019)

Mmer Phagn Pranseo Ltd - S.0K1
Bhindguna Transmission Limicd - 5000
Jam Khambaliya Transco Led = 5000
Khetn Transco Limited {advance) 5000
|akacha Banaskantha Transco Ll 5000

LI Kasargode Transmission 1rd - 3.0
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38

Employee Benefits disclosure
(i) Defined contribution plans:

Provident fund:
The Company has provided provident fund eontribution to 1S employees. The contribution is deposited with EPFO. The contanbution deposited duning the yvear 1 R

(Previous vear Nil)
(i1) Delined benefit plans:

A. Leave

The Company provides aened Leave (EL) beneht to the employees of the Company which accrue annually at 30 days. The masimum eeding for encashment of leave o nene of
supernnuation/cessation from service other than on disciplinary grouand shall be limited 1o 138 days (L) 3000 of EL subgecr oa maximurm 138 days s en-cashable on resignonon
Il 15 en-gashable while in service leaving o minmum balance of 13 davs twce a year, The scheme s unfunded and hablity for the same is recogmsed on the hasis of Aetanal

Valuation,

Farned Leave

5.No. |Net defined henelit (asset) /liability 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
I |Currem .33 (IR 8
2 |MNon-cutrent 3146 3003
Toral PRO ar the End of vear 549 3.23
(i) Movement in net defined benefir (asset)/ liability
SN Lz Defined Benefit Obligation Fair value of plan assets Net defined benelir (asset) labiliy
No. Particulars
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 3L March 2020 31 March 2010
A Opening balance in 2.3 - - 32 250
I Ineluded in proficor ] :
(1} Careenl senace cost 316 24001 316 Tiny
() Past service cost =
() Ittercst cost (meome) 0125 [IN 1 025 {81
0 - =
1.2% 8T} 1323 (M7
0] Fiaanenl assumprons
Lixpernence adjustment
Kaeturn on plan assers excludng mierest income
Tatal amount recognised in profit or loss ( B+C) 4.64 130 . . 464 130
1y Other
1. Benehits paid (238 .38 238 11,34
J(:I(I'-i'lll_l_{ balance (A+B+C+D+E) 5.49 323 - - 549 3.23
(1) Actuanal Assumptions
e Followieig were the principal actuanial assumprions ar the reporting date
$.No. Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
I Dwscount Rate 6810 TO0%
2 |Purase Sadaer Increase 3.0

lalile on Government bonds at the accounting date welevant to currency of benefit pavments fora tenm that o the halihiy

i discount e s based upon the market yeilds ay
i sl Cromh ete s Company's long tenm best esimate as o salary mceeases & tkes account of sflaton, senonty, promonon, business plan, TTR poliey and other relevant e

ont bomyg term bases as provaded i selevant accounting peaiod.

(i) Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting dare to one of the relevant actuaeal assumptions, halding ather assumprions constant, would have affected the defined benefu

obligation by the amounts shown below:

; . Chiange in Asat Asat
S.No. Assumption N 2T 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
: Earned Leave
i Discount rate 1150 (137 fin22}
SRR 040 024
2 [Salary growth rate 0.50% (e} 024
1,50 {38y .22

Sensitviiies due o mostadiny & wathdmwals are not mareral & hence impact of ehange doe oo these have nor been ealeulared by actuary

Sensitivities as rate of morease of pensions m payment, rte of merease of pensions before retirement & Nife cxpectiney are not apphicalble

(iv) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Oblig
As at As at
S8.No, Year of payment 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Earned Leave
1 |Lessthan 1 vear (.33 019
2 |Berween 1-2 vears 10 i
3o | Berween 203 vears 10 005
4+ |Between 34 years 14 (L5
5 |Over 4 vears 440 290
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Notes tormung part of Financial Statements tor the year ending 31 March 2020

(Al amount n

38

|akhs unless aotherwse stated)
Emplovee Benefits disclosure({continued)

B. Loyalty Bonus

90

The benefits towards Lovalty Bonus is non-contributory defined benefit armngement provicding benefits expressed mtermy of mulnple or Gnal monthly salary. The obliganon 1

_ valt y gement providing 1 : I . i
provided for on sctuanal valuation done by an independent valuer. As per the Actuanal Valuaton Report for Lovalty Bonus Liabiiey having Plan Beoefic Oblygason (PBO) at the end
af the year as per schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 amounting Rs. 604 lakhs (previous year Its. 327 lakhs) has been recagnised as liabihry as per the derails hereunder:

Loyalty Bonus
S.Nuo. [Netdefined benefin (asser)/liabiliny 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
1 |Current 0 10.IHY
2 [Non-curment [ 337
Total PBO at the End of vear 6.05 327

(i) Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

e el e Defined Benefit Obligation Fair value of plan assets Net defined benefit {asset) liability
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
A |Opeming balance 327 azt |- 3,27 2.2%
Iv |[Included in profit or loss;
(i) [Current service cost 312 218 %12 A L]
(u)  [Past service cost
() [Iorerest cost (meome) 123 niT |- 033 (i
. |Remeasurement loss (gain):
Actuanal loss {gam) ansng from 165 {150 [ MR
(1 Financial assumptions
] Ixpenence adhustmoent
() [Return on plan assers excluding intecest income
Total amount recognised in profit or loss ( B+C) 402 L06 4.02 LO6
13 |Oither
I |Benchits pad 124 1.34
Closing balance (A+B+C+D+E) 6.05 327 - - fi.05 3.27

(1) Actuarial Assumptions

[T followang were the principal actuanal assumptions ar the reportgs die

|$.No.| Particulars

| 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 |

I 1 |l}i:€{1::u|1| Rate

(LA |

T00% I

The discount rate s based upon the market veilds avalable on Government bonds at the aceountmg date relevant to currency of benefit payments for a teem thar of the lability

(i

) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations

As at As at
S Mo Year of payment 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Loyalty Bonus
I |Less than | vear 44 104
] Botween 1-2 years 395 i
3 |Berween 2-3 vears a3y 325

(ii1) Sensitivity Analysis

Ieasonably possilile changes at the seporting date o one of the selevant actuanial pssumprions, holding other assumphions constant, would have affectad the defined Denehit

obligation by the amounts shown balow:

5.Nuo. Assumprion

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Change n
A :

Loyvalty Bonus

| [Ihseonnt mte

U3

11,501}

)

o

JLIXIR)

(1005

O'( CHARTERgy

* ACCOUHTANTS =<
*
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{Allamount m 1 Lakhs unless otherwvise stared)

39 Financial instruments

i} Financial instruments by category measured at amortised cost:

Finuncial assets
Investiments
Loans

Trade recevables

Cash and cash cquivalents

Other bank balances

Chber financial assers

Toual

Finuncial liabilities

Borrowings

Chther financial liabilites

Total

The carryimg amounts of fnancial assers and labilnes are considered 2 reasonable approximation of their faie values,

Fixeept for the beliw:

Invesiment in s free bonds (Quoted macket value)
Total fair value of investments

rvalues hierarchy

i}

The Company docs not have any financial assets oe financial habilitics ¢

40 Fir

i) Risk management

The Company is exposed 10 virous

The man types of dsks are credin nsk, lwgundiny risk and market rig
nt is coordimated i close co-operation with the Board of Dircetors, and focuses on securing the Company’s short oy mediom erm

The Compar

cial risk munagement

s risk maniger

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

7.526.57 H,B57.50

41.11 a7.m

1,753.72 2.200.29
14,803,687 1494711
91.51 33.04

163.00 Y3351
24,379.78 27,104.06
SOHLAN) =

14.021.57 1541438
14,521.57 15,414.38
8.542.13 9,633.27

8,542.13

9,633.27

ried at fair value,

cash flows: The Company docs nat engage in rrading of financial assets for speculutive purposes.

Ay Credit risk
Credit risk rating

The entity assess

s of financial assers.

At Low eredit osk on Ginancial reporting date

e eredil nsk

13 M
o hgh erodi risk

I'he entity provides for expecred eredit loss based on the following:

s in relation to financial instruments. The Company's financial assets and labilities by category are summansed in Note 34,

91

5 and manages eredit nsk of foancial assets based on following categonies armved on the basis of assumptions, inpats and facuors specific o the

Asset entity

Basis of categorisation

Prov

sion for expected eredir loss

Lo eredit nisk

mvestments and other financial assers

v and eash cquivalents, other bank balances, loang,

12 month expected eredit loss

Comtract asset and rrade receivable

Lafenme expected credin loss under simplificd approach

Based on business environment in which the entity nper:
defaults are determined based onoacmal eredit loss expenence and considering differences berween current and histoneal ceonomic condinons.

vsscts are written of T when there 15 no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as the hogaion of debtor 1 finally deeided against the enomy, The entty continues

[{ER G AT

b}  Provision for expected credit losses

31 March 2020

e with pacties whose balances are written off and attempis to enforce repayment.

there huve been no defanlts on financial assets of the entity by the counterparty. Loss rates reflecting

Estimated gross . Carryving amount net of

Particulurs carrying amount at l:.x.pcctcd impairment provision
Aetaciit credit losses

Investmenis 7.526.57 - 7.5260.57
Cash and cash equivalems 14, 803.87 E 14,803.87
(hher bank balinces 91,51 - 91.51
L.oans 4101 - 41.11
Trade recesvables 207633 (322.61) 72
Ohiler fnancial assers 165400 z 163,00
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(Al amount i Lakhs unless etherwise srared)

B

C

)

-~

*The Company does not e any Goancal instrument which exposes

31 March 2019

Estimated gross Carrying amount net of

Particulars carrying amount at l:.x!: eEeed impairment provision
defanlt credit losses
Investments B.857.50 - 8.857.50
Cash and cash equivalens 14.947.11 - 14,947.11
Chiler hank balances 33,04 - 3304
Loans 37.1 - 370
Trade recevables 2.290.24 = 2700.29
Clther Anancial assets 938.51 - 038,51

Reconeiliation of loss provision — Trade receivables

Reconciliation of loss allowance Total
Loss allowance on 01 April 2018 -
Prewision ereated dunng the pennd

Loss allowance on 31 March 2019 -
P'rovisions utilised during the perod
Provision writren back dunng the period -

Prowision created dunng the period 322.61

Loss allowance on 31 March 2020 322.61

, hence the Company has not prepared any general provisions i the cureent vear, the

Further, the Company docs not have any history of losses and expecred los

1 31 March 2020 represents impairment provision on trade receivables ereited over speeific assers rather than a genral approach, due o

iI'I'I]T'r'I]I'l'I'll.‘lH Pf!)\'iﬁi(ll\S t

15 ot owdgnated from the dare of recogninon, bur developed during

sonmie delay expected from recovenes of certain projects from a debtor JKEPDD. The same delay

the duc course of operations.

Gross Exposure Provision amount Net Debtor
JKPRD-UTDAY 40814 97 46 400,68
JRPE-PRIA 77492 91.77 386.15
IKPRD-PLA TR 13339 574.69
1,684.13 322.61 1,361.52

Liguidity risk
UTtrmare responsilility Tor |in|l|'lL]ily' sk management resis with the Doard of Directors. The Company maniges liguinclivy sk by maineiming adeguate reserves, back-
up facilifies such as deposits and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash Oows, and by matching the manrity profiles il assers and hallines

sh egquivalents on the basis

on and cash and

Management monttors rolling foreeasts of the Company's hquidity pos
Maturities of financial labilities

All the financial labiliues of the Company are current in nature and are maturing within 12 months perod from the end of reporting perod.

Market risk

Marker nisk is the ask thar the fur valee or furare eash flows of a fimanenl msteoment will fuerate beeause of changes i market prices. [t comprases of corrency
visle, interest rate vsk and poce mske

Currency risk:

The Company does not have any foreign currency transactions, henee, it i not exposed 1o currency risk,

Interest rate risk

ale

The Company hag taken a eredin limit facility during the year and the applicable interest rate on the same is v w tabile below represents the impact on P&

o 'r'II'Id |i| )i]ll|ll( 4

e or decre

{Gain / (Loss) Far 51 basis points iner ase in interest rate on Company’s floating rte
For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

o Change ininteres| rate) 040

Plewating eate borrowings (0.5

Fleanmg rate borrowings {(+0.5% Change in interest rate) (.44

Price risk:

: 7E tO prce s

Capital management policies and procedures
pital ineludes issucd share capital and all other distibuable reserves, The pimary objective of the Company’s eaprtal management 1s 1o maximise

The Company's ca
sharcholder value and o maintain an optimal eapital structure o reduce the cost of capital. The Company does not have any long-term bormowimgs and all ws capaal

needs are met by capital or sharcholders only, Although Company has some current ommowings:.

The debt equity vatio of the Company is as follows

As at 31 March 2020
Towal debr SO0L00
Net worth 11,200L08
Debt-equity ratio 0.04
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41

42

M.

V.

()

1" dddinn I disel ¢ I | i i i ill I)th‘T I.‘"ﬁlil:!i

% of holding Ve of holding Place of
Mame of associates As at As at incorporation/ Principle

31 March 2020 31 Muarch 2019 place of busi
Uhinchang Teansmussion Lirmged {CERETE OO0 Towdin
Apmer Phag Transco Lanured - 1000 Indin
Bhndguna Transmission Lamared - 100.00% India )
Chandil Transmassion Lid 100,000 100.00% Indi
Diurka Transmssion Lid. 100N T00L0% Trachia
Jam Ehambaliva Transco Linmred = 100.00% Tiicha
Khetrt Transco Lemred - 100,007 Indin
Kodenma Trnsmission Lid OO 100,008 Tl
Lakada Baoaskanthia Trinsco Lanwred - 100,000 Inclia
Mandar T'ransonssion L. O 10W, D0 T
Udups Kasargode Trans. Lt - (AR T
WRES XXT(A) Toansen Lawmred ©™ F: o Inila
Rampur Sambhal Teansco Limieed =+ - o Tadia
Osmanabad Maharshiea Line™ . Tl
Badar Karmaraka Line* + Iniea
Conelag Kaenaraka Pare A Line? + - Tiaelea
Solar Lnerpy Ragasthian Pact A Line? = - Inicla
Solar Fnergy Ragsthan Pare B e = India
Sohr Fuergy Ragasthan Paer € Lane® . - India
Rajgach Madhya Pradesh Line* ’ Tl

* T new SPYs ace w process of Incorperinon, owever request for propsal was issucd on 16th March 2020 thereforee, a5 per allocaton poliey expense have been allocared
“nthe previons year these entines sere under meomgsoeation status.

Mows,

Management meorporates these entities and wivest u them withia view o sell themn off as per the gadehoes of Manstry of poser, through e bl process preseedied by mmsey of poseer,
There 1 o possibility diat managemnt will ave benehits from these ennties ather than sellog them of £ benee all these mvesiment (o warh de cefared assers and labrhies) las beeo
classificd as held for sale

[T whove nwvestinents ane managed as pee the mandate from Government of Indma (Gol) and the Company does net have the practieal ability to diccet the relevant activities of these

Covmpames ymlaterally.

waates havingg sgonheant willoenee despie the Company holding 100% of ther pasd-ap cquity share

The Company therefore, consuders s investment i respecnve Comprantes as as

captal

Orher notes

Phere were twelve openng assocme compames (SI'Vs), meorporated i the provioos yeaes, namely Dinchang Transmassion Lewted, Bhand Guna Transtmssion Linned, Udups Kasaggode
Iravstssion Linred, Bodema Pransnusson Lannted, Chandsl Transmussion Lited, Dumbka Teansmisson Lamited, Mandar Teansoussaon Limted, Jamkhambaliva Teansea Linred,
Khern Transco Pamed, Apmer Phag Transco Liered, Lakadi Banaskanthia Transco Linuted and WHSS XX (0] Feansea Limated. One assoeates (SIVs] was meorporated dusng, he
I I Yeae 200920 smnely Rampur Samblhal Transeo Lamied, thus there weee total Tlirteen assocntes durg the year Out of the thiereen assocmtes, eght associates namely Klietn
Transco Lamted Bl Gova Tevsimssion Lamed, Udope Kasarggode Prosinsson Liested, Amer Phagn Transeo Lomied WRES XX I'n
Pasnred Lakadin Banaskaatha Transco Laonted and Ramgor Saoshbal Urnsco Linned were anslerred durmg the 195 2019-24,

At the vear e, there ane Pree assocmes (SPVE) o and | out of whieh one assoente namely Dimehang Trmnsmsson Limited was grven No Obejetion by Mol' for for seedinng off the
L 2013 feoni the Regster of Companes vide 1ts nonhcatson Mo,

sea (A Lamned, [ambhambaliva Teansco

e 248 ol Companes A

name of Dinchang Transnussion Laed (2 Wholly Owned Subsdury of RECT
A28 2007 R dated 31032020, for wiueh the faie value has been mken as zero,

Jamkhambalya Teanseo Limited, Kheta Tanseo Linsted, Ajmer Phag Teanseo Laowted, Lakadiva Banaskantha Transeo Limuted and WRSS XX Tamsco Lamnted lave been meorpomned
methe month of Mareh 2009 As per section 2(41) of Compames Aer, 2013 “cvery Company incomorated on or after the Lst day af Jamiary of 2 vear, the periond endung, mterala, on the
Flst day of Maceh of the tollowing Hoancial year will be the financil year of the Company™ Henee, the fiest fmancial year of the Company wasl be fram the date of wieorporton 1o 31
March 2020

Covermmen of [larkhind e s leter dated 2108217 b nominated RECTPCL as the Bad Process Coordimaror for the development of Inta-Sate tmosmission clements of
[larkluond Seare thwough Tandf Based Compennve Bidding route. As per the dicectons of [hackhand Ura Saacharan Nigam Limuted (State Transmission Uty of JThackland), the
ramstmssion Clements were dwaded mio 5 projeers and the RECQ) process was wntated. Subsequently,  Thackband Urpe Sanchaen Nigam Limuted o consulnon with Centmal Flectnen
Authorty & Cenmeal T saon Lnliey fmalized the revised transmission elemenrs of Jharkhand Stare o be developed theough Tanff Based Compentive Biddmg route. Aftenvands,
based e the dhreenoms o Jharkhand Una Sancharan Nigam Lamited the revised scope of work as been diwaded mod packages. Therefore, Fxpendiniee which was allocared to five projects
was re-nllocated w for ey

e Comngany s wholly owned subsidiary of REC Lub, o Gove of Tndia Baterprse, The Key Managenal Personnel af the Company are cimployees ol the [olding Company (REC 1ul)

deployed onpart b basis. No manageral seroumemtion as paid o such personnel by the Company. The deguls of such Key Managenal Peesonnel are as follows:

5. Nao, Name Designation Date of Appointment Date of Separation
1 She V. Kamesh Charman & [icector 27 Devember 2008 vt 03 March 20109
a2 Sl Aeer umar Seewal Ihrecionr 2T December 2008 upte (5 Maeeh 2009
She Aeer Bumar Apirwal Chasrnmn & Direcror fromm (s Mareh 2004
3 Sl Samgees Knmar Cupra Dhirceror 26 Derober 2003
+ Sh VUK Smigh Ihreetor 18 March 2019

e also from die FHokding Company (REC Tad), The sabary amd essilishment espenses wn respect of the persomoe] warkmg Tor the Company

Al othes personnel working foe the Company &
are pawd by the Holding Company (REC LEE sl vecaveree at cost from the Compangy

Wherever, any expemnliture s mcarred or payment made by the Holdgs Company (REC Lid ) on bebalf of the Company, procedusl and stanatory requirements with regand o deduriin

ub Tas ar Sowrce amd orher stmcory comphances, as appheable, are comphed by the Holdimg Company (REC L.
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1 A per thee approved pohicy, REC Ltd, the holding Company 15 chargmg the salary, other establishment expenses and defined labibines as 2 percenage
of the basic salaey for the sceonded emplovees as follows:

) Dasic Salary- On acual bass on the basis of esnmated ame spear for the Company

by Dearpess Allowance - at actual,

o) HRA/ Lease Accommiodaton chages- @30% of basic salary.

) Perguisites acacom] as per the emtitlement of the concerned emplovee,

o) Pertormanee rebared pay - ar acnial as per the masimuom eeding provided by DPE

) Famed Leave- for 30 daysan a year,

2 Medical Leave - for 10 days ina year,

by Defined Conmbution - 3% of the Basic plus DA, towards PE, Granury, Superannuation benefits and post reurement medical faciluy ere

) Interest oncost meurred by dhe Company for the associate Companies (SPVs) s chacged on the basis of general market mterest mte of T&E schemes of the wlnmate holdmg Compane
(REC Lad) for ungraced orgamsanons, presently @13 % paas on the begimmng of the Financial Year.

Other notes (Continued)

s have buen

nly for s projece speaific associares {called STVg), the expenses have been allacated at the year end to these SPVs. Dincct expen:
expendiuee has been incureed. Al Indivect) Common Fxpenses have been allncated to SPVs & projects (except Govermment Schemes) m
“huver 1s

Suce the Company
booked 1o the tespective SPV for wlich the
proportion of saliry of FLO, Sl deploved on the SPY from the month of ssue of REQ/ REP (I REQ stage 16 not adopted in the Bidding Process) or meorporation of $PV, wh
carlior, 0l the momth meowhich wath day from the dare of ssoe of Letter of Tnionr (1 LO1) for the transfer of the SPV falls. Part of the manth, 1f any, s consdered as full month for cost
o the Finds deployed Ly . Foe direcr cxpenses, mierest is charged from the month n which the expenditure 15 meurred whereas for mdirec

5 IHCUITIN Capeetises

allacation. The Company bas chagzed mie

expenses niterest w clarged for the average peood of deployment of funds, Sueh mterest s caleulated oo monthly hasis but recogmsed at the end of the year oc at the tme of wmnsioe of

SPV whaeheyer s eacher.

Annual and penodical allocation of expendituce by tie Company tw assocstes vl the complenon of service s accunuilated and debited 1o assocmtes account (invoice melusive of € 15
ransed] and the same s treated as advance (o associates reflected under the head Current Asser. The amount of advance ss tmnsfereed to Debtors and 15 reahized, dunng acquasstion of e

SPV by the successhul idder,

As per the miommanon svlable wah the Company, there are oo dues o Msero, Small and Mediom Fnterprises,

Dretails b expenditure and eaonings i foreign curency 13 as under

S.No. Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
1 lxpenditure Nil il
] Spemings Nl Nil
Tuotal - =

Palinces m parnes aceouns, advances, tade recovables and sundey pavables are subject o comlirmation /reconcillimtion and conse tiad adjustment that may anse on ceeonelbaniom o
[ ot I 1 !

any

RELETIPEL has ot an assignment ader VDAY Ujpwal IISCOM Assumnce Yopana) Scheme from J&K Power Development Deparinent against which eonmencement of the contraet s
Dever s baver. ommumal consent bass, the commencement of contece has been

s b reergmsed from e date of seeept of mobilsaton advanee or the date of siming of aprecinent wi

recnpmised leom the date of ssgng of agrecment

Comumgent Labihnes amd Comutmenes:

Asat As
31 March 2020 3 March 2019

I Conungent Liabilities not provided for
Nl NIl
240G (RS RE

Clanms agamst the Company not acknowledged as debts
Onhers

atmng o AY 2718 The wal mnount of denand

(A} Ancappeal has bees hlod betore CIT (Appeals) on 03 January 2020 against the Nouee and Order dated 08 December 2019 pe
eel 15 Rs 2086 Lakh and 20% of demand deposied w 1Y 19-20 for s 5.97 Lakh

(B} PGCIL Jas claimed for eecovery of charges from the eompany an account of ton cequirement of the Vemagin transmission line, which the company has disputed o 1l
the sand event has arsea after the trmnsfer of SPV 0 PGCIL, the sard eases pending before the Hon'ble Appellare Tribumal, Delhi as of the curcent status i the opusion of mmagement 1o

sl thin

Aot 5 payable 1o PGCIL,

1. Commitments not provided for
CER Comne

Capiral Commutments

201,57 11563
nn (IR 1]

s

Disclosure fin Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of Companies Acr. 2013
) Ciross amount regquured 1o be spent by the Company durmg the foancial year Bs. 8504 lakh (Previous year s, 92,99 akh) excludng brought forward anwm

i Ancunt speat dunng the year

For the year encded 3| Murch 2020 For the year eneded 31 March 2019
i Yet to
In cash 5K o Total I cash L Tatal

he paid be paid
Comstruction /acqusiion of the an = .
Onher than (1) above spend througlh
Purcka Forhe nstitute of Bnvironment = 104K
Artehienl Lamb Manufactiemg Coporation of Tnda (ALIMCO) - 17.5%

= " = 27.65 - z 27.04

Tonal

e} Lrnspent CSR fund for IFY 2007-18 of Re22.63, 2008- 10 of Rs. 22299, 20192020 of Ks 83,94
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Ihe Company 1s operanng n a single segment L providng consulianey services and therefore duclosure requirements of Tnd AS 108 15 not apphicable,

In the opimion of the management the vihue of the current assets and loans and advances on realisation n ondinany course of business will not be less than value at which these are siawd

incil statements,

the fmn

dancy firm and i terms of Minstry of Powee's

Warhaview to have berrer operavonal efficiency and 1o reap the benefies ol hagher eapatal base pooled resources and 1o ereate one big Cor
CHhce Memorandum dared 30ch Auguse 2017, the unbsted whally owned subsidiary companies of REC Lid e REC Power Disnbunon Campany Limited (REC PDCL) and RIXC
Peansrsseon: Progecrs. Company Limuted (RECTPCL) | have smeated the process of amalgamanon under which RECITPCL (Peanstersr Company) along with s whally cwned
subsidanes/assocees, wall merge meo RECPDCL] Tensferce Company), subject to voqusre approvals/sancuons of sharcholdersfereditors of the tansferor and transfeece companics
anid any other Competent Authority (ies), as may be eequired. Appreoval for amalgamanon s obtuned va MOD lettee dated | 1th Nevember, 2019 Further, the company m s 93th Bea
meeting dated 27 Jan 2020 have approved the meeger.

Adpustment of advance from patty apanst advace 1o Urbga Mara

Particulars For the Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Amount spent on Urp Mita Schieme 1/188.35 9545
Advanee from REC (Holdmg Company) 105967 Hi39.67
Amount spent an Llrja Mitra Scheme(Balance) 28,88 -
Advance from REC (Holding Company Balance) - 26422

The novel coronavirus {COVID-19) pandemic i spreading around the globe raprdly, The s Tas aken s oll on nor st baman T, e husmesses and Gnancial markers wo, the eyveent
ol which 15 currently mdetermmate, The Goverment of Inde has also annoimeed a eompulsory lockdown of sn 22 March 2020, The Company s earefully considenng the accounting
s 0f this sanon, However as of now the management has been alile 1o cope wah the siianen very well Due to the lockdown the operations ar the different sites of the

scred, as the Company has adopted the offlae work poliey fore most o

wphear

Commpany has been parially the wisrks.

Purther, the above dees not impact the revenue recagmiion of the Company where "Over the peand” services were heng rendered. However noease of "Point of sale” revenue, the
revenues may ger delay due o progect delays, theeefosre the Company bas aot recogmised any revenue after the lockdmwn/ suspension of operations wn such cases Further, the disect
v/ suspended. “The Indireer expenses o cxpenses whach are in the permanent nawre (Emplovee saluey etc ) are beng expensed by the

exprenses relanng e these progects has also geon de
Coenpany, and the same has been recogmised in the penod dvear 1 which these expenses pertan

Alses as the Company deals wath the Goverment depactments or Companics, it scems non-probable to the management that any of the Customers of the Company will defuult any
tuations get noralised.

payments. However theee his been o few cases of delays i the collecton, hut the management estimates that these are recewvable very soon, ance th

nent i the frde recerables or mvestments i the assocates

Alson, hasis upon the above fact, the management does not accept any addional unp;

Management s sull consdenng the impact of the siaoons on the penods subsequent o the current reporimg penod and will use the appropaie csmmares ac the respeeove reportme b

Forand o behalf af Board of Dhecrors of

ain & Compamy

lartered Accounants

REC Transmission Projects Company Limired

—
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-
(Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh) (Sh. R sh Frasad Vaish ¢
Ihrector Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of REC TRANSMISSION
PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date. and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements:

Reference is invited to note no. 40(X) regarding non receipt of confirmation of balances from parties
other than banks and related parties, and consequential adjustment that may arise on reconciliation.
In this it is explained by the management that necessary letter for obtaining the balance confirmation
has been sent to the parties and with respect to major amount, which is due towards Government
funds received, the concerned authority have confirmed total disbursement to the company.

Reference is invited to Note no 42(XVI) regarding amalgamation of the company with REC Power
Distribution Company Limited as per approval of Board dt 27" January, 2020 and administrative
Ministry approval dt 11" November, 2019.

Reference is invited to Note no 42(XVIII) regarding impact of Covid-19 on financial statements.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are
no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, and Corporate
Governance, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Stardalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Contd........
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¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Evaluate on the appropriateness of Management use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

Contd........
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d)

f)

g)

S

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Vide notification no. G.S.R.463(E) dated 05.06.2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies have been exempted from applicability of provision of section 164(2)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has disclosed pending
litigations which may impact its financial position in note 40(X11).

ii. The Company does have any such long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there are any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. Asrequired by C&AG of India through directions issued under section 143(5) of the Act, we give a
report in the attached Annexure-C.

Place : New Delhi

L1 2-06—2820

Date

For P. Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants
egistration No. 000711C)

NKAJ JAIN)
Partner
(Membership No. 097279)
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ANNEXURE “"A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of REC TRANSMISSION
PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adaquate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company'’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “*Guidance
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controis over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorization of management and directors of the company; and (3)

Contd........
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provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial contro! over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system,
except improvement in the system of allocation of common expenses to associates (SPVs) and
adequately defining the Internal Audit scope, over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

We have considered the areas of improvement identified which needs further strengthening as
reported above in the determining the nature, timing and extent of audit test applied in our
audit of the 31%March, 2020 Standalone Financial Statements of the Company. However these
areas of improvement do not effect our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company.

For P. Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants

Place : New Delhi ; ANKAI JAIN)
Partner

Date : |2-0&~282.0 ership No. 097279)
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited of even date)

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars except codification on
laptops and detailed location of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According
to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any
immovable property, accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (i)(¢) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

ii. The Company is not having any physical inventorics, accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ii) of

v

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted unsecured
loans to bodies corporate except advances to associate companies in the ordinary course of business,
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of
which:

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations.

(¢) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

made any loans. provided guarantees, investments and provided securities in contravention to
Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, as applicable.

. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits

as at March 31, 2020 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Ceniral Government under section

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. According te the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’® State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no disputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees® State
Insurance. Income Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2020 except income tax demand for A.Y 2017-
18 of Rs 23.89 lac for which appeal has been filed before CIT(Appeals).

viii. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions and government

or has not issved any debentures except working capital demand loan from HDFC bank for Rs 100
lakh. The company has not made any default in repayment of such loan.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

Contd........
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XVI1.

Place : New Delhi

I -

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year.

As per notification No. F.No. 1/2/2014-CL-V dated 05.06.2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Section 197 is not applicable to the company being a
Central Government PSU,

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the vear the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected
to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For P. Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 000711C)

KAIJ JAIN)
Partner

Date : |2~ 06— 2022 ' in No. 097279)
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P.JAIN& COMPANY CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

HO- 210 ARUNACHAL BHAWAN, 2"° FLOOR, 19 BARAKHAMBA ROAD NEW DELHI 110001
BO- 6, NAVYUG MARKET, 15" FLOOR, GHAZIABAD 201001

Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of Standalone Ind AS financial statements of REC
Transmission Projects Company Limited for the year ended March 31, 2020 in accordance
with the directions/sub-directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that to the best of knowledge

and belief we have complied with all the directions/sub-directions issued to us.

Place : New Delhi For P. Jain & Company
Date : |12-06 —2020D Chartered Accountants
.T\‘I0.00TI 1C
\ AW
)
Y
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Ay fain)
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ANNEXURE “C"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section of our
report to the Members of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited of even date)

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT system? If yes, the implications of processing
of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts
/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the
company due to the company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be
stated.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific
schemes [rom central/ state agencies were
properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term
and conditions? List the cases of deviation

The company is using Tally ERP 9
software for recording accounting
transactions entered by the company.
The tally software is not used in a fully
integrated way, as a result it does not
captures the transactions automatically
and transactions are manually entered.

No.

Yes, as per our test checks. It is suggested
that there should reconciliation of
balances by concerned Ministries.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCTAL
STATEMENTS OF REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The preparation of financial statements of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements
under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on

auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them

vide their Audit Report dated 12 June 2020.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of REC Transmission Projects Company
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company

personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under

section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(D.K. Sekar)
Place: New Delhi Director General of Audit (Energy),
Dated: 06 August 2020 Delhi



REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
(CIN: U40101DL2007GO1157558)
Consohidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020

(Al amount in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
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s As at As at
Particulars MNores
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

ASSETS
Naon-current asscts
Property, plant and cquipment 4 71.32 2736
Ohther Intangible assets 3 (.37 (136
Imancial asscis

Investments 6 1,526.37 HH57.A

Teade recemvables ] 1,361.32 (ALY

[Loans T (20 3701

Oither financial assces 8 B H4 B6 38
Deterred tax assets (net) ] 41.97
Total non-current assers 9,028,99 000881
Current assets
I'inaneial assers

Trade recesvables . 39220 by (o)

Cash and cash equivalents 10 1480387 14947 11

Cither bank balances 11 .51 3304

Losans 12 0.4

Cither financal assets 13 126.16 #3213
Current tx assers (net) 14 202,10 145.43
(ither current assces (&} 34970 83
Assets classified s held for sale L6 93347 955,49
Total current asscts 16,959.92 19.620.93
TOTAL ASSETS 25,988 .91 28.629.74
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Faquity
Foury share eapital 17 3.0 21
Orther equaty 18 11,255.08 11838490
Total equity 11,260.08 11,843,499
Non-current liabilities
I'reavisions 19 11.20 (ol
Deferred tax habalites (ner) 20 017
Tatal non-current liabilities 1120 6.47
Current liabilities
Farancil halalires

Borrewings N SOKLLKD

Oither financal habihines 22 14,021.57 15414 3%
Ofther current liabilites 23 127.530 135682
IPrisvisions 24 .34 LB R
L::[.ll::l”u directly assocmred with assers elassificd as held 16 Ga2n 289
Toral current liabilitics 14,717.63 16,779.28
Total liabilities 14,728.83 16,785.75
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 25,988.91 28,6249.74

Summary of significant aecounting policics

The accompanying notes 1 to 42 are integral part of the Consolidated financial statements,

I'his 15 the balanee sheet refeered toan oue audit report of even dade,

For P Jain & Company

fharrered Accountants

Place: New Deélhi

Date:! ’4 = 0( ;JDJD

(Sh. Vij

Inrector

N Na: (8

Kumar SinglIfy

REC Tr

I'orand

1o behalf of Board of Directons of

Projects Company Limited

(CINUE0U DL20TGOTT57358)

T i——d

(Sh. Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw)

Dhrector

3N Mo 01668883
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

(AL amount in T Lakhs unless otherwise stared)
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For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Notes
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Revenue
Revenue from apuerations 25 6,643.29 2.869.55
Cither income 26 1,273.16 |, 175.64
Total income 7,916.45 4,045.17
Expenses
Cost of services rendered 27 10054 133.03
lmplovee benefits expense 28 107.75 169,67
'mance costs 29 15.14 31.61
l'h'pl'i_'t.l::tllul1 aned amortisation expense 30 13.51 1.4t)
Impatrment of asset 31 322.61 112.43
Corporate social responsibilty expenses 42 (XL - 27.65
Oither CxXpenses 22 30218 33420
Toral expenses 861.73 823.94
Prafit hefore tax 7,054.72 3,221.22
Tax expense 33

Courrent tax 1,693.00 T62.43

[ eferred tax !'XE){.‘IIHL',-'"(' neome) (82.14) {1.200

1,610.86 761.23

Net profit for the year 5,443.80 2,459.99
Other comprehensive Income/ (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

le-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plins
Income rax rt'].l'r'!n‘u_ to) these items

Other comprehensive Income/ (loss) for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,443.86 2,4539.99
LEarnings per equity share

Basic/diluted carmmgs per share (in Rupees) 34 1088771 481997

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes 1 1o 42 are integral part of the Consolidated financial statements,

Ahis s the statement of ol comprehensive mcome reterred to m our audit report of even date.

For P.Jain & Company

Charrered Accountants

(Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)
Director

DIN No.: 02772733
Place: New Delhi

NMAIN:097279 |
Place: New Delhi

L ; J-?"Dé qwa

For and on behalf of Board of Direcrors of

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

(CIN:UA0T01DL200TGOIT57558)
A )

42\0‘)&

(Sh. Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw)
Dirceror

DN Mo 01868883

Place: New Delhi
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(CIN: U40101DL2007GO1157558)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amemne i 2 Lakhs unless otherwise siated)

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Fuor the year ended
31 Murch 2020

For the year ended

31 March 2019

Profit before tax 7.054.72 323122
Adjustments for:
Leprecianon and amortsanon expense 13.51 144
Interest Income received 71 (117169
P'eofit en sabe of mvesunens {31293)
Tnpairnent 32261
Twterest Faspense on borrowmgs 6.2 (]
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 6,125.43 2,064.64
Adjucitsaents for {inciase) § decrvase s aperaling wssets:
Fawa on Current) 1091 (.20
[oans (Curreat) (40,51) -
Other Non Current assets 369
I'rade recewables 1.R9E 10 (37341
“I'rade recenables (Non Currenn (1.684.13)
(hher finanetal assers (Current) 72597
Onbier current assers 47.13
Assers held for sale (27.98)
Adstrrcats fur frnivesse) [ deceriose on gheradong Sabilite
Prosvsons{Non-current) 1940 L
1,15 014

Priwsons(Current)
Trade payables

Chther fmancial habiics (Curreni

Other Current halbilines

cash low statement™

Moores Cash flow s prepared on Indivect method

{1,392 81
32

(1

Laabuhnes Tiedd for sale il 32 f
Maovement in Operating assets and Habilties (1L,397.07) (1,423.57)
Cash generated from operations 452776 639.08
Laoss: Ineome Tax ad (1.74%.65) G367
Net cash Qow used in aperating activities (A) 2,778.11 (320.54)

. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchage of propeety, plantand equipment 78 (3.97
Procecds from sale of [nvestinents 4015 4
Purchases of wivestments NCDs aud staggeted honds (3000001

peestment) of fn shares of asseoane companies (Ner) EOTRII AN
Maniery/ (Investment) of Corporaie Deposiis 6,483,510
Moty of Term Deposies (BN
Lterest Reeewved I 16514
Ner cash flow from investing activitics (%) 2,602:67 7,018.400

. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bormwings
[nterest pad {0.71y
Drvidends paud 6,829,008
Tax on divideid pawl (1.403.72)
MNet cash used in linaneing activities (C) (8,233.43)
. 3 ] 143.24 03597

Net Increase /{Decrease) in Gash and Cash Equivalents (A+DHC) ( ) )
Cashoane Cash Pgurvalenes av the begmung of the Yo [T 1588308
i I Feguvalents an e end of the Year 1-LRD3AT LT
Ttecom on of cash and cash equivalents as per ihe (143.24) (935.97)

For compoenents of cash and cash equivalent refer nowe ao, 10

Pl hefore my nludes CSR expenses s, MR

27.63)

Summary of sigmificant accounting policics

Ihe accompanying notes 1 to 42 are integral patt of the Consolidated fuancial staements,

Pz as the satement of cash Bow referred 1o our andin report af even dine

Bor P Jain & Company

" 1d-08~J0,95

s

{Sh. Vijuy Kumar Singh)
| hrector
131N No: (12772733

For and on belialf of Board of Dircctors of

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

|

b 2
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(Sh. Rimeshwer Prasad Vaishnaw)
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Consolidated Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

111

(Al amount in 2 Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
A Equity share capital
Particulars Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2018 5.00
Changes in equiry share capital during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2019 5.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2020 5.00
B Other equity ,
Particulars General reserve Retained earnings Total
Balance as at 01 April 2018 1,325.00 16,286.72 17,611.72
Profir for the vear - 2,459.99 2,45999
(3,529.00)

Foal Diividend

l'ax o final dividend (725.40)

Inrerm dividend (3,300.00) (3,300,007

Tax oninterim dividend (678.32) (678.32)

Halance as at 31 March 2019 1,325.00 10,513.99 11,838.99
£ 5,443.86 344386

I'rofin for the year
Interom dividend

ax on mierim dividend

(5,000.007)

(1,027.77)

(S 000,00
el )

(1,027.77)

Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,325.00

9,930.08

11,255.08

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanving notes 1 to 42 are integral part of the Consolidated financial statcments.

|Tes 15 the statement of |_'.|1'.|11;_I;t‘..~1 m L‘E|lli!}’ referved to i our audir report of even date,
For P Jain & Company

Charered Accountants
[ 00071 1¢

‘w

(Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)
Director

MRNO97279 DIN No,: 02772733

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delht
date: -7 Lt ir P 7]

lior and on behalf of Board of Dircetors of

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

(Sh. Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw)
Dircctor
DIN No: 01868883

Place: New Delln
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

[ Corporate Information

REC Transmission Projects Company Ltd. (RECTPCL’ or ‘the Group’) was incorporated in the year 2007. The
Company is domiciled in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office at Core-4, SCOPL Complex,
7. Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, India and principal place of business at Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi
Road, New Delhi-110003 The Group is a wholly-owned subsidiary of REC Limited (formerly Rural
Electrification Corporation Limited). RECTPCL together with its associates is called Group.

Ministry of Power has appointed RECTPCL as Bid Process Coordinator (BPC) for Inter State Transmission
Systems across the country on Tariff Based Competitive Mode. RECTPCL commenced working as BPC in the
year 2007 and successfully awarded its first project in the FY - 2009-10. 111l date, RECTPCL has been appointed
as Bid Process Coordinator for many a large Inter-state Projects. RECTPCL is also engaged inter -alia in the
business to promote, organize or carry on the consultancy services and/or project implementation in any field
relating to Transmission, Distribution, Generation and Smart Grid etc. in India or abroad.

2. Statement of Compliance
The Group prepared its Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the requirements of
Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). These Consolidated Financial Statements comply
with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended),
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines.
The Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 were authorized and approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 June 2020.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly ssued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in accounting policy.
These changes have also been adopted in line with the transition options available under the standards.

2.1  Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
T'here are no relevant amendments issued by MCA which are not yet effective as at 31 March 2020.

3. Significant accounting policies and management estimates

(I) The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the financial statements are as given below:
3.1 Basis of preparation and measurement
(i)  Going concern and basis of measurement

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention on accrual basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the criteria set'out in the Compantes
Act, 2013, The Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current
classification of assets and liabilities. Although one of the associates of the Company is “Non-going concern”, all
the receivables from such associates has been written off from the Consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Functional and presentation currency:
These financials are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Group’s functional currency, all amounts
have been rounded off to nearest lacs (upto two digits), unless otherwise indicated.

3.2  DBasis of Consolidation

The Group’s interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in the associates. An associates is an entity,
including an unincorporated entity, over which the company has significant influence and that 18 neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are inttially recognized at cost, which
includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidared financial statements include the
Group’s share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (OCljof equity — accounted investees until
the date on which significant influence ceases. In cases where it is considered that the investment/imnterest in
associate is held for sale, the interest in associate is accounted for under Ind AS 105.

3.3 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured.
The Group, to determine that how much and when revenue is recognized, what 1s the nature, amount, tming and
uncertainty of revenues etc. uses the principles laid down by the Ind AS 115. Revenue is recognised through a 5-
step approach:
(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer;
(i1) Tdentify separate performance obligations in the contract;
(111} Determine the transaction price:
(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and

(v) Recognise revenue when a pcrformﬂncc. obligation 1s satisfied.

Liseone from Operalion
Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts and other
indirect taxes

(i) In Cost Plus Contracts - revenue is recognised by including eligible contractual items of expenditures plus
proportionate margin as per contract;

(i) In Fixed Price Contracts — revenue is recognised on the basis of stage of completion of the contract. The Group
has assessed that the stage of completion determined as the proportion of the total tme expected to complete the
performance obligation that has lapsed at the end of the reporting period is an appropriate measure of progress
towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations under Ind AS 115.

Istimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

Professional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/developers for transmission projects put on tari{f
based bidding is accounted for in the year in which it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection of the
professional charges will be made.

Sale proceeds of Request for Proposal (RFP) documents 1s credited to the respective SPV and sale proceeds of
Request for Qualification (RFQ) documents is retained by the Group and accounted as income of the Group.

Lnterest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principle outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 1s the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on tnitial recognition.
3.4  Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes all expenses, direct and indirect, specifically attributable to its acquisition and bringing it to its working

condition for its intended use. Incidental expenditure pending allocation and atiributable to the acquisition of
fixed assets is allocated/ capitalised with the related assets. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

3.5

3.6

carrying amount only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and mantenance costs are
expensed when incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, nsefil lives and residnal vaiwe)

Depreciation on assets is provided on straight-line method in accordance with the useful lives prescribed under
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, Depreciation on assets purchased/ sold during the year 1s charged for
the full month if the asset is in use for more than 15 days, instead of charging the same on pro-rata basis from the
date of purchase/ sale.

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized 15 derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset 1s derecognized.

Intangible assets

Iﬂtﬂngihl{' assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisatnion and imp'.-lirmcm losses, 1f any. The cost of an
intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset
ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of intangible assets is recognised in statement of profit or loss.
Subsequent measuvement (amortization method, usefirl lives and revidial valug)

'or amortization of intangibles the amortization amount of intangible assets is allocated on a systematic basis over
the best estimate of its useful life. Management estimates useful life of intangible assets to be 5 years.

Leases

Ind AS 116 “Leases™ has been introduced which replaces the earlier Ind AS 17 and 13 applicable w.e.f. 01 April
2019

Accounting policy applicable from 1 April 2019

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease 1s defined as ‘a contract,
or patt of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of 1ime in exchange

for constderation’.

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

e ‘The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group.

e The Group has the right to obrain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract.

e The Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The Group
assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

At lease commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the itial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of
the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-usc asset or the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist,

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to inital measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It 1s
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit
and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced o zero.

The Group has shown the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on the face of statement of financial posttion.

Accounting policy applicable before 1 April 2019

Group as a lessee
Operating leases
All other leases are treated as operating leases. Rentals payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, Assoctated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are
expensed as incurred,

3.7  Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial hability or
equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets:
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are 1'ccognised on the trade date, 1.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent neasurement
Financial asscts carried at amortized cost — a [inancial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the

following conditions are met:

e  Theassetis held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold assets for collecomg contractual cash flows,

and

e  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subscquently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

De-recognition of financial asiets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) are
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are
transferred. Futther, if the Group has not retained control, it shall also derecogmse the financial asset and
recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt sccurities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured at Fair value through profit & loss account. (FVIPL).

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on T'rade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, 1t
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impﬂirmcnt loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, 1f credit risk has
mcreased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 1f, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month FECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losscs resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

Financial liabilities:
Initial rccognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including financial
suarantee contracts and derivadve financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability 1s discharged or cancelled or expires,
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantally different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 1s treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

3.9

3.10

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basi

to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an ordetly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability

takes place either:

+ 1 the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» i the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is signiﬁc:ml. to the fair

value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

is unobservable.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of televant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explamned
above,

Non-Current assets /disposal Company held for sale

Non-current assets/disposal Group are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will have recovered
principally through sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured at lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, except for assets such as
deferred tax, asscts arising from employee benefit, financials assets and contractual rights under msurance
contracts, which are specifically exempted from this requirement.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Non-current assets
held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the balance sheet.

Where the Group 1s committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of an associate, it classifies investment in
1eld for sale.

the associate (i.c. all the assets and liabilities of that associate) as
Employee benefits:
Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Leave Encashment & Loyalty Bonus.

a) Fixed Tenure Employees

The Group has recruited Fixed Tenure Employees for a period of 3 years, which is further extendable maximum
up to 4 years and 6 months, depending upon the requirement and performance. All employee benefits statutory
liabilities ¢.g. Pension and Gratuity ete. are not applicable to the Group. However, the Group provided for leave

CHAR}'ERE” L
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

encashment and loyalty bonus for which liabilities are assessed as per the actuarial valuaton and disclosed in
other notes to accounts.

b) Emplovees on secondment from holding company

The Group is managed by the employees deployed by REC Ltd (holding Group) on secondment basis and pays
their charges as service fee for deemed management service provided by its holding Group. The Service charges,
being charged as a fixed liability on the basis of actual employee cost, added with fixed charges on account of
future liability of Provident Fund, Gratuity, Superannuation and Postretirement benefit etc. With paying above
charges, Group owes nothing to its holding company for any future liabilities whatsoever against such seconded
employees.

3.11 Taxation

T'ax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred rax and current tax. It is recognized n
Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in Other comprehensive income
(OCI) or directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of
Previous years.

Deferred tax 1s recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assers and liabiliries in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to apply to
their respective pertod of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offser current
tax labilities and assets, and they relate to mcome taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred rax liability is recognized for all taxable remporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recogmzed for all
deductble temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utlized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related rax benefit will be
realized.
Changes in deferred tax assets or habilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in profit or
loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.
Dividend Distribution Tax is recognized at the same time when the liability to pay a dividend is recognized.
3.12  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event: it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may stll be uncertain. Provisions are measured at the
estimated expenditure required 1o settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at
the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainues associated with the present obligation, Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material,

A contingent liability is disclosed for:

® Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Group
0r
. Present obligations arising from past events where 1t 1s not probable that an outflow of resources will be required

to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
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(All amounts in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations s considered
improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made.

Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party concerning the obligation
(such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the
related provision.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the relared
asset 1s disclosed.

3.13 Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period.

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive Pt)l'(ﬂlli[—l] equity shares.
3.14 Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assers
or cash generating units to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. 1T any such mdicaton exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 15 estimated 1n order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basts of allocation can be idenufied, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

3.15 Allocation of expenses
The Group has been appointed by Government of India to act as Bid Process Co-ordinator for selection of the
Transmission Service Provider (developer) for Transmission Projects. Since the Group is incurring expenses
mainly for its project specific associates (called SPVs), the expenses have been allocated at the year end to these
associates. Direct expenses have been booked to the respective associates for which the expenditure has been
incurred. All Indirect/Common Expenses have been allocated only to the associates in the proportion of salary
of HO sff deployed on the associates from the month of issue of RFQ or RFP or mcorporation of SPV,
whichever is earlier, till the month in which tenth day from the date of issue of Letter of Intent (1LO1) for the
transfer of the SPV falls. Part of the month, if any, is considered as full month for cost allocation. The Group has
also charged interest on the funds deployed by it.
3.16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convernble nto known amounts of cash and which are subject to msignificant risk of changes in value.
3.17  Funds/grants received from government
Unutlized amount of grant/fund received are classified as current liabilities. Interest wherever earned on such
funds is credited to respective grant/fund account.
3.18 Dividend

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the sharcholders are recognized as changes in equity in the
period in which they are approved by the shareholders” meeting and the Board of Directors respecrively.
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3.19  Material prior period errors
Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior
periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occutred before the earliest period presented, the
opening balances of assets, habilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are restated.

3.20  Prepaid Expenses
A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition.
3.21 Rates and taxes
Overseas taxes on foreign assignments, indirect taxes, including Goods & Service Tax, professional tax, property

tax, entry tax, labour cess, octroi and any other applicable taxes etc, paid/accrued in India or abroad for which
credit are not available 1o the Group are charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.22  Rounding off amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lacs as per the
requirements of Schedule 11 of the Act unless otherwise stated.

(IT) Significant management judgments in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related
disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(i) Significant management judgments
Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liability — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized 1s
based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred 1ax assets can
be utilized.
Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluauon of the applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result m
detertoration of recoverable amount of the assets.

(it) Significant estimates
Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management teviews its estimate of the useful lives of

depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertaimties
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
mstruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. In case of non-availability of market-
observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy is used for fair valuation.

Income Taxes — Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of expected future
profitability to assess deferred tax asset.

Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) — The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial assets
measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future

cconomic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The
Group makes significant judgments about the following while assessing expected credit loss to estimate ECL:

e  Determining criteria for a significant increase i credit risk:

e [stablishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated LCL; and
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e [stablishing Companys of similar financial assets to measure ECL.

Leases — The management while determining the lease period of an asset makes estitmates on various extension
and termination options, the same affects the period of the lease and hence the determimnaton of lease liabiliry

and right of use of assets.

Revenue from customers — The management while recognizing revenues, makes several estimates including
estimation of recoverability, allocation of transaction prices to respective performance obligations, estimations
of degree of work completed (/Performance obligations satisfied) and estimated works.

Current/Non Current classification- The management expects the realization of all operating assets is within
12 months from the reporting date. For the assets, even though operational in nature, but expected to be realized
after 12 months from the reporting date, are classified as non-current.

Impact of Covid-19 Outbreak - The extent to which the Covid-19 pandemic will impact the Group will depend
on future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new information
concerning the severity of the Covid-19 pandemic and any further action by the Government. or the Group to
contain its spread or mitigate its impact.
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4 Property, plant and equipment

122

. Furniture & Office Computer Minor Value |
Description . - ; Computers Total
Fixtures Equipments Equipment Assets
Gross carrying value

Asat 01 April 2018: 6.03 8.44 2.84 3.44 40.18 60.93
Additions 0.44 0.31 - 0.42 4.74 5:.92
Disposals - - = - -

As at 31 March 2019 6.47 8.76 2.84 3.86 44.92 66.85
Additions 0.27 250 - 0.28 4.63 7.48
Disposals - - - - - -

As at 31 March 2020 6.74 11.06 2.84 4.14 49.55 74.33

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2018: 1.46 2.01 1.45 3.44 16.92 25.28
Charge for the year 0.57 1.59 0.45 0.42 1118 14.21
Adjustment for disposals - ; = - - =

As at 31 March 2019 2.03 3.60 1.90 3.86 28.10 39.49
Charge for the year 0.61 1.81 0.44 0.28 10.18 13.32
Adjustment for disposals - s - )

As at 31 March 2020 2.64 5.41 2.34 4.14 38.28 52.81

Net block as at 31 March 2019 4.44 5.16 0.94 - 16.82 27.36
Net block as at 31 March 2020 4.10 5.65 0.50 - 11.27 21.52
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5 Other Intangible asscts

Description e Total
Software

Gross carrying value
At 01 April 2018: 0.95 .95
Additions = -
Disposals = -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 0.95 0.95
Additons - -
Disposals 2 =
Balance as at 31 March 2020 0.95 0.95
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 April 2018: 0.20 0.20
Amortisation charge for the year 0.19 0.19
Disposals z .
Balance as at 31 March 2019 0.39 0.39
Amortisation charge for the year 0.19 (.19
Disposals 5 =
Balance as at 31 March 2020 0.58 0.58
Net book value as at 31 March 2019 0.56 0.56
Net book value as at 31 March 2020 0.37 0.37

123
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
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As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

6  Investments (Non Current)
Investments in Government/Trust Securities
(a) Investment in tax free bonds-Quoted (at amortised cost)
Rural Electrification Corporation Ltd. (Holding Company)
7.38% Tax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs. 1.024.60
1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020 / 2019 : 100,000 / 350,000) i

846" Tax [ree 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs.

- : 3 2,570.50 2,570.
1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019 : 250,000/250,000) s A
7.55% Staggered Papers of face value Rs. 1,000,000/ - cach, fully paid (31 March 50776
2020/2019: 20 /Nil) = )
7.09% NCD of face value Rs, 1,000,000 /- each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 100 / {02112
Nil) i )
(b) Investment in tax free bonds-Quoted (at amortise cost) (in others)
(i) Housing and Urban Development Corporation Ltd. (HHUDCO)
7.39% Tax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs. vi 5 481,39
1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 47,647 /47647) A Wtk
7.390% Tax Free 15 vears Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs. R )
2 400.05 399.91

1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 39,151 /39,151)

(11) Nadonal Highway Authority of India Ltd. (NHAT)
7.35% Tax Free 15 vears Sceured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs. ;. i
e _ , i, 459.87 450.79
1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 42,855/42,855)

7.39% "I'ax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertble Bonds of face value of Rs.
1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 35,463/35,463)

1
N

367.606 36751

(iii) Indian Renewable Encrgy Development Agency (IREDA)
7.49% Tax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs. 621 69 621,76
1000/~ each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 61,308 /61,308) i R

(iv) Indian Railway Finance Corporation (IRFC)

7.35% Tax Free 15 vears Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs. 230,92 530,85
1000/ - cach, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 22,338 / 22,338) e il
(v) National Bank fot Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD)

7.35% T'ax Free 15 years Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds of face value of Rs. 140.53 140,51
1000/ - each, fully paid (31 March 2020/2019: 14,028/14,028) e '

Total 7,526.57 8,857.50
Aggregate market value of quoted investment 8,542.13 9,633.27
7 Loans (Non Current)
Unsecured, considered good
0.20 37.01

Security deposits*
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* Refer note 39 for fair value disclosures.

Other financial assets (Non Current)
Term Deposits with maturity more than 12 months*

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

125

0.20

37.01

As at

31 March 2020

As at

31 March 2019

36.84

86.38

36.84

86.38

* Term deposit receipt has been placed on lien with Canara Bank as collateral security for issue of bank guarantee for Mizoram.

Trade receivables
Non current

Unsecured, considered good

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

‘T'rade receivables with significant increase in credit risk
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Credit impaired
Iess: Allowance for expected eredit loss

Current

Unsecured, considered good
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Trade recetvables with sipnificant increase in credit risk

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Credit impaired
Less: Allowance for expected eredit loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
- with scheduled banks in current accounts
- with Government Fund accounts™*

Cheque in hands

“armarked Balances with Banks for Government Funds received and can be utlised only for the specific purpose.

No. 22 (Government [Fund for Schemes**)

Other bank balances

Deposits with original marurity more than 3 months but less than 12 months*

#T'DR has been placed on lien with Canara Bank as collateral sccurity for issue ofL

As at

31 March 2020

As at

31 March 2019

1,684.13 X
(322.61)
1,361.52
1,361.52 0.00
392.20 2.200.20
(0.00) '
392.20 2,290.29
392.20 2,290.29
1,198.28 110.80
13,116.57 14,800.08,
489.02 36.23
14,803.87 14,947.11

Refer Note

33.64

33.64
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12 Loans (Current)
Security deposits *-current 40.91
40.91 -
* Refer note 39 for fair value disclosures,
13 Other financial assets (Current)
Recoverable from Goverment of India
Amount spent on Urja Mitra Scheme* 28.88 795.45
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyot Yojana Fund 64.87
Retention money receivable 3241 30.12
Other Trade/Commercial Advances - 26.57
126.16 852.13
Refer note 42(XVII)
14 Current tax assets (net)
Advance Income Tax and TDS 5.383.95 3.640.18
Less: Provision for Income tax (5,187.82) (3,494.75)
196.13 145.43
Tax Deposited on income tax demands under contest* 5.97 =
Provision for income tax for demand under contest z =
5.97 -
Total 202.10 145.43
“Refer note 42(XIT(A) for derails
15  Other current assets
Advance to Suppliers 63.32 195.93
Balances with statutory and government authornties 95.13 197.21
Cost of fullfillment carried forward 191.23 -
Prepaid Fixpenses = 3.69
349.70 396.83
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
16 Disposal group
Assets classified as held for sale
(A) Investment (refer note 16.1) 20.00 50.00)
(B) Loans to associates (refer note 16.2) 933.47 905.49
Total (A+B) 953.47 955.49
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale
(CyPayable to associates (refer note 16.3) 68.22 7.89
Total(C) 68.22 7.89
Disposal group -Net assets (A+B-C) 885.25 947.60
This space has been intentionally left blank
16.1 Investments in associates
Investments in Equity Instruments of associates (fully paid up)
0.00 5.00

Ajmer Phagt Transco Limited*

50000 equity shares of 10/- each (31 March 2019: Nil )
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16.2

16.3

Bhindguna Transmission Limited*

50000 equity shares of - 10/- each (31 March 2019:
Chandil Transmission Ltd

50000 cquity shares of © 10/- each (31 March 2019:
Dumka Transmisston Lid.

50000 equity shares of | 10/~ each (31 March 2019:

Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited*

50000 equiry shares of 10/- each (31 March 2019:

Kherri Transco Limited*

50000 equity shares of 1 10/- each (31 March 2019: N

Koderma Transmission Ltd

50000 equity shares of | | 10/~ each (31 March 2019
Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited*

50000 equity shares of [ 10/~ cach (31 March 2019:

Mandar Transmission Ld.

50000 equity shares of | | 10/- each (31 March 2019: N

U'dupi Kasargode Trans. Lid.*
50000 equity shares of | 10/- each (31 March 2019:
Dinchang Transmission Lid.**

50000 equity shates of . 10/- each

Nil )
Nil )
Nil )

Nil )

127

0.00) 5.00)
5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
0.00 5.0
0.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
0.00 5.0
5.00 5.00
0.00 5.00
0.00 (.00
20.00 50.00

“t Dmchang Transmission Lid was denotified vide Mol letter dated 25 March 2019 and subsquently mvestment was writteolf,
MOP permission for striking off company with MCA is obtained during the year and the required papers are being filled with MCA.

Loans to Associates

Chandil Transmassion Limited

Dumka Transmission Limited

Mandar Transmission Limited
I<oderma ‘Transmisston Limited
Ajmer Phagt Transco Lid*

Bhindguna Transmission Limted*
LDUPI Kasargode T'ransmission Led*
WRSS XXI (A) Transco Lid

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

Jam Khambaliva Transco Ltd*

IKherri Transco Limited*®

Lalkadia Banaskantha Transco Ltd*
Bidar Karnataka Line®t

Gadag Karnataka Part A Line**
Solar Energy Rajasthan Part A Line**
Solar Energy Rajasthan Part B Line**
Solar Energy Rajasthan Part C Line™*
Rajgarh Madhva Pradesh Line*~
Osmanabad Maharashira Line**
Total

+ 5PV Sold Dul’ing the I'Y 2019-2020

FESPVs in process ol mcorporation as on 31.03.2020

249.26 198.64
217.1 193.57
243,17 171.25
223.33 175.74
= 18.14
88.05
= 25.14
_ 34.96
933.47 905.49
= .34
- 3.57
= 3,08
10.31
10.41
10.46 -
5.69 -
15.48 -
15.49
0.38
68.22 7.89
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17 Equity share capital As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Authorised equity share capital

50,000 (31 March 201%: 30,0000 Iquity shares of Rs 10 each 5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital

50,000 (31 March 2019: 50,000} Equiry shares of Rs 10 each 5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00

i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Parent Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vore
per share,

In the event of hiquidation of the Parent Company, the holders of equity shares will be enttled to receive remaiming assets of the Parent
Company, after distiibution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of cquity shares held by the

sharcholders,

i1} Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
No. of shares | lakhs No. of shares lakhs
Equity share capital of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up
Balance ar the beginning of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 .00
Nl Tssued during the vear = = =
Balance at the end of the year 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00

iii) Sharcholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Parent Company as at balance sheet date:

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
No. of shares “ holding No. of shares % holding
49,994 Liquity Shares held by REC Limited (formerly known as Rural
Iectrificanon Corporation Lrd.) ([Holding Company) And Balance 6
lquity Shares through other nominee of RIEC Lid.
S0,000 100.00% 50,000 100L00%a
iv) Shares held by holding Company:
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
No. of shares % holding No. of shares o holding
49,994 Liquity Shares held by REC Limited (formerly known as Rural
Flecmification Corporation Lid} (Holding Company) And Balance 6
lquity Shares theough other nominee of REC Lrd.
50,000 100, 00% 0,000 100,00

v) The Parent Company has neither issued equity shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or any bonus shares nor

hats there been any buy-back of shares in the current year and five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date,

18 Other equity As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Gieneral reserve 1,325.00 1,325.00
Retmed earnmgs 9,930.08 10,513.99

11,255.08 11,838.99
Mo

General veserve 15 created from nme to ame by way of transfer profits from retained carnings for appropriation purposes. General reserve is created by a
rranster from one component of equiry to another.

Also refer sttement of Changes i Hguity
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19

20

21

22

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Provisions (Non Current)
Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note 38)

ply.

Provision for Loyalty Bonus 6.04

L
= b

=
| =
(=23 R %)

Provision for compensated absences 5.16

11.20

Deferred tax Assets/Liabilities (net)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between depreciation as per i (0.29)
income tax act and depreciation charged in the books i

Total deferred tax liability - (0.29)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:

Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference berween depreciation as per 077
mncome tax act and deprectanon charged 1n the books

Timing difference on impairement provision #1.20

Financial assers and liabilities measured ar amornised cost 0.12

Total deferred tax assets 81.97 0.12
Deferred tax assets /liabilities (net) 81.97 (0.17)
Net Deffered Tax Charge for the Year

[or the year ended 31 March 2020 (82.14)
lior the year ended 31 March 2019 (1.20)

Note: The Movement hetween vears represents additions /deletion (reversals) in cutrent or previous year. Additions/reversals

during the year has been charged 1o profit and loss account during the year,

Borrowings (Current)
Cash credir loan from HDFC Bank({ Unsecured) 500100
500.00 -

Notes: HDFC Bank has sancrioned Credir Facility Name Working Capital Demand Loan (WCDL) with limit of Rs. 1000 Lakhs,
Rate of interest 1s (1 marker credir lending rate + 15 bps). The credit facility 15 unsecured.

Other financial liabilities (Current)

Earnest Money Deposits/Contract performance gurantee 17.19 12:50
Fxpenses Payables 433.58 121.91
Retention money payables 52.34 30.78
Payable to related parnes 126.35 35.53

1.54

LEmplovee related payables
Government Fund for Schemes
Prime Minister's Developmenr Package Fund - J&K 11,941.27 14,541.28
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyvori Yojana Fund - 79.28
Power System Development Fund for Rural Feeder Monitoring Scheme 1,421.04 285.56
14,021.57 15,414.38
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23

24

QOther current liabilities

Advance from REC (Holding Company)!
Advance from customer

Mobilisation Advance- JKPDD-UDAY
Deterred income '
Statutory Dues payable

‘Refer note 42(XVII)

Provisions (Current)

Provision for Employee Benefits (refer note 38)
Provision for Loyalty Bonus*

Provision for compensated absences

FThe amoints has been ronnided off to seera,

This spece bas been intentionally left blank

0.56

130

1,059.67

23,74 42.75
89.09 71.46
14.11 182.95
127.50 1,356.82
0.01 0.00
0.33 0,19
0.34 0.19
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25

26

27

(b)

30

Revenue from operations
Sale of services *

Consultancy & Execution of Transmission Projects

Professional Charges
Agency Pees

Other Operating Revenue
Documentation fees

*Refer note 36 for details revenue.

Other income

[nterest [ncome on Term/ Corporate Deposits
Interest Income on Tax I'ree Bonds

Interest Income from SPVs

Interest Income on Staggered Papers

Interest Income on NCDs

Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost

Profir on sale of investments

Miscellaneous Income

Cost of services rendered
Survey Charges
Consultancy Charges
Advertisement xpenses

Meeting & Conference Expenses

Employee benefits expense
Salaries and Wages
Contribution to Provident and other funds

Refer note 38 Employee benefit obligations details.

Finance costs

[nrerest Expenses
Working capital loan from bank
Income rax
Others*

Bank Charges

# Includes interest paid to REC amounting to Rs 4.02.(Nily

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation (also refer note 4)

Amortisaton (also refer note 5)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

533.98 946.43
6,092.36 1,827.01
16.95 16.95
- 79.14
6,643.29 2,869.53
72.14 430.43
656.54 663.91
125.81 T7.35
70.20 .
26.93 -
410 3.94
31595 -
1.49 0.01
1,273.16 1,175.64
36.58 70.75
60.30 4936
- 153,16
3.60 0.67
100.54 133.95
105.60 169.67
215 =
107.75 169.67
(.25 0.71
2.99 23.97
577 536
15.01 30.04
0.13 1.57
15.14 31.61
1552 14.21
0.19 (19
13.51 14.40
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(All amount in | Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
31 Impairment of assets
Diminution in value of investment - 5.00
Impairment on trade receivables 322.61 =
Impairment on other assets - 10743
322.61 112.43
32 Other expenses
Manpower Expenses 132.25 149.71
Travelling and Convevance 26.88 32.46
Rental Charges 63.34 73.38
Rates and Taxes 0.95 0.63
Power & [fuel 3.49 5.78
Postage, Telegram and Telephone 2.69 3.63
Auditors' Remuneration® 575 2.30
Legal & Professional (lhm.'gcs 13.00 30.89
Ofhice Expenses 16.43 17.62
Technical / I'T" Services Expenses 7.74 1.36
Miscellaneous Expenses 29.57 16.30
302.18 334.26
#Auditors' Remuneraton
Audit Fee 3.00 1.70
Tax Audit Fee 1.25 (.60
Oither Services/Certfication fee 1.50

5.5 2.30
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(All amount in || Lakhs unless otherwise smn:d}

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
33 Tax expense
(i) Current tax:- (including taxes carlier vears)
Tax on current year profies 1.693.00 76243
(i) Deferred tax cxpcnsc/{crcdi;] (82.14) (1.20)
1,610.86 761.23

The reconciliation of expensc based on the domestic cffective tax rate and the reported tax expense in profit or loss is as follows:

Aceounting profit before income tax 7,054.72 3,221.22
Applicable tax rate 25.17%% 29.12%
Income tax at the rate mentioned above 1,775.53 938.02
Tax effect of Non-deducuble expenses for tx purposes .59 16.54
Tax effect of income of mx free bonds (163.24) (193.33)

Tax effect of rate change (0.02) =
1,610.86 761.23

34 Earnings per share (in INR)

Net profic for the year 544386 245999
Waeghted average number of cquiy shares for EPS 56,000 50,000
Par value per share 10 10
Farnings per share - Basic and diluted (in INR) 10,887.71 4,919.97

35 Leases

sition dare resuleed nto a

Group has made transition to Ind AS 116 ag ar 01 Apnl 2019, The assessment made by the Group as ac
conclusion thar all the leases of the Group falls under shorr term leases.

Toral cash ourflow in respect of short term leases in the vear amounts 1o Rs. 6334 Lakhs.

The expense relating 1o payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:
For the year ended
31 March 2020

03

4

fa

Short-term leases

Leases of low v

The Group also incurred reneal explnse amountng to Re 14035 Lakhs, which has been allocated to respretive assocites, the same has not

heen inchaded above,

Extension and termination options
The Group has lease contracts for "Office block and contractual sites” which are used for regular operations of s business, There are
several lease contracts that include extension and rermination options which are further discussed below,

The Group las several lease contraces that mclude extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to
provide flexibility m managing the leased-asset portfolio and algn with the Group’s business needs. Management excreses significant

judgement i determiming whether these extension and rerminanion oprons are reasonably cerram to be exerased

Critical fudvesents ix determining the fease tevm
In determining the lease rerm, management considers all facts and errcumstances that ereate an cconomic INCentive to Cxeraise an extension
n]\riun‘ OF NOE exercise 4 erminaton upIi(m Fixtension npril:lls (nr I!L‘I"iHLI.\' after termmation i:|1lil:|lsj arc =J|1|y included 10 the lease wom if

the lease ts reagsonably certain ta be extended (or nor teeminared).

ssment is reviewed if asignificant event or a significant change 0 circumstances ocours which affeers this assessment and that is

The ass
within the control of the lessee.
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020
(Allamountin [ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

36

O

Other transition aptions

The transimon has resulted ro il effect on the Group's financial statements, although the Group has adopred the new standard and any new
contract entered in the future will be dealr according to the new accounting policy of the Group,
IFor contraets in place as at 1 Aptil 2019, Group has clecred to apply the definition of a lease from Ind AS 17 and has nat apphed Ind A5 116

b ar .\I'Igt_'t'l'lt‘ﬂfl‘ r]l'ﬂl were ]'I'I'L‘\'.l()'llrill\"’ not idt‘ﬂ l'if'lt_‘L{ as |I."-I."|.' 'lllli.ll.'l' ]I'IL{ .\S l?

On transition, for leases previously accounted for as operating leases with a remaming lease term of less than 12 months and for leases of
low-value assets the Group has applied the optional exemprions to not recognise tight-of-use assets bur to account for the lease expense on
a straightline basis over the remaining lease term.

Revenue from contracts with customers under Ind AS 115

The Parent Company is engaged in providing following services-

Coordinator (BPC) for Inter State Transmission Systems across the country on
\ } ;

Mintstry of Power has appointed RECTPCL as Bid Process
L.
o RECTPCL has been appointed as Bid Pro

r 2007 and suceessfully awarded its first project in the

PCL commenced working as BPC an the )

Tanff Based Compennve Mode, RE
; s Coordinaror for many a large Inter-state Projects. RECTICL 15 also

Iy

engaged inter -alia in the bosiness to promaote, organize or carry on the consultaney services and/or project implementation o any field

relating to Transmusston, Disteibution, Generation and Smare Grid et in India or abroad.

RECTPCL 15 conducting the bidding process for 1ST5 projects, starting from selection of qualified bidders to handing over of the Special
Purpose Vehicle to the lowest bidder, RECTPCL provides consultancy services i Power Transmission sector to states/Umon Terntories
under varous central fstate Government schemes such as Project Management Agency (PMA)/ Project J\'Iull'.lgumunl (:(JH.‘&[I]UIUL’}' {1PMC),
mart .\-Icrcriuluf Smart Grad and Informanon -|Il'(.'||1]”|n:_l|'_\' ey projcts as Project

The Parent Company s also working in various §

Implementing Aoency (PLAY Project Management Apeney (PMA) for implementation of vanous dismboton infrastructre projects under
£ AL A ! 1 2d B L /

1eatiesn ﬂg‘.‘l'l('}' m r]l{' state lJrJ}III'I['I'I'lI '-'I'nd l.:-ll H'I"Iii;’_ill'

various Oove. schemes - The Parent Company 15 also \\'nrking as Progect ||np|vn|

and Leh.

Sig’l‘liﬁcﬁﬂl 'I‘l'l'-ll'l'-lgcll'lf_‘lll iu:lgmcnls on revenue [{:C(lgﬂitil'}n:

Recognized amounts of contract revenues and relared vecevables swhen the contract has heen approved by the parties, inwning, 1o the

contract, the parties to contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract 15 legally

l]'I'L'l."rII!]L' Reveue fnun II'IL‘ comtricts IL‘L‘U}_’,I]"&ZI.‘LI I'I:I.“L'd (&35} I'I'l.![l':ili_"L"'l'l{'llf.!\' l)l.'.‘il L'Ftil1'li||t‘F ilr- ('ilt}! ('lll'l['r:l(.l’.‘i ouicome '-II'Il] Pi'.l_t"" llr

complenion which s determimed based on progress | efforts | cost incurred to date bear o the total estamated cost of the transacdon, time
I proyj
sment constdered

spend, service pertormed (generally mentioned me the contraces wath the customer) or any other method that manag

appropriare, When there 1s uncertainty as to colleerabiliry, revenue recopmition 1s postponed unnl such uncertunty is resolved.

Algo while allocanng that transaction price ro the speetfie performance obhgations identfied 1 the conrracr. The rransacton price s

Y ]|riL‘L', which generally 15 not readily avalable, henee
l|p‘1n s L'XPC”L'"CL‘ ﬂ“d Cl}l]r]";lcﬂllll J1{:§_[()r|:|(i()ll§.

',I"Ul".'ll('(l (L} llll.‘ |\r.‘|i‘rrrn'|'f||u.'(' l]l!]ig}llil]hl.ﬂ' 1)':!."{‘\[ on .[Ih' I'I_‘]':'IIII\'L' 'il'-ll'lll'.hhl]'ll.' s

management estimates the stand alone selling prices bas

Disageregated revenue information
RECTICL's revenue mostly comes from exceunon of transmussion projects, professional charges, agency fees. Professional charges o be
charged from the seleered bidders/developers for transmission projects put on taniff based bidding 1s accounted for i the year m wlieh i s

reasonably certain thar the ultimate collection of the professional charges will be made.

a. In accordance with Ind AS 115, set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers:

Type of goods/services For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Sale of st wls -

Sale of services 6,643.29 2,8649.53

Total revenue from contracts with customers 6,043.29 2,869.53

Revenue by time

Revenue recogmised at pomnt in nme 6,084.57 2,169.890
12 6U9.63

Revenue recognised over nme

Total revenue from contracts with customers 6,643.29 2,869.53
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REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(Allamount in — Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

D

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Contract price” 65,643.29 2,869.53
Adjustments for:
Rebares and discounts - -
Revenue from contracts with customers 6,643.29 2,869.53

*RECTICL's revenue mosty comes from exccution of transmission projects, professional charges, agency fees and documentation fees

Reconcilauons of cost of fullfillment carried forward
Ulpening
\ddinons during the vear 191.23 -

Closing 191.23 -

Reconcilations of Deferred income
Opening of deferred meome 71.46 -
Revenue recognised during the year

Addinon received during the year 17.62 71.46

Closing §9.09 71.46

Reconcilations of advance from customer

Upening - -
Amount billed for the year - -
Vddions during the year (.56 -
Closing 0.56 -

Remaining performance obligations
Amount of remaining performance obligations (unsansied or partally unsatistied) 9,364.00 9,357.00

The remaming performance obligaton disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as ar the end

of the reporting pertod. Remaining performance obligation esnmates are subjeer to change and are affected by several factors, including

IL'I']]liI ‘.Illl'l.*, ['II'-I!I\L’L.'b i!l tlii‘ seope lli’ comtracis, I!i'riilllit’ I'i.'\",ll‘ld:'l[‘[ll”ﬁ Jllillﬁll"t‘ﬂ[ I‘Irl revonue l‘har h:l:" not hﬂ,'l['(.'l'l.'—i]"tl'\l. |I|1(' vty \'xl'!i_'l‘l:\'

to satsfy the above performance obligations within the conrracted rerms (which is expected to be closed in one year).

Balances with customers or contract balances

Particulars A8 faat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Assers

Trade receivables 1,753.72 2,290.29
Contract assets

Cuost of fulliilbment carned forward® 191,23 -
Contract liability

Deffered meomet? §9.09 T1.46

Advance from cusromert* 0,56

"Cost of fulfilment relites to contract assets recognised cquivalent to the recoverable costs incurred i fulfilling a contract (contract relired)
with a customer, which generates or enhances the resources of the entiey that will be used m sansfying the future performance obligations.

“Deffered income are conrract habilines , performance obligations are not yet sadsficd,

% Advance from customers are contract labilities | where money has been received and performance obligations are not yer sansfied.

Parent Company has not imearred any cost for obtaming contracts excepr admunistrative cost required for preparation of offers and the same

1s charged o statement of profit and loss.
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Nutes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2020

(Allamoune [ Lakhs uless atherwise stared)

»

Related Party transactions

In accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounung Standard — 24 the names of the related parties where control/ability to exerose symificint mfluence exists, along with the aggregate
amount of wansactions and year end balances with them as wenufied and cerufied by the managament are gven below:

a) Details of related parties:

=

Description of rel IS

Names of related pacties

Ulimate holding Company
Holding Company
Subsidiary of holding /ulti holdifg Ci

Associate Companies

PPost employment benefit plan trust

Power Fmance Corpomanon L, (w.e L 28h March 20019)

it
REC Power Distribution Company Limited
PIC Comsultng Lanied

Dinchang Transmission Limited (denotbied by Mol' on 25 March 2019)*

Ghatampur Transmussion Limied (weet 02 Decenber 2006 and sold on 19 Jure 2008
Javeaharpur Frosmbad Transmissson Limited (weel 20 August 2008 and sold on 21 December 2018+
Dumka Traasmssion Lumted [woell 25 March 2018)

Chandil Trmismdssiom Limited (wee £ 14 Marely 20018)

Mandar Transmesion Limited (w.e.£ 26 March 2018)

Koderma Transmission Lumited (woef. 19 March 2018)

Bl Coom Transmsswon Limaced (w18 Seprember 208 and sold on 11 Seprember 201971
Uldups Kasargode Transmission Limited (20 November 2008 - 12 September 2010)#+4

Jum Khambalya Transeo Lumted (1 Mareh 2000 - 13 November 200194+

Lakadia Banaskantla Transeo Lumted {19 Aarch 2019 - 13 November 20104+

Khem Transco Linaed (12 March 2019 - 29 August 2019}

Apnir Phag Transco Tamired (19 March 2002 - 03 October 201977

WRSS XX (A Transeo Lansted (26 Mareh 2019 - 14 Ociober 2010)%%

Tampur Sambhal Teansco Limiwed (el 02 May 20109 and sold an 12 December 2019 344+

Cramanabad Mahamzshir Line (In process of Incompositicon)*
Padar karnaha Lme (ln process of Bucorponen) ##04
Giidag Kamanka Pare A Line (Tn process of Tncorporation) 4+

Solar Energy Rapsthan Part A Line {Tn pocess of Incorpomtion)****

Solar Energy Ragsihan Parr B Lane (I process of Incorporanon) t**4
Salar Energy 14
Rapgarh Madhya Pradesh Line (In process ol Incorporation) ¥ ¥

asthan Part € Lane (I process of Incorporanon) ©0%

RELC Redred Employees Medieal Trust
REC Provadent L Truse

o olgecnon from Muisery of Power Tor seriking o the name of Dawchang Transmssion Limiced bas been reeewved on 31 Mareh 2020, the Group s planmng for the same

“mdheaes assoenanes sold [/ transterred m 1Y 2018-10
= medicates assocmtes sold |/ emosfeered m 7Y 2019-20

o ndhetes assocates which are m process of meorporation

Key management personnel (KM}

Transactions with Holding Company and KM are as under:

(i) Transactions during the year

Prvadenad pid e Holihog Company

schemes

s & Other
B REC fmeludimg Servace Tav/GS as applicabsle)

Advanee recewved for govenmes

Apportonment of Lmplosee Be

iNpenses

Tnrerest Income from Investment i Bonds

Income frotn Orther Servace Contract
(i) Ourstanding Balances at Year End

Invesunent w Bonds

Appornonmment of Fmplovee Breonefis & Onher Fapenses
Trerest Accrned but net due from Divestment m Bonds
Advance recewved for govemument schomes

M PN Ramesh ¢ Charrmnan and Direeror (1 Aprl 2008 1o 115 March 2014
Mr Ajeet Komar Agaowasl = Clharman and Threcion Clharman wee L 06 March 2009
Me Sanpeey Kumnar Gupia S hrector wee [ 20 Oerober 2013
Me, VK Smigh * Lhrector woed, TR Mareh 2019
REC Limited Key Management Personnel
31 March 2{20 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
RLEIAEH O,82000
- 1085401
SHLOT A38.50
538,17 A8
ELA 1300

REC Limied
3 March 20200 31 March 20019

A 700 £, 000K
126.35 353538
12597 155.H

1.135.00

Cusl of emplovees on secondment basis are reimbursed o REC Limited , Group owes nothing to ecmployees on secondinent basis,

) Tramsactions with REC Provident Fund Truse

Sale af londs

Transactions during the vear
31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019
J12.5
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Nates forming part of C lidated Fi ial 8§ for the year ending 31 March 2020
(Al mnonmt m L Lakhs unless atherwise stated)

REC Tr ission Projects Company Limited

Notes forming part of Co lidated Financial St for the year ending 3 March 2020

(Al amount in 177 Lakhs unless otherwise stared)

d) Transactions with Associates are as under:

Transactions during the year
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(i) Dinchang Tr ission Limited (denotified by MoP on 25.03.2019)
Tnterest Lxpenses
Rennbursement/ Fapenses Remibursement

Smnt Wonrtenoff
(i) Ghatampur Transmission Limited (sold on 19 June 2015:)

Intorest Expenses 10,35
Reimbursement/ Espenses Reimbursement Al
Sale of Investments Sl
Dumbkea Transmission Limited (w.e.f. 25 March 2018:)
Tnrcrest Lxpenses 1574
Tenmbuesement/ [xpenses Reimbursement 122,51
ved From Paroes L
5:4M
(iv) ited (weelll 14 March 2008:)
Tiiterest Expens 2738 16.12
Retnbursement Experses Renmbursement 2598 127.81
Advance Becved Prom Mres 20,80
Investnent mide - il
(v) Mandar Transmission Limited (w.e.f, 26 March 2018:)
Lnaeresr Bspenses 15.63
Repnbursement/ Expenses Rennbursement (RN
Yelvanes Teowed From Parnes R
Iorvestment made Sk
{v1) Koderma Transmission Limited (w.e.f 19 March 2018:)
Interest Lspenses .37 139
Remmbursement/ Fspenses Resmbursemaent 25,66 11433
Vibvanee Reewad From Partes 3040
lnvestment made .00
(vii) Bhind Guna Transmi
Interest 1 32
Comsnltaney [ee
Hembursement/ Hepenses Remburscment a0.T7
Advance Re i 140
Sali of Tuy
Tovestment made 3.0
(vuii) Udup Kasargode Transmission Limited
Tnterest Bxpenses 337 078
Consultimey Fee 7433
Rembursemnent/ Bxpenses Remibursement 6277 630
Sibvanee Recerved From Parnes 5195
Sale of Ivesanenrs 300
Tuv e 3010
(%] Jam Khambaliya Transco Limited
Tnrerese Fxpenses 212 N
Comsultaney e 29
Remnbursement/ Expenses Rennbursement fn.63 L]
Sibvanee Recesved Froan Pacies 17.70 A
Sale o Tivestmeints EX]
Tnvestment made 300
{xi) Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited
nterest lxpenses 273 i
{onsnlemney e 1,166,607
Reimbursement/ Pxpenses Rennbursement BRI B
Advnnee Recewed] From Parmes I
Saleal Investments A0
lvestment made .00
(it} Khetri Transco Limited
Tnerest Fapense (LG R
Crnsulmney |'ee 1001
Rembursement/ Lxpenses Reimbursement 3798
Advance Recewved From Parties 390
Sale of Investments Al
frvestment made E <BL1J
(xiii) Ajmer Phagi Transeo Limited
Inperest Lxpuenses L1y .2y
Comsalaney Foe 46330
Reimbursement/ xpenses Reimbursement ALRR An
Advance Recewved Irom Parbes 2340 160601
Sale of luvesiments 200
3N

Tvestiment nade
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Naotes forming part of C lidated Fi ial 5t for the year ending 31 March 2020
A amemnt 0 Lakbs unless otherwise stated)
(xiv) WRSS XXI (A) Transco Limited
Interest Expenses
Consubancy Fee
Temnbursenent/ FExpenses Rembursement
Advance Recewed From Parnes
Sale of Investments
Investmont made
{xv) Rampur Sambhal Transeo Limited
Interest Fapenses
Consulmney Fee
Remmbursement/ Expenses Lennbursement
wilvaner Receved From Parties
Sale of Investments
Investment made
(xvi) Osmanabad Maharashira Line (In process of

Inteeest Expenses
Reimbursement [ Fxpenses Rennbursement
Aebvaner Recowed From Paries
{xvit) Bidar Karmatakn Line (In process of Incorporation)
Interest Espenses
Rewibursetnent/ Fapenses Renmnbursement
Aehvanee Recewed From Parnes
Greti) Gadag Karnataka Part A Line (In process of Incorporation)
Iiterest Lspenses
Eemmbursement/ Lxpenses Reumbursement
Vebvanes Recowed Prom Marties
(xix) Solar Encrgy Rajasthan Part A Line (In process of
Incorporation)

Inrerest Lspenses

Bembrrsement ! Papenses Remmbursement
Sebvpnee Recered Friom Parnoes

Part B Line (In process of

(xx) Solar Energy Rajas
Incorporation)

luterest Lapenses

Ruepmbursement/ Expenses Rennbursement

Siebeamee Reeemed Proan Parnes

(xx1) Solar Energy Rajasthan Part C Line (In process of
Incorporation)
Interest Espenses
dtenmburaement) Fypenses Remmbiursvment
Wilvanee Reeerved From Parties
(mxii) Rajgarh Madhya Pradesh Line (In process of
Incarporation)
Inrerest Lxpenses
Hemnbursement,/ Lxpenses Reimbursement

Abvanee Recewved From arties

[

Ouistanding balonces wor.t. associates are as under

Receivable from assoeiates/(Payable 1o associares)
Clianhl Transmssion Lanied

Dromika Teansmission Linned

Slandar Transmission Limired

oderma Transmission Limited

Spmer Pliagy Transce Lid

Bluedmin Peansamissaon Limnred

Jam Khambakiya Transco Lud

Khetn Transeo Limited (advance)

Lakadia Bamaskantha Transeo Lid

LI Kass
Hampar Sambhal Transeo 1rd

rende Frnistmssion Ll

Bular lanutaka Line®

Conlags I aka Pare A Lane®

Solar Encrgy Raasthan Paer A Line®
Solar Encrgy 1taj i Parr 1% Lane®
Sular Energy Ranastlan Part € Lime®

Rapearh Madhya Pradesh Line*

Csmanabad Mahazasheea Line®
© 7 mew 5PV are i process of Incorpotinon, However REP was issoed i March 2020 theeefore as per allocanon pohey, expense have been allocaied.

1.73
1,220.81
65.35
da.10
500

.00

1L.62
(§ .4

164
2300

U.59
23400

9,54
23160

931
17760

9.32

29.50

.51

29.50)

31 March 2020

31 March 2014

249.20
243106
vk A |
2333

(130
(A1)
(HLA6)

(568
(1548}
HEER)

038

19864
193.57
171
175.74
1814
Rk

)

0y



CON0505
Typewritten Text
     138

CON0505
Typewritten Text


139

Notes forming part of Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the vear ending 31 March 2020
(Al amount m 0 Lakhs unless otherwise siared)

31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019

Investments in SP'Vs

Clanddl Transnssion Lud S0 S0
Iimka Transmassion Lid. 3,00 S0
Mandar Transmisson L, 3.00 300
Kederma Transmizson Lid 3000 3000
Dinchang Transmission Limited (denotfied by Mol* on 25 March 2019)
Ajmer Phagn Trawsen Lud = 3400
Blundgana Transimission Limzed 300
Jam Ehambaliya Transen Led SRL)
Khetr Transeo Limited (advance) 3400
Lakadn Banaskantha Teansco Lid 3.0
S4HY

UDUP] Kasaggode Transmission Lid
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Notes forming part of Co
{All amount n

38

Licl 1 Fi ial S1

for the vear

fing 31 March 2020

Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Employee Benefits disclosure
(i) Defined contribution plans:

Provident fund:

140

The Group has provided provident fund contribution to FT5 employees. The eomtrbiution is deposited wath EPFO. The contribution deposited duemg the vear s Rs. 251 Lacs

{Previous yewr Nil)
(ii) Defined benefir plans:

A, Leave

The Group provides Famed Leave (EL) benefit to the employees of the Group which acerue annually at 30 days. The maximum celling for encashment of leave ar fime of

superanmuAtion /e

Valuanon

Earned Leave

ion from service ather than on disciplinary ground shall be Fovted to 138 days (BL), 30% of |
PL s cn-cashable while in service lemvang a mmmum balainee of 15 days twace a vear. The scheme is unfunded and Tabdiy for

5.No. |Met defined benelit (asset}/ lial 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
I [Current (.33 19

I |[Non-current 3.106 3.3
Total PBO at the End of vear 540 323

(11) Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/

csubject to a maximum 138 days is en-cazhable on res

Tk

mee 18 recogmsed on the basis of Actuanal

Defined Benefit Obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Net defined benefit (asset) liability

S‘No'l Shiears 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019_| 31 March 2020_| 31 March 2019
A Openmy balance 3.23 2.30 - - 3.23 .30
B Included in profit or loss:

() Current service cost 30 LU0 A LAk
m)  ast senvice cost
{in} ) (.23 [N .25 s
c irement loss (gain): = *
Actuanal loss (gam) ansing from @ 1.23 (ILET) 123 (KT
() Financial assumptions 2
(i) Fapenence adjustment
fu) Retuen on plin asscts excluding mterest imeome -
Tot: pgnised in profit or loss { B+C) 4.0 L3 - = 464 130
1> (hher
lL 258 {11, 38) {235} (4%
[Closing balance (A+B+C+D+E) 5.49 3.23 - 5 5,49 323

(i) Actuarial Assumprinns

Uhe following were the pnincipal actuacal assumptions at the reporang dae

Particulars

5.No.

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1 |Imscount Rame

2 |Puture Salary Inercase

B
S.400%a

T.66%
5.00%%

I'he discount rate is based upon the markee yeilds available on Government bonds at the accounting date relevant to currency of benchit payments fora teem that of the labibiy

e Salasy Growth eate 1 Cieoup's long teem best

long teem basss as provided o eelevant accounting perisd

(1i1) Sensitivity Analysis

stiratte as 1o salary mcreases & takes account o mflanon, seniarity, pramanaon, business plan, [ TR policy and other relevant lacrors on

easomably possible changes at the reporung date to one of the welevint actuaral assumptions, holding other assumpions constant, would have affected the detmed benchie
¥ s 1 4 1 5 I

abliganon by the amounts shoswn below:

As at As at
S.MNo. Assumption 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Farncd Leave
| [Dnzeount rawe (13T (022
(k440 124
2 [Salary growrh rate (.30 1 024
(.50 {0.38) 0.23)

Sensiovines due to morality & wirhdmwals are not matenal & hence smpact of change due to these have not heen caleulated by actuary.
Sensitivitics as rate of inerease of pensions in payment, sate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable

(iv) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations

Asar Asar
§.No. Year of payment 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Farned Leave
I fliss than 1 year 33 019
2 [Berween 1-2 years 10 [RNEE)
3 |Between 2-3 years 1114 (s
4 |Berween 3+ years .10 #R1]
5 |Uver 4 years 4 B0 200
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38

Employce Benefits disclosure(continued)

B. Loyalty Bonus

The benefits towaceds Lovalty Bonus 15 non-contributory defined benefit arrangement providing benefits expressed in reems of mulriple ar final monthly salary. The ol
provided for on actuanal valuation done by an mdependent valuee. As per the Actuarial Valuation Report for Loyalty Bonus Liahility having Plan Benefit Obhganon (PBO) arthe end
of the vear as per schedule I of the Companics Act, 2013 amounting Rs, 604 lakhs (previous year Rs, 3.27 lakhs) has been eecogmsed as lability as per the details hereunder

14

Lovalty Bonus
S.Mo. |Net defined benefit (asser)/liability « 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
I |Current 0 (100
2 |Non-currenx G 327
Total PBO at the End of vear 6.05 32T
(1) Movement in net defined beneht (asset)/liability
5 Defined Benefit Obligaton Fair value of plan assets Net defined benefit (asser) liabilite
S.Na. Particulars
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
A |Opening balance 327 22 - - 327 23]
11 [lnghuded in profit or loss;
() |Current service eost 5132 218 |- . 12 YR
() |Past servace cost
(i) |Interest cost (income) 025 17 |- - 025 "l
o R ment loss (gain):
Actuanal loss (gain) ansing from ! [ (L.300] - ) 1300
() Fmancml assumptions
(i) ixpenence adjustment
(m) | Return on plan asscts excluding mterest income
-, i 1 i
Total recog in profit or loss ( B+C) 402 1.06 L 402 106
1D |Other :
I Benefits pad 1.24 - -1.24
Clasing balance (A+B+C+D+E) .05 327 - - H.05 3.27

(i1} Actsarial Assumptions

The followsng were the prneipal nctuanal pssamptons at the seporting date

[s.No.| Particulars [ 31 March 2020 [ 31 March 2019 |
L1 [Discount Raie | G [ 70050 |

Thee dhsconnt rte 1s based upon the marker veilds avalable on Government bonds at the aceounimg date relevant to cureency of benefit payments fora teem that of the halahy

(1ii) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Oblig

Asa As at
§.MNo. Year of payment 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Lovalty Bonus
1 Fess than 1 yoar 0l ol
2 |Berween 1-2 4 323 il
3 [Betwe 3 271 335

(111} Sensi  Analysis
Reasonably posable changes at the reporting date 1o one of the relevant acwanal assumpnons, holdmg ather assumptions constant, would have affecred the defined benelit

ablygation by the amounts shown below:

. ; As As at
Change in

S.Nao, Assumption ; 31 Murch 2020/ 31 March 2019
A prian
Loyalty Bonus
1 |Iiscount eate (L30%% (00 10.05)

(1501 0) (1.0 W5
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39
i)

ii)

4

A

P

h)

Financial instruments
Financial instruments by category measured at amortised cost:

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Financial asscts

Investments 7.526,57 8.857.50

Loans 41,11 37.01

Trade recervables 1,733.72 2,290.29

Cash and cash equivalents 1480387 14,947.11

COhther bank balances Y1.51 33.64

Orher financial asscts 16300 Y3851
Total 24,379.78 27,104.06
Financial liabilitics
Borrowings H0.00 S
Oither financial liabilities 14,021.57 15,414.38
Tatal 14,521.57 15,414.38

The carrving amounts of Bnancial assets and Labilites are considered a reasonable approsimanon of ther far values.

lixcept for the helow:

854213 9.633.27
9,633,27

Investumnent in tax free bonds (Quoted marcket value)
Toual fair value of investments 8,542.13

Fair values hicrarchy
The Group docs not have any financial assces or financial habilitcs carned ar fur value.

Financial risk management

Risk management
Ihe Grroup is exposed 1o various nisks i relason o fnaneal mstruments. The Group's financial assets and lHabihoes by caregory are summansed in Note 3%

The man types of nisks are eredit nsk, liquadity sk and macket nsk.
The Group's nisk management 15 coordinated in close eo-operanon with the Board of Dircctors, and focuses on secunmg the Group's short wo medim teem cash

Hows, e Group docs nor engage in trading of hnancal assets for speculatve purposes.

Credit risk
Credit risk rating

The Group assesses and manages credit nsk of Gnancial assets based on following categorivs arrived on the basis of assumprions, iputs and fictors specific o the

class of hnancial asses

A Low eredin nsk on finaneal reportng dae

13 Molerate eredit risk

2 Fhgh ervedir ris
The group provides for expected eredit loss based on the following:
Asset entity Basis of categorisation Provision for expected credit loss

Cash and cush cquivalents, other bank balances, loans,

Lo credir nisk : 12 month expected eredit loss
investments and other linancial assets

Contract asser and trade reccivable Lifetime cxpected eredit loss under simplificd approach

PBased on business enviconment in which the group operates; there have been no defaults on inanenl asscis of the group by the counterparty. Loss raies reflecting
defaults are determined based on actual eredit loss expenienee and considering differences between current and historieal ceonomic condinons.

Assers are wotten ofT when there 15 mo reasonable expeetation of recovery, such as the htigaton of debuor is finally decided against the group. The group continues
1o engige with parties whose balanees are written off and atempts to enforce repayment.
Provision for expected credit losses

31 March 2020

Estimated gross Carrying amount net of
Particulars carrying amount at Ex!'rcctl:d impairment provision
default credit losses

Investments 752657 - 7,526.57
Cash and ensh equivalents |4, 803.87 - 14,803,87
Crher bank balimees U151 - 9151
Loans 4111 - 4111
Trade recevabiles 2,076.33 (322.61) 1,753.72
Cnher hinancial asscs 163.000 - 1634000
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Estimated gross E J Carrying amount net of

Particulars carrying amount at RpRoie impairment provision
= default credit losses

Investments 8,857.50 - HB57.5()
Cash and cash equivalents 1494711 - 1404711
COther bank balances 33.04 3304
lavans ksl - 370
I'rade reecivables 2:290.29 - 2,290.29
Oither fi 938.51 - 93851

1 — Trade receivables

Reconciliation of loss provis

Reconciliation of loss allowance Total

Lass allowance on 01 April 2018 -
Proviion created dunng the peried %
Loss allowance on 31 March 2019 =
Provisions utihsed dunng the penod &
Provision wrtten back during the penod =
322,61
322.61

Provision ereated during the period
Loss allowance on 31 March 2020

Further, the Group does not have any history of losses and expected Insses, hence the Group has nor prepared any general provisions iy the curerent year, the

|l'|][\:]||'[‘|'|('|}| [1TE)\'I-§1IJI'JEI HESH 1 3' _\I,’lr{'l] 2“3[] ]'L‘.!“’L‘HL‘]'[[S il]l|'¥;[i|’ll]Lf|‘l[ |Tll'[]\'|lrillll'l un Ifillll' l'L'CL:I'n'iIlIIL::i L']'L‘:ITL'L' over HF'JL'CI"IC AssCls TL][]1UI Ihfl]\ a ]_'C”f;!l :'lp]'!l'l!'.‘ll_'h‘ dLIl (8]

some delay expected rom recoveries of certain projects frome a debior JIKPDDL The same delay s not ongnated from the date of rsecogmiton, bur developed dunng

the due conrse af operations.

Gross Exposure Provision amount Net Debuor

[KPDD-UDAY 498,14 U746 400648
JRPDD-PAMA 477.92 9177 36,15
JRPDRD-PLA TUB8 133.39 574.69

1,684,135 322.61 1,361.52

ves, back

ocs liquidity sk by mamtamnmg adeguate rese

Ulinmate responsibiliy o hgudity risk management rests with the Board of Directors. The Group ma e
facilities such as deposits and by contimuously monitoring forceast and act

Management moniors rnHm;; torecasts of the Group's hgudity posiion and cash and eash L'an\".l\ul:Ls o the basis of L'NI'!L'C[(‘('. cash flows.

unity profiles of Gnancal assets and Tabilities,

cash fows, and by marching the m

Maturities of financial liabilities

Allthe financial labilines of the Group are current i nature and are matunng within 12 months perod from the end of reportimg period.

Market risk

Market ngk ag the sk that the fGur value or future cash flows of 1 financal mstrument will fuctuate because of changes 1

marker prices. I comprises of curreney

risk, meerest rate nsk and price rsk.

Currency risk:
The Group daes non have any foreign curreney transactions, henee, 1t is not exposed 1 currency risk,

Imterest rate risk
The Group has taken a eredit imit fa
(Ciain / (Loss) fur 50 hasi

varable, The table below represents the impact on P&l

ity during the year and the applicabile interest rate on the same is

crs and lalnlirie

points merease or decrease ininterest rate on Group's floating raw
For the year ended
31 March 2019
1140 =
(00440 -

For the vear ended

31 March 2020
Flesatmg rate borrowings (+0.5% Change in interest raie)
Floanng rare borrowings (H0.5% Change inineeest s

Price risk:
The Group does not have any financial nstroment which exposes 1w price nisk

Capital management policies and procedures
The Group's capital includes issued share capital and all other distributable weserves. The primary objective ol the Group’s capital management 15 1o maxumise
sharcholder value and o nminein an aptirmal capital structure woreduce the cost of capital, The Group does not have any long-teem boreowangs and all s caporal

needs are met by eapital or sharcholders only. Although Group has some current borrowings.

T'he debt equity rano of the Group is as follows ;

As at 31 March 2020
Toal delae 0010
Net waorth 11,200.08
Debt-coquity ratio 0.04
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Addi I disel pl 4 in other entities
%o of holding % of holding Place of
Name of associates As at As at incorporation/ Principle
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 place of business
[nchang Transmission Limired TOLL P 100060 Incha
Apmer Phag Transco Limned 5 100,004 [nidra
Hhindguna Transmission Lamred - UL India
Chandil FPransmssion Lad 100000 TX00%%, Inda
Dumbka T'ransmission Lid, 00 1000 Tndia
Jam Khambalwa Transeo Limed - [ERXE AL Iniha
Khe Transeo Lunited - T00.0(1%,y India
Koslerma Fransmission Lid T 00K, India
Latkachia Banaskantha Transco Limied - LK India
Mandar Transmussion Lid, 1A [N Indm
Ldupr Kasargode T'mas Lad 10000 Tahia
WIRSS XXT (A) Transco Lamated ** i Irielia
Rampur Sambhal Teansce Linaned = e I
Osmanabad Maharashea Line* - - I
Bular Karmataka Line* % - India
Craclige Karnanka Part A Lanet ¥ - India
Solar Fnergy Rajasthan Part A Line® Ly Incha
Salar ey Ragasthan Pare B Lane * Inelia
Solae Energy Rapasthan Pare © Line™ h Incia
Rajprh Madhya Pradesh Line* ' Inclia
T oaew SIVs are n priscess of Incorparnon, However eequest for propsal wag issued on 1ath Mareh 2020 therelore, as pee allocanon policy expense have been allocared,
I the previous yeir these entitis were under mcomporation status,
I
(1) Management meorpories these enttcs and mvest mthem with 2 view o sell them off as per the pudelnes of Mimsty of power, through the bul process presenbed by manstry of poser.
Ihere 1 o possibdity thar managemng will bave benehits from these entimes other than selling them ofF, henee all these investment Galong wath the related assers and habuhues) has been
chussefiod as held for sale
() The above myvestments are managed as per the mandate from Coveenment of India (Gol) and the Holding Company docs not have the pracueal abihiy 1o diteer the relevant activites of
these Companies unilaterally
Uhe Holding Company theeefore, considers its mvestment mrespective Companies as assocites having sigmificant miluence despite the RECTPCL hobding 1002 of their paid-up eguiny
share @
Other nates
There were meclve opening assocute companies (SPVs] ineorporated in the previous years, namely Dinchang Tensmission Limited, Bhand Guaa Tansmisaon Limted, Udups Kasaggoale
Fransmission Limited, Roderma Teansmission: Limited, Chanddl Transaussion Lamited, Dumka Teansmussion Linuted, Mandae Teansmssion Lomeed, Jamkhambalva Teanseo [,
Kheter Transea Linwied, Ajmer Phagr Transeo Linnted, Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limied and WRSS XX (A) Transen Limited, One associates (SPVs) was meomporated during the
Frapancaal Year 2019220 samely Rampur Sambhal Transco Limited, thuy there were ol Thirteen associves dueing the year Out of the arteen associates, cight assoctes namely Khein
Transeo Limied Bhind Guoa Transmission Limited, Udupi Kisaggode Trnsmission Limted, Ajmer Phag Transco Limited WRSS XX Transco (A) Limned, Jamkhambaliya Transen
Lanwted,Lakadia Banaskantha T'ransco Limited and Rampur Sambhal Transeo Limited were transferced dunng, the FY 200920,
At the year end, there IFive assocutes (SPVe)in hand |, out of which one assocate namely Dinchang Transmussion Limied was given Mo Obegenion by Mol Tor for stekang off the nan
of Dinchang Transmssion Limted (@ Wholly Owned Subsidany of RECTPEL) under Secion 248 of Compames Act, 2003 from the Regssier of Compames vide vs noificaton Ne
/2 2T daed 310032020, Fore which the Fur value has Deen akhen as zero
Jamkhambabya Transco Limired, Khetn Transco Limied, Ajmier Phags Teanseo Limted, Lakadya Banaskantha Transco Limited and WIRSS XX Transeo Limted have been meaporand
w the month of March 2019, As per seetion 2(41) of Companics Act, 2003 “every Company incorporated on or afier the st day of January of a vear, the peood ending, intesalia, on the
3lst diy of March of the following fnancal year will be the fimancial year of the Company™, Hence, the ficst finaneal vear of the Company will be from the date of ieorporanon 1o 1
March 2020,
Government of [harkband wde ws lerrer daed 2L08.2007 had sominared RECTPEL as the Bl Process Coordmater for the development of lara-Sate mmnsmassion elemenes of
Jharkhand Stare through Fanfl Based Compentve Badding rome. As pee the diccenions of Jharkhand Urp Sanchacn Migsm Limited (Stare Transmussion Uniliey of [harkhand), the
eransmission clements were divided snto 5 peogeers and the REC) process was smnated. Subsequéntly,  [harkhand Lea Sanchaman Migam Linited i consultttion with Central Dlectreny
Authoriey & Centeal Teansmission Unhty fnaheed the revised ransmussion elements of Jharkband Stae w0 be developed through Tanfl Based Competuve Buddmg route, Alerwand
based on the divections of Thackhand Urna Sancharan Nigam Limited the revised scope of werk has been divided in 4 packages. Theeelore, Expendinume which was allocited o fve prgeers
was re-alloeated o four projecis.
The RECTPCL s a4 wholly owned subsihary of REC Lid, o Gove of India Enterprise. The Key Maaageoal Pessonnel of the RECTPCL are employees of the Holding Pacent Company
(IR L) deployed on pare nme hasis. No managenal eemunceion s pasd o sueh pesonnel by the Faremt Company, The devals of such Key Manageral Personnel are as follows:
S. Na. Name 4] 1on Date of App nt Date u]'ScparaLi(:;
1 Sh, V. Ramesh Chaeman & [hrector 27 December 2008 i 005 March 2109
2 Sh Ajcet Kumsar Agarwal [nrector 27 December 2008 wpir (05 March 2019
Sh. Ajcer Kumar Agarwal Clarman & Director from 06 March 2019
3 Sh Sangeer Kumar Gupia Dhrector 26 Orerober 20115
4 Sh. VLI, Singch Direciior 18 March 2019
Ml ather personnel working for the RECTPOL are also from the Holding Parent Company (REC Lid), The salary and establishment expenses m respect of the personnel working for the
RECIPCL are paid by the Holding Parenr Company (REC Ltd) and recovered at cost from the RECTPCL
Wheeever, any expenditure sincurred o papment made by the Holdsg Company (REC Lid) on behalf of the RECTPCL | proceduml and stantsry requirements wath veged o deducnon

of Tax at Source and othee stttosy compliances, as appheable, are complied by the Haoldmg Company (2 Led)
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42

¢ 415

i

X1

1) As per the approved policy, REC Lid, the holdmg Company is chargmg the salary, other establishment expenses and defined habihities as a percentage
of the basic salary for the scconded émployees as follows:

ap Basic Salary- On actual basis on the basis of estimared tme spent {or the Company.

by Dearaess Allowanee - ar actal.

¢} HRA/Lease Accommodation charges. @30 of basic slary,

A Perquasaes atacoial as per the enntlement of the concerned employec.

¢)  TPerformance relued pay - atactual as pee the maximum eeiling provided by DPE

f}  Bamed Leave: fior 30 days i a year,

) Medheal Leave - for 10 davs in o year,

hj  Defned Contribution - 30% of the Basic plus DA, towards PF, Gratuty, Supesannuation benefits and post reticement medical faciliy cre

) Interest on cost mcurmed by the Groop for the

assocnte Compames (51'Vs) w charged on the basis of geneml marker nterest rate of T&L schemes of the ultmare holding Group (R0
Fasly for ungraded prgamsanons, presentdy @ 13 1

o the begmnmg of the Fnanenl Year.

Other notes {Continued)

Smce the RECTPCL % meueomgs expenses mamly for s proqeer specthe assoemtes fealled SPVE), the expenses have been allocared ar the year end o these 5PV Diveer expenses have
been haoked 10 the respective SPV for which rhe expendirure has been incurred. All Indirect/ Common Expenses have been allociied 10 SPVs & projects (eseept Government Schemg
propartion of salary of FLOL Staff deploved on the SPY from the manth af sssue af REGY/ BIP (1F RAQ stage &= not adopred in the Badding Process) or mcomoranon of SPY, shichever i
from the date af wsue of Lener of Tnear (L) for the tmnsler of the SPY Galls P of the month, of any, 15 considered s full monih for cost
senditure s incurred whereis for

carher, nll the monsth inoswlach ench da
allocanion. The RECTPCL has charged interest on the funds deployed by i For dieeer expenses, interest 15 charged from the month in which the ¢
ndieeet expenses interest s charged for the avernpe perid of deplovment of funds. Such mrerest s ealculared on monthly bass bur recopnised at the end of the vear or ar the nme of

meansfer of 8PV, whichover s carlier

Annual and penodieal allocation of expenditure by the RECTPCL w assocates vl the camplenon of service s accumulated and deluted to assocates account (nvenee melusive of (51 s

j and the same s teeated as advance o assocates reflecred under the head Current Asset. The amount of advance s teansfeered to Debtors and s reabized, dueng acquisition of the

SPY by the successtul bidder.

As per the formanon avudable with the Group, theee are no dues 1o Maeea, Small and Medwm Enterprises.

Detls of expenditure and earmngs i foresgn currency 15 as under

S.No. Particulars 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
1 Lixpenditure bt | Nil
2 Farmings N Nl
Tuotal ~ -

MWalances i paenes accounts, advances, teade secewvables and sundry payables are subjecr ro confirmanon/ reconeillanon and eonsequental adpsement that may anse on reeonedlagon of

any

ana

ament under UDAY{Upwal DISCOB Assuince Yoputa) Scheme from J&K Power Development Department agrnst wluch commencement of the tontret i

RELTTTCL has got
, the commencomiont of contrmct has boes

to e eccognised from the

we Of eeceipt of mobnlisation advince or the date of syming of agreement whichever is later. on mutual consont buse

recogmsed from the date of sy of apreement.

Connngent Lalnloes and Commitments:

Asan
3 Manch 2014

As at
31 March 2020

1. Contngent Liabilities not provided for
NI NI

Clums aganst the Greoup not acknowledged as debis
29,80 THLTR

Chliers

oo AY 200718 The roal amaunt of densni

(A} Anappeal has beea Bled before CIT (Appeals) on 03 Jaguary 2020 agamst e Nooce and Order dined 08 Deeember 2019 persa
varseed s e 2986 Takh and 200% of demand deposted wn 19Y 1920 for Rs. 397 Lakh

() POCTE has elanmed for recovery of elarges Gom the RECTPCL on aceount of non reguirement of the Vermaar mansmassion e, whieh the RECTPCL bas disputed on the groond
ancd cases pendhng before the Hon'ble Appellate Trbunal, Delbi as of the curment status 0 the opinen of

that the saxl event has ansen after the teansfer of SPV o PGOHL, the

L £

management no amount 1= payable to PO

I, Commitments not provided for

CRILCommitments 201,57 11568
Capital Commuaments i 1
Disel for Corporate Social Responsibility as per Seetion 135 of Companics Act. 2013
) Grross amount reguired to be spent by the Group dunng the fuamenl year. Re 8594 lakl (Previous vear Rs 9299 kb excluding brought forwaed amoant.
b) Amountspent dueng the year.
For the year eneded 31 Murch 2020 For the year encded 31 March 2019
Yett Yetn
In cash gt Total In cash gy Total

he paid he paid
Canstrugtion facquasstiean of theany . =
Ohher thin (1) above: spend through
Fureka Vorhs Tnstirute of Foverpment 1ih06 1o
Arnficnl Limly Manufictoring Corporanon of Inde (ALIMOOY 17.59 1734
Vostal - - - 27.65 - 27.65

o) Unspent CSR fund for Y 201718 of Rs.22.63, 2018-19 of Rs. 92.94, 2014-2020 of Rs. 8394
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NIV The Group s operatng n asmgle segment ve, providing consultney services and therefore disclosure requirements of Tnd AS 108 15 not appheable.

KV I the opimion of the management the value of the corrent assets and Toans and advances on reabisation i ordinary course of busmess will not be less than value arwhich these are stated in

the financial staremenis.

XV Wiath a view to have better operational efficiency and to reap the benefits of higher capital base,pooled resoucces and to ¢reate one big Consultancy firm and m terms of Ministry of Power's
Office Memorandum dared 30th Augast 2007, the unbisted wholly cwned subsidary compames of REC Lad ce. REC Power Disebution Company Lemued (REC PINCL) and BES
Transmmssion Projects Company Lamited (RECTPCL) | have mitaed the process of amalgamaton under which RECTPEL (ransfocor Company) along with ws wholly owned
subsidunes fassocites, will megge mio RECPDCL, Transferce Company), subject 1o requisite approwvals/sanctioms of sharcholders/creditors of the transferor and teansferce companics
and any other Competent Authonty (ies), as may be required. Approval for amalgamation s obtained via MOP letter dated 11th November, 2009 Further, the company m s 930h Board

mectng dated 27 Jan 2020 have approved the merger

KV Adjustment of advance from pary agamst advace to Lna Mim

Particulars For the Year ended
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Amount spent on Lga Mirea Scheme 1A6R.33 79343
Advanee from REC (Holdmg Company) 1,059.67 105967
Amount spent on U Mitra Scheme(Bialance) 2NEE
Advance from REC (Holding Company Dalance) - 254.22
AVHIE The nowel eommavirus (COVIT-19) pandemic is spreading around the globe sapadly, The varus has tihen o o0l ononon st human hle, but busmesses and foancial marckets we, the esent

of which s currently indeterminare. The Goverment of India has also announced a compulsory lockdown of on 22 March 2020, The Group s civefully conmdering the sccounimg
amuation very well, e to the lockdown the openitions an the different sies of the Group

mpheanons af this ssuaton, However as of aow the management has been able ro cope with the

has heen partally afecred, as the Group has adopred the offline work poliey for most of the works.

Fusther, the alove docs not impact the cevenue recognition of the Crroup where MOver the Pcnr_\d" services wore bomg rendered. However m case of "Pomt of sale” revenue, the evenues
may get delay due to projeet delays, thercfore the Group has not recognised any vevenue after the lockdown fsuspension of opetanons m such cases. Further, the direet expenaes relanng o
these projects has also got defayed /suspended. The [ndiect expenses or expenses which are i the permancat natuce (mployee salary ere) are bemg expensed by the Group, and the same

lias been recogasedian the penod fyvear 1o which these expenses

Also as the Group deals with the Goverment depiciments or Compamies, it seems non-probable o the management that any of the Customers of the Geoup will default any pasmens,
ITwever there has been a few cases of delays in the collecnon, bue the management estimates that these e ceceivable veey soon, once the stuations et normalised.

Alser, hasis upon the above fact, the management does not aceept any addinonal impaement i the trade recenvables or mvestments w the assocates.

Management s snll conssdenmge the mpact of the siuanons on the peaods subsequent o the current reporting penod and will use the appropr tmates at the respective reportmg, darcs.
i 4 I P | l BT PHap I U

Fear and on bebalf of Boasd of Dirccrors ol

RECT

\ __/’/-*:

(Sh. Rameshwer Prasad Vashnaw)

For P Juin & Company

wsmission Projects Company La

(8h. Vijay Kumar Sifig
Dhrector
DN No02772733 [DIN Mo O18GRRRT

[hrector

IRIN:KT2T7Y

Phce: New Delb

Date: ;&Fo-z,-_)pja
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‘Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to provisio to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule § of Companies [Accounts) Rules,2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of Subsidiaries/ Associate Companies/ Joint Ventures for the Year 2019-20

Part A: Subsidiaries

Statement Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act,2013 related to Subsidiary Companies is not Applicable

Part B: Associates and Joint Ventures

Dinchang Chandil Koderma Dumka Mandar
. Transmission Transmission Transmission Transmission Transmission
Mlarme-ot Assoliaveniiaint Ventures Limited* Limited * Limited * Limited * Limited *
1 |Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20
2 |Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end
Number 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture (' in Lakh) 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Extend of Holding (%) 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
3 |Description of how there is significant influence Refer Note 1 Refer Note 1 Refer Note 1 Refer Note 1 Refer Note 1
4 |Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated NA NA NA NA NA
5 |Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest sudited Balance Sheet [~ in 0.00 -213.67 -150.96 -208.22 -186.14
Lakh)*
6 |Profit / Loss for the year (" in Lakh) 0.00 -43.60 -40.82 -42.72 -39.84
Considered in Consolidation ** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Nat Considered in Consolidation : 0.00 -43.60 -40.82 -42.72 -39.84

* The latest audited Balance Sheet available for associates have been prepared on the basis of IND-AS.
**Associates classified under held for sale and valued at cost or fair market value (less cost to sales) whichever is less, hence profit not considered.
***Eight associates namely Khetri Transco Limited, Bhind Guna Transmission Limited, Udupi Kasargode Transmission Limited, Ajmer Phagi Transco Limited, WRSS XXI (A)

Transco Limited, Jam khambaliya Transce Limited, Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited and Rampur Sambhal Transco Limited were transferred on 29.08.2019, 11.09.2019,
12.09.2019, 03.10.2019, 14.10.2019, 13.11.2019, 13.11.2019 and 12.12.2019 respectively.

Note : 1. The company is holding 100% of shares but these investments are managed as per the mandate from Government of India and company does not have the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of these companies unilaterally, hence treated as associate company.

For P.Jain & Company
Chattered Accountants
FRN:000711C

Place: New Delle

C“:n_. . ﬁh -04 \b%Q\.“ﬁ

Lot and on behalf of Board of Directors of

REC Transmission Projects Company Limited

B

(Sh. Vijay Kumar Singh)
Direcror

DIN Mo, 02772733
Place: New Delln

Date: \N\.UM - Nﬂlﬁb

)

(Sh. Rameshwar Prasad Vaishnaw)
Director
DIN Nou 018685883

re: New Delht
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of REC Transmission Projects
Company Limited(*the Company”) and its associates (the Company and its associates together referred
to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for year ended on
that date, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2020, the consolidated profit and consolidated total
comprehensive income for the year ended on that date, consolidated changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Erhics issued by the ICAI together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their report referred to in the other matters paragraph
below are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements:

Reference is invited to note no. 40(X) regarding non receipt of confirmation of balances from parties
other than banks and related parties, and consequential adjustment that may arise on reconciliation.
In this it is explained by the management that nccessary letter for obtaining the balance confirmation
has been sent to the partics and with respect to major amount, which is due towards Government
funds received, the concerned authority have confirmed total disbursement to the company.

Reference is invited to Note No. 16(1) regarding denotification of one of the associate company (i.e
Dinchang Transmission Ltd) and accordingly the management is in process of dissolving the said
company.

Reference is invited to Note no 42(XVIII) regarding impact of Covid-19 on financial statements.
Reference is invited to Note no 42(XVI) regarding amalgamation of the company with REC Power
Distribution Company Limited as per approval of Board dt 27" January, 2020 and administrative
Ministry approval dt 11" November, 2019.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. On the basis of

Audit Report received for Dumka Transmission Limited, Chandil Transmission Limited, Mandar
Transmission Limited and KodermaTransmission Limited.

we have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our repory.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report and Corporate
Governance, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for maintenance of the adequate accounting records for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required (o draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of such entity included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are independent
auditor. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company of which we are the independent
auditor regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit/loss of Rs. Nil and
investments at carrying amount of Rs. 20 lakh for the year ended 3 1"March, 2020, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, in respect of five associate companies, whose financial statements
have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these associates,
and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below. is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based and on consideration of audit reports of associates
as referred in * Other Matter” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated
Statement of changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the IND AS
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) Vide notification no. G.S.R.463(E) dated 05.06.2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies have been exempted from applicability of provision of section 164(2)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure-A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has disclosed pending
litigations which may impact its financial position in note 40(X11)..

ii. The Group does have any such long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there are any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its associate companies incorporated in
India.

For P. Jain & Company

Chartered Accountants
No. 000711C)

KAJ JAIN)
Partner
embership No. 097279)

Place : New Delhi
Date : |2-p6~2p2C
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ANNEXURE "“A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED
ACCOUNTS

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report on consolidated accounts to the Members of REC Transmission Projects Company Limited
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
vear ended 3 st March 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
REC Transmission Projects Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) and its
associate companies (the Company and its associate companies collectively referred as “Group™), which
are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its associate companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Group based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Group’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Group internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Group; '
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(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Group : and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Group assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial controls system
improvement in the system of allocation of common expenses to associates (SPVs) and adequately
defining the Internal Audit scope, over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as of 3 1st March 2020, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the areas of improvement identified which needs further strengthening as reported
above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 3 1st March
2020 of Consolidated financial statements of the Group. However, these areas of improvement do not
affect our opinion on the operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial Control over financial
reporting of the Group .

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating Effectiveness
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to five associate companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies incorporated in India.

[urther, we have considered the disclosure reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent
of audit tests applied in our report of the financial statements of the Group , and the above disclosure
does not affect our opinion on the operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial Control over financial
reporting of the Group .

For P. Jain & Company
Chartered Accountants
\ ign No. 000711C)

Place : New Delhi . JJAIN)

Date : )2- 06~ 2020 r mbership No. 097279)
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF REC
TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

MARCH 2020

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of REC Transmission Projects
Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under section 139(5) read with section 129 (4) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of the
Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 12 June 2020.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of REC Transmission Projects
Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 under Section 143(6)(a) read with section
129(4) of the Act. We conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of REC
Transmission Projects Company Limited, but did not conduct supplementary audit of the
financial statements of subsidiaries, associate companies and jointly controlled entities listed in
Annexure 1. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the
working papers of the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory

auditor and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under

section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

»

(D.K. Sekar)
Place: New Delhi Director General of Audit (Energy),
Dated: 06 August 2020 Delhi
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List of subsidiaries, associate companies and jointly controlled entities whose financial

statements were not audited by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India

!\J

(%]

AN

Associate Companies

Dinchang Transmission Limited
Chandil Transmission Limited
Dumka Transmission Limited
Koderma Transmission Limited

Mandar Transmission Limited



ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

e oF
Ottppaet

KEY OFFICIALS
(Shri Kuldeep Rai) (Shri Bhupender Gupta)
(Additional CEO) (Additional CEO)
(Shri S. Muralidharan) (Shri Pankaj Verma)
(Chief Financial officer) (GM Finance)
(Smt. Ritu Madan Arore:)
(Authorized Signatory)



CON0505
Typewritten Text

CON0505
Typewritten Text

CON0505
Typewritten Text
157


’ é‘—*‘“‘sz‘gﬁsj 58

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 ' & :

£ o
._Om, ANY ()

REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED

Regd. Office: Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003
CIN: U40101DL2007GOI157558 Website: www.rectpcl.in

PROXY FORM (Form no. MGT-11)

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member (s): Folio No./
Registered Address:
No. of Shares held: Email ID:
1/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:
1. Name:
Address: Signature:-
E-mail Id:

or failing him / her
2. Name:

Address: Signature:-

E-mail Id:

or failing him / her

3. Name:
Address: Signature:-
E-mail Id:
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
13" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, September 22, 2020 at 5:30
P.M. at Core 4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi — 110003 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such businesses as are indicated below:

Sl.No. | Particulars
Ordinary Business
1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company

for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 along with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend for the financial year 2019-20

3. To fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2020-21.

Special Business
4. To appoint Shri Ajoy Choudhury (DIN: 06629871), as Director of the Company.
5. To appoint Shri Govind Singh Bhati (DIN:08038296), as Director of the Company.
6. To appoint Shri Rameshwer Prasad Vaishnaw (DIN: 01868883), as Director of the

Company.
Signed this...........c...c........ day of........ccoevennn. 2020 Affix
Revenue
Signature of Shareholder ..................... Signature of Proxy holder(s) ................... ?{tanllg of
s. 1/-
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REC TRANSMISSION PROJECTS COMPANY LIMITED

Regd. Office: Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003
CIN: U40101DL2007GOI157558 Website: www.rectpcl.in

ATTENDANCE SLIP

13™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 22,
2020 AT 5:30 P.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFICE OF THE COMPANY AT CORE 4,
SCOPE COMPLEX, 7, LODHI ROAD, NEW DELHI - 110 003.

NAME OF THE ATTENDING MEMBER
(IN BLOCK LETTERS)

Folio No.

DP ID No.

No. of Shares held

NAME OF PROXY (N BLOCK
LETTERS)
to be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of
the member

I/We, hereby record my/our presence at the 13™ Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on Tuesday, September 22, 2020 at 5:30 P.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at Core-
4, Scope Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003.

Signature of Member/ Proxy
NOTES:

1. The attendance slip should be signed as per the specimen signature registered with Company.
Such duly completed and signed Attendance Slip(s) should be handed over at the venue of
AGM. Members in person and Proxy holders may please carry photo-ID card for
identification/ verification purposes.

Shareholder(s) present in person or through registered proxy shall only be entertained.

Due to strict security reasons mobile phones, brief cases, eatables and other belongings are not
allowed inside the venue. Shareholder(s)/proxy holder(s) will be required to take care of their
belonging(s).

4. No gifts/ coupons will be distributed at the Annual General Meeting.

@
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